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INDEX OF PLEADINGS

DESCRIPTION

ADDENDUM TO NOTICE OF WITNESS
(FILED JAN 23'15)

AFFIDAVIT OF PERSONAL SERVICE
(FILED MAY 25'18)

AFFIDAVIT “A”
(FILED NOV 9'20)

AFFIDAVIT “B”
(FILED NOV 9'20)

AFFIDAVIT “C”
(FILED NOV 9'20)

AFFIDAVIT “I”
(FILED NOV 9'20)

AFFIDAVIT OF SERVICE BY MAIL
(FILED DEC 24'18)

AFFIDAVIT
(FILED OCT 6'16)

AFFIDAVIT “C"°
(FILED JAN 4'21)

AFFIDAVIT “II”
(FILED NOV 23'20)

AFFIDAVIT w1t
(FILED JAN 4'21)

AFFIDAVIT OF SERVICE BY MAIL
(FILED JAN 6'15)

AFFIDAVIT “2"
(FILED JAN 4'21)

AFFIDAVIT “A"
(FILED JAN 4'21)

AFFIDAVIT “B”
(FILED JAN 4'21)

PAGE NO.

701-702

2424-2426

3105-3119

3120-3125

3126-3132

3133-3154

3005-3006

1488-1489

3545-3551

3376-3386

3449-3473

537-545

3474-3524

3525-3539

3540-3544

VOL. NO.
(VOL. 5)
(VOL. 18
(VOL. 23
(VOL. 23
(VOL. 23
(VOL. 23|
(VOL. 22
(VOL. 11
(VOL. 28
(VOL. 26
(VOL. 27
(VOL. 3)
(VOL. 27
(VOL. 27
(VOL. 28
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INDEX OF PLEADINGS

DESCRIPTTION

ALTERNATIVE SENTENCING SUPPLEMENTAL

REPORT
(FILED APRIL 15'14)

AMENDED ORDER FOR PAYMENT (SEALED)
(FILED DEC 18'14)

APPELLANT’'S INFORMAL BRIEF
(FILED APR 19'21)

APPLICATION FOR APPOINTMENT OF
INTERPRETER
(FILED APRIL 18'14)

APPLICATION FOR ORDER TC PRODUCE
PRISONER
(FILED SEP 27'18)

APPLICATION FOR ORDER TO PRODUCE
PRISONER

(FILED AUG 8'18)

BRIEF REGARDING STRUCTURAL
(FILED SEP 17'18)

CASE - APPEAL STATEMENT
(FILED MAR 8721)

CASE APPEAL STATEMENT
(FILED JAN 18'19)

CASE APPEAIL, STATEMENT
(FILED JUN 22'22)

CASE APPEAL STATEMENT
{FILED MAY-11'15)

CERTIFICATE OF MAILING
(FILED FEB 1'21)

CERTIFICATE OF MAILING
(FILED JAN 11'21) .

CERTIFICATE'QF SERVICE
(FILLED APRIL 11'14)

PAGE NO.

84-85
413

3920-3928
233-238
2504-2505

243i—2432
2494-2499
3915-3916
3002-3012
4036-4037
1085-1087
3858-3859
3785-3786

70

VOL. NO.
(VOL. 1)
(VOL. 2)
(VOL. 30
(VOL. 2)
(VOL. 18
(VOL. 18
IVOLi. 18
(VOL. 30
(VOL. 22
(VOL. 31
(VOL. 7)
(VOL. 320
(VOL. 30
(VOL. 1)
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CERTIFICATE OF -SERVICE
(FILED MAY 25'18)

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
(FILED SEP 29'14)

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
(FILED APRIL 18'14)

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
(FILED APRIL.18'14)

CERTIFICATE OF MAILING
(FILED NOV 14'1le6)

CERTIFICATE PF MAILING
(FILED NOV 9'20)

CERTIFICATE OF MAILING
(FILED MAR 21'22)
CERTIFICATE OF MAILING
(FILED FEB 11'21)

CERTIFICATE OF MAILING
(FILED NOV 23'20)

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
(FILED AUG ‘4'14)

CERTIFICATE OF MAILING
(FILED APR 21'21)

INDEX OF PLEADINGS

PAGE NO.

2430

280

227 -

232

1510

. 3366-3367

4019-4020

3907-3910

3372-3375

269

3929-3930

CERTIFICATE OF THAT NO TRANSCRIPT

IS BEING REQUESTED
(FILED JAN 18'19)

CLERK’S CERTIFICATE
(FILED JUL 22'20)

3013-3014

3049

CLERKS CERTIFICATE (SUPREME COURT)

(FILED JAN 14'16)_

EVIDENCE IN MITIGATION
(FILED APR 14'15)

1485

999-1003

VOL. NO.
(VOL. 18
(voL. 2)
(VOL. 2)
(VOL. 2)
(VOL. 11)
(VOL. 25
(VOL. 31
(VOL. 30)
(VOL. 25)
(VOL. 2)
(VOL. 30)
(VOL. 22
(VOL. 22)
(VOL. 11
(VOL. 6)
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DESCRIPTION

EX PARTE MOTION FOR FUNDS FOR
INVESTIGATOR
(FILED APRIL 7'17)

EX PERTE MOTION -FOR LEAVING TO HIRE
INVESTIGATOR
(FILED APRIL 14'17)

EX PARTE INVOICE AND REQUEST
FOR PAYMENT
(FILED APRIL 3'17)

EX PARTE APPLICATION FOR ADDITIONAL
INVESTIGATIVE FEES
(FILED JAN 2'15)

EX PARTE INVOICE AND REQUEST FOR
PAVMENT o ‘
(FILED JUL 24'17)

EX PARTE MOTION FOR FUNDS FOR A
CRIME "SCENE " o
(FILE AUG -8'18)

EX PARTE MOTION FOR INTERPRETER FEES
(FILED MAY 16'18) *~ - = - -

EX PARTE "MOTION FOR FUNDS FOR A
PSYCHIATRIC EXPERT
(FILED AUG 8'18)

EX -PARTE MOTION FOR INVESTIGATION FEES
(FILED MAY 16'18)

EX PARTE MOTION FOR POST CONVICTION
REPRESENTATION EXPERT

(FILED AUG 8'18)

EX -PARTE MOTION FOR FUNDS FOR
LINGUISTICS EXPERT

(FILED OCT 25'18)

EX PARTE.APPLICATION FOR FEES {SEALED)
(FILED DEC 26'14)

PAGE NO.

1550-1552
1553-i556
1546-1548
462-467

1569-;570

2441-2443

1971-1974
2433-2436
1984-198¢6
2444-2447

2526-2530

445-44"7

VOL. NO. |.
'(VOL. 11)
(VOL. 11
(VoL. 11
(VOL. 3)
(VOL.(}l‘
(VOL. 18
(VOL. 14
(VOL. 18
(VOL. 14
(VOL. 18
(voﬁ. is
(VOL. 3)
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DESCRIPTION

EX- PARTE APP ICATION FOR FEES (SEALED)
(FILED DEC 26'14)

EX PARTE APPLICATION FEES (SEALED)

(FILED APRIL 17'14)

EX PARTE APPLICATION FOR FUNDS (SEALED)

(FILED NOV 17'14).

EX PARTE MOTION FOR INTERPRETER
(FILED AUG 16'18)

EX PARTE REQUEST FOR PAYMENT (SEALED)
(FILED DEC 5'14)

EX PARTE MOTION FOR INVESTIGATION FEES
(FILED MAY 16'18)

EX PARTE APPLICATION FOR FUNDE FOR
EXPERT WITNESS (SEALED)
(FILED DEC 5'14)

EX PARTE.REQUEST FOR PAYMENT
(FILED FEB 6'15)

EX PARTE MOTION FOR EXPERT WITNESS
FEES
(FILED MAR 7'19)

EXHIBITS FILED
(FILED JAN 4'21)

EXHIBITS FILED
(FILED JAN 4'21)
EXHIBITS FILED
(FILED JAN 4'21)

FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE FORM(SEALFD)
(FILED NOV 14'16)

INDEX OF EXHIBITS
(FILED NOV~9'20)

PAGE NO.

442 420
228-231
282-339
2454-2456

347-348

.. 1975-1983

786-~787

3016-3029
3693-3780
3552-3654
3655-3692
1502-1507

3155-3256

VOL.. NO.
(va. 3)
(VOL. 2)
(VOL. 3)
(VOL. 18
(VOL. 2).
(VOL. 14)
(VOL. 2)
(VOL. 5)
(VOL.. 22)
(VOL. 29)
(VOL. 28)
(VOL. 29
(VOL. 11
(VOL. 24




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

INDEX OF PLEADINGS

DESCRIPTION

INDEX GCF EXHIBIT(S)
(FILED NOV 9'20)

INDEX OF EXHIBITS
(FILED NOV 9'20)

'INFORMATION

(FILED APRIL 8'14)

INSTRUCTION TCO THE JURY
(FILED FEB 5'15)

ISSUED WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS
(FILED MAY 24'18)

JUDGMENT OF CONVICTION
(FILED APR 21'15)

JURY VENIRE

(FILED JAN 5'15)

JURY- VERDICT
(FILED FEB 5'15)

LIST OF TRIAL JURORS
(PILED JAN 5'15)

MCTION TO COMPEL COMPLIANCE

" WITH DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS

(FILED SEP 4'18)

(FILED DEC 12114) -

MOTION TO STRIKE BRIEF REGARDING

STRUCTURAL. ERROR OR, IN THE

ALTERNATIVE, MOTION FOR SUFFICIENT
TIME TO RESPOND TO BRIEF IN WRITING

(FILED -SEP 18'18)

MOTION IN LIMINE REGARDING CRIME
SCENE AND AUTOPSY PHOTOGRAPHS

PAGE NO.

3257-3278

3279-3363

55-60

719-758

2422-2423

1016-1018

471
710-718

470
2475-2478

356-360

2500-2502

VOL. NO.

(VOL.
(VOL.
(VOL.
(VOL.
(VOL.
(VOL.
(VOL.

(VOL.
(VOL.

(VOL.

(VOL.

(VOL.

24)

25)

18

2)

18)
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ESCRIPTION PAGE NO.

MOTION TO EXCLUDE TESTIMONY
OF NATASHA KHARIKOVA -
(FILED OCT 29'18) ' 2532-2535

MOTION FOR COURT APPOINTED FEES WITH
AFFIDAVIT IN SUPPORT THEREOF
rFILED APRIL 17714) - 221-223

MOTION FOR COURT ORDER TO ALLOW

DEFENSE INSPECTION OF SCENE OF

ALLEGED OFFENSE

(FILED DEC 31'14) . 455-458

MOTION TO RESPONDENT “MOTION TO

DISMISS PRO PER SECOND POST CONVICTION

PETITION FOR A WRIT OF HABEAS”

(FILED JAN 11'21) . 3781-3784

MOTION TO PROCEED IN FORMA
PAUPERIS :
(FILED MAY 11'15) ' 1078-1079

MOTION -TO WITHDRAW COUNSEL
(FILED NOV $'20) 3058-3066

-MOTION IN LIMINE REGARDINO DEATH

CERTIFICATE
(FILED DEC 26'14) 424-441

MOTION TO DISMISS PRO PER THIRD POST

CONVICTION PETITION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS

CORPUS '

(FILED APRIL 5'22) 4023-4026

MOTION IN LIMINE REGARDING

UNCHARGED MISCONDUCT AND COLLATERAL

OFFENSES

(FILED DEC 29'14) - 448-451

MOTION FOR DISMISS PRO PER SECOND POST
CONVICTION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS
(FILED NOV 19'20) 3368-3371

VOL. NO.
(VOL.. 19)
(VOoL. 2)
(VOL. 3)
(VOL. 30)
(VOL. 7)
(VOL.22)
(VOL.. 3)
(VOL. 31
(VOL. 3)
(VOL. 25
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DESCRIPTION

MOTION FOR EXTENSION OF TIME TO FILE
SUPPLEMENTAL PETITION FOR WRIT OF
HABEAS CORPUS '

(FILED JAN 24'18)

MOTION FOR FUNDS FOR INTERPRETER
/FILED MAY 9‘17)

MOTION FOR PRODUCTION OF JAVS
RECORDINGS
(FILED MAY 9'17)

MOTION FOR PETITION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS
CORPUS (SECOND POST CONVICTION)
(FILED JAN 4'21)

MOTION FOR PETITION TO T"S’I’ABLISH
FACTUAL INNOCENCE ‘
(FILED JAN 4'21)

MOTION I:‘OR PFTTTIOV FOR EN
BANC RECONSIDERATION -
(FILED JAN 3'22) .

MOTION FOR APPOINTMENT OF COUNSEL
(FILED Nov 14}16)

MOTION FOR. ENLARGEMENT OF
TIME
(FILED APRIL 11'18)

MOTION IN LIMINE REGARDING JUROR-
QUESTIONING OF WITNESSES
(FILED DEC 12'14) o

MOTION IN -LIMINE REGARDING TESTIMONY
CONCERNING CRIME SCENE RECONSTRUCTION
BY MATTHEW NOEDEL C

(FILED-.JAN 20'15)

MOTION TO CONTINUE
(FILED AUG 4'14) -

PAGE NO.

1574-1579

1561-1564
1558-~-1560
3445-3446
$447—3448

3933-3942

1508-1509%
1493-1497
351-355

588-693

270-275

VOIL:. NO.

(VOL.
(VOL.
(VOL.

(VOL.

(VOL.
(VOL.
(VOL.

(VOL.

(VOL.

11)

31)

11)

11

2)
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DESCRIPTION

MOTION TO RECONSIDER DECISION
(FILED FEB 11'21)

MOTION TO WITHDRAW REQUEST FOR
PAYMENT FIREARM 1 '
(FILED MAR 6'15)

MOTION TO RECONSIDER DECISION

- (FILED" FEB 1r21)

MOTION TO WITHDRAW COUNSEL
(FILED OCT 6'16)

NON OFPOSITION TO DEFENDANTS MOTION
IN LIMINE RE: UNCHARGED MISCONDUCT AND

COLLATERAL OFFENSES
(FILED JAN 12'15)
NOTICE OF APPEAL
(FILED JAN 18'18)

NOTICE OF APPEAL
(FILED JUN 21'22)

NOTICE OF APPEAL
(FILED MAY 11'15)

NOTICE OF APPEAL
(FILED FEB 22'21)

NOTICE COF ASSOCIATION OF COUNSEL

(FILED SEP 17'18)

NOTICE OF ENTRY OF ORDER
(FILED MAY 25'18) :

NOTICE OF ENTRY OF ORDER
(FILED DEC 24'18)

NOTICE OF ENTRY OF ORDER

(FILED JAN'21)

PAGE NO.

3864-3906

815

3815-3857

1486-1487

548-549

3007—3008
4035

1083—1084
3911-3914
2492-2493
2427-2429
2986-3004

3801-3814

VOL. NO.

(VOL. 30)
(VOL. 5)

(VOL. 30)
(VOL. 11)
(VOL.l3)

(VOL. ;2)
(VOL. 31)
(VOL. 7)

(VOL. 30)
(voL. 18)
(VOL. 18)
(VOL. 22)
(VOL. 30)
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DESCRIPTION

NOTICE
(FILED

NOTICE
(FILED

NOTICE
(FILED

NOTICE :
(FILED

NOTICE

OF EXPERT WITNESS
DEC 17'14)

OF EXPERT. WITNESS
JAN 6'15)

OF EXPERT .WITNESS
AUG’18) " -

OF EXPERT WITNESS
OCT 25'18)

IN LIEU OF REMITTITUR

(SUPREME COURT)

(FILED

NOTICE
(FTLED

NOTICE
(EI'ED

NOTICE
(FILED

NOTICE

MAR 15'22)

OF MOTION
NOV 9'20)

OF MOTION
NQV?9*20y -

OF NON-CAPITAL PROCEEDINGS

APRIL 8'14)

OF 'NON-OPPOSITION TO

DEFENDANTS MOTION IN LIMINE
REGARDING DEATH CERTTFICATE

(FILED

NOTICE
(FILED

NOTICE
(FILED

NOTICE
{FILED

NOTICE

DEC 29'14)

OF PROSECUTION TRIAL WITNESS

DEC 17'14)

OF WITNESS
JEN 20'15)

OF WITNESSES
SEP’lDle)

OF WITHDRAWAL OF MOTION FOR

COURT ORDER TO ALLOW DEFENSE

INSPECTION OF  SCENE OF ALLEGED

PAGE NO.

369-412

472-536 -
2458-2474

2521-2525

3954

3050-3052

68-69

452-453
361-268
585-587

2485-2487

VOL. NO.
(VOL. 2)
(VOL. 3)
(VOL. 18)
(VOL. 18)
(VOL. 231
(VOL. 22)
(VOL. 22)
(VOL. 1)
(VOL. 3)
(VOL. 2)
(VOL. 4)
(VOL.. 18)
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INDEX OF PLEADINGS

DESCRIPTION

OFFENSE
(FILED JAN 12'15)

OPPOSITION TO STATE’S MOTION TO

INCREASE BAIL
(FILED APRIL 11'14)

OPPOSITION TO DEFENDANTS

"MOTION. TO LIMINE RE: CRIME SCENE

RECONSTRUCTION
(FILED JAN 22'15)
ORDER OF AFFIRMANCE
(FILED FEB 8'22)

ORDER FOR PAYMENT
(FILED 24'17)

ORDER DENYING REHEARING
(FILED JAN 14'22)

ORDER
(FILED SEP 27'17)

ORDER OF AFFIRMANCE
(FILED DEC :20'21)

ORDER TO CONTINUE
(FILED AUG 4'14)

(FILED JAN 30'18)

ORDER DIRECTING TRANSMISSION OF RECORD

AND REGARDING BRIEFING
(FILE MAR 23'21)

ORDER’
(FILED MAY 11'17)

ORDER GRANTING EXTENSION OF TIME

PAGE NO.

546-547

71-80

694-700

3947-3949

1571

3943

1573
3931-3932
276

1584

3918-391¢

1566

VOL. NO.
(VOL. 3)
(VOL. 1)
(VOL. 5)
(VOL. 31
(voL. 11
(VOL. 31
(VOL. 11
(VOL. 31
(VOL. 2)
(VOL. 11
(VoL. 30
(VOL. 11
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DESCRIPTION

ORDER FOR APPOINTMENT OF CO COUNSWL
(FILED OCT 1'14)

ORDER _
(FILED APRIL 12'18)

ORDER AUTHORIZING FUNDS FOR EMPLOYMENT
OF A FORENSIC PATHOLOGIST AND SEALING
APPLICATION AND ORDER (SEALED)

(FILED NOV 17'14)

- ORDER -

(FILED MAY 14'15)

ORDER
(FILED MAY 11'17)

ORDER GRANTING EX PARTE -MOTION FOR: "=
INVESTIGATION FEES
(FILED MAY- 17'18)

ORDER GRANTINu EX PARTE- MOTION FOR'
INTERPRETER FEES
(rILED MAY 17'18)

ORDER GRANTING- EX 'PARTE MOTION FOR
INVESTIGATION”FEES
(FILED MAY 17”18)”_

ORDER -
(FILED FEB 5'21)

ORDER FOR PAYMENT (SEALED)
(FILED DEC 8114)

ORDER AUTHORIZING FUNDS FOR FORENSIC
PATHOLOGIST 'AND SEALING APPLICATION
AND ORDnR(SWALED)

(VILmD DEC 9’14)

ORDER: DENYING PETITION (SUPREME COURT)
(FILED FEB 22'22) .

PAGE NO.

281

1970

340
1088-1089

1565
1987
1988
1089

3862-2863

349

VOL. NO.
(VOL.. 2)
(VOL. 14)
(VOL. 2)
(VOL.. 7)
(VOL. 11)
(VOL.. -14)
(VOL. 14)
(VOL. 14)
(VOL:.. 30)
(VOL. 2)
(VOL. 2)
(VOL. 31)
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INDEX OF PLEADINGS

DESCRIPTION

ORDER GRANTING MOTION FOR LEAVE
TO HIRE INVESTIGATOR
(FILED APRIL 17'17) .

OﬁDER FOR PAYMENT OF ATTORNEY FEES
(FILED APRIL 21V14)

ORDER FOR ISSLANCE OF WRIT OF HABEAS
CORPUS )
(FILED MAY ?4'18)

ORDER 4
(FILED JAN 11'21)

ORDER TRANSFERRING CASE TO DEPARTMENT 1
VACATING THE HEARING SET FOR DECEMBER
22, 2014 AND CONFIRMING THE TRIAL DATE
OF 'CANUARY 27, 2015 AT 9:00AM A
(FILED DEC 19'14)

ORDER SETTING TRIAL
(FILED APRIIL 21'14)

ORDER CONFIRMING TRIAL DATES AND
SETTING FPRE-TRIAL CONFERENCE
("IuED DEC 24'14)

ORDER FOR PAYMENT
(FILED APRIL 4'17)

ORDER
{FILED JUNE 23'17)

ORDER - FOR PAYMENT
(FILED MAR 9'15)

ORDER R
(FILED AUG 9'18)

ORDER TO PRODUCE  PRISONER
(FILED AUG 9'18)

PAGE NO.

1557

241

2421

3789-3800

239-240

415-416
1549

1568

998
2448-244°9

2450

VOL. NO.
(VOL. 11)
(VoL. 2)
(VOL. 18)
(VOL.. 30)
(VOL. 2)
(VOL. 2)
(VOL.. 2)
(VvoL. 11)
(VOoL. 11)
(VOL. 6)
(VOL. 18)
(voi. 18)
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INDEX OF PLEADINGS

DESCRIPTION

ORDER

(FILED AUG 9'18)

ORDER N
(FILED AUG 9'18)

ORDER- :
(FILED AUG 9'18)

ORDER CALLING JURY
(FILED JAN 2'15)

ORDER GRANTING EX PARTE MOTICN
FOR INTERPRETER FEES
(FILED AUG 20'18)

ORDER
(FILED JUN 21'22)

ORDER: FOR.'PAYMENT (K. BROWN)
(FILED FEB 23'15)

CORDER' SHORTENING TIME TO RESPOND
TO MOTION TO COMPEL
(FILED AEP 6'18)

ORDER AUTHORIZING ADDITIONAL FEES
FOR EMPLOYMENT OF AN INVESTIGATOR
AND TO SEAL PLEADINGS (SEALED)

(FILED JAN 2'15)

ORDER
{FILED JAN 3'17)

ORDER " -

(FILED SEP 13'18)

ORDER ALLOWING THE DEFENSE TO
PURCHASE WEAPON . -

(FILED JAN 5'15)

ORDER
(FILED NOV 28'16)

PAGE NO.

2451

2452

2453

459-460

2457

4031-4034

814
2479
461
1545

2490-2491

468

1540-1541

VOL. NO.
(VOoL. 18)
(VOL. 18)
(VOL. 18)
(VOL. 3)
(VOL. 18)
(VOL. 31)
(VOL. 5)
(VOL. 18)
(VOL. 3)
(VOL. 11)
(VOL. 18)
(VOL. 3)
(VOL. 11)
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INDEX OF PLEADINGS

DESCRIPTICN

ORDER FOR PAYMENT (FORENSIC TECH)
(rILED FEB 23'15)

ORDER FOR PAYMENT (NANCY STRAYERN)
(FILED FEB 23'15)

ORDER SETTING CONTINUES HEARING
(FILLD SEP 19'18)

ORDER AUTHORIZING FEES FOR EMPLOYMENT

-OF -INVESTIGATOR AND TO SEAL PLEADINGS

(SEALED)
(FILED APRIL 17'14)

ORDER GRANTING MOTION IN LIMINE
REGARDING JURCR QUESTIONING OF
WITNESS

(FILED JAN 12'15)

ORDER INCREASING BAIL
(FILED APRIL 14'14)

ORDER TO PRODUCE PRISONER

(FILED OCT 1'18)

ORDER
(FILED OCT 25'18)

ORDER OF AFFIRMANCE
(FILED DEC 21'15)

ORDER
(FILED DEC 23'20)

ORDER RE: MOTION IN LIMINE
REGARDING DEATH CEPTIFICDTE
\FILFD JAW 14'15) '

ORDER RE: MOTION IN LIMINE REGARDING
UNCHARGED MISCONDUCT AND COLLATERAL
OFFENSES -

(FILED JAN 14'15)

PAGE NO.

813
812

2503

219

82-83
2520

2531
1479-1480

3387-3389

552

NO

VOL. .

(VOL.
(VOL.

(VOL,.

(VOL.

(VOL.
ZVOLf
(VOL.
(VOL.
(voL.

(VOL.

(VOL.

(VOL.

18)

1)

18

18

11

26

4)
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INDEX OF PLEADINGS

DESCRIPTION

ORDER APPOINTING COUNSEL
(FILED APRIL 14'14)

ORDER AUTHORIZING FEES FCR EMPLOYMENT
OF R FORNSIC INVESTIGATOR
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TUESDAY, JANUARY 27, 2015, MINDEN, NEVADA
—o0o-

THE COURT: This is Case 14CR62, State of Nevada
versus Tatiana Leibel. Ms. Leibel is present. She is
represented by her attorneys, Ms. Brown and Ms. Henry. The
Stafe is represented by Mr. Gregory.

Before we proceed any further, I want to have the
interpreters for Ms. Leibel sworn. The two interpreters are
Ms. Anna Sosnovskoya and Zoya Spivakovsky, and so if the two
interpreters would please stand.

(Whereupon, the two interpreters were duly
sworn. )

THE COURT: The record should reflect that I
believe there's also a representatiye of the Russian
Federation heré. Please raise your hand. Welcome, sir.

Ms. Brown, Ms. Henry, your table is quite full.
We've tried to make accommodations for you to have a spot to
put all of your paperwork and such, but you do have an
investigator here. There's not room at your table, it does
not appear, for your investigator to sit there, but your
investigator is welcome to sit immediately behind you
throughout the course of your proceedings. I need to know if
that's sat%éfactory to you?

MS. BROWN: That's working so far, Your Honor.

CAPITOL REPORTERS (775)882-5322
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THE COURT: Mr. Gregory, you have an investigator
here with your office. |

MR. GREGORY: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: And I see Mr. Schultz here. If you
would like for him to sit at counsel table with you, you have
the Court's permission to do so.

MR. GREGORY: Thank you, Your Honor. I think he
will most likely be in and out, so he can remain back in the
gallery.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. GREGORY: Thank you.

THE COURT: Thank you. It's my intention to
bring up the potential jurors now, unless there are other
issues that you want to address before we do that,

Mr. Gregory?

MR. GREGORY: None for the State, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Ms. Brown?

MS. BROWN: None for the defense, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Could I ask the bailiffs to bring up
the potential jurors and fill up the seats back there. )

(Whereupon, the prospective jurors were brought
into the courtroom.)

THE COURT: Have a seat anywhere where you're

comfortable. We're waiting for one more person. This is the

CAPITOL REPORTERS (775)882-5322
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longest it's been quiet in this room in a long time except
for last night.

Fill in any empty seat that you can find, please.
I promise you being in the front row has nothing to do with
being selected.

Well, good morning, ladies and gentlemen.

Welcome to Department One of the Ninth Judicial District
Court, State of Nevada. You have been called to be potential
jurors in a case, and this case is Case Number 14CR62, the
State of Nevada versus Tatiana Leibel. .

Now, lét ﬁe introduce the people around you, énd
then we'll talk a little bit about the process that you're
going to go through this morning. From having spent years in
this courtroom, both as a judge and an attorney beforé that,
I'm aware that in this corner back here, the ventilation
system makes it wvery difficult for you to hear what is being
said up here, so I'm speaking kind of loudly, not to yell at
you, but to make sure that you can hear me. Anyone who can't
hear, well, it doesn't do any good to say if you éan't hear,
raise your hand, does it? But if you experience some
difficulty hearing and you heard that éart, raise your hand
and let me know.

The —- I'm your judge. I work for you. My name

is Tod Young, and I'm a district court judge here. The lady

-CAPITOL REPORTERS (775)882-5322
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who sits to my right is Kristin Wilfert. She's the court
clerk. Her job is to help me keep track of the exhibits, to
take notes and to hélp manage the course of the trial.

In front of me is our court reporter, is
Ms. Kathy Jackson. She has the amazing capacity to write
down everything that gets said as it gets said. I know how
to practice lawf I did it for 30 years. I never understood
how the court reporters kept track of everything that got
said. I think it's one of the most difficult jobs in the
courtroom, and shé does a fantastic job of it, but that's
what she's doing right now, and she'll do that throughout the
course of the trial. There may be other people that
substitute in for her duging the course of the trial as other
court reporters. I don't know if Ms. Jackson will be here
every single day, but we'll see.

The gentleman who sits over here is Mr., John
Sutton. He works for me. He's a lawyer. He's my law clerk,
preparing orders and will act also as one of the bailiffs
during the course of this trial and help keep track of the
Jury.

The other bailiffs are over here, Mr. Eric
Lindsey, who is a deputy. All three of them are deputies,
Mr. Rick Sousa, Mr. David Nishikida. They are responsible

for security generally and for making sure that the jury is

CAPITOL REPORTERS (775)882-5322
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is not bothered. If there's something that a juror needs,
the jurors are going to tell the bailiffs. The bailiffs will
let me know. They are responsible, again, for general
security, not only in the courtroom. here, but in the
courthouse in general. They enforce my orders and they willr
take charge of the jury when I ask them to do so.

So, again, if you have an inquiry concerning your
personal welfare apart from this case, you should make an
inquiry to one of the bailiffs, who will, if necessary,
arrange for you to meet with me so that I can hear whatever
your concern is.

I want you to know that I respect the fact that
you're not at home today. You're not at work. You're not
taking care of your kids, whatever else you would have been
doing. You're here, not just because you got summoned to be
a potential juror in this case, but you're here fulfilling
what, in fact, is a civic duty, and it's one of the things
that make our country such a wonderful place to live is that
we exercise the power of government to determine whether
someone has committed a crime or not by having a trial in
front of a jury of our peers. You are the peers.

You are the representatives of this community,
who come in and fulfill the role of citizenry and that effort

on your part, your time, your thoughts, what you're not doing

CAPITOL REPORTERS (775)882-5322
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with your family is all appreciatéd and respected by me and
all of my staff. I know that there are jokes in the
community sometimes about trying to avoid jury service but as
I just explained, serving on a jury is one of the obligations
of citizenry, and it's one of the ways that we as citizens
make sure our government works as it's supposed to.

Is the plaintiff ready to proceed?

MR. GREGORY: The State is ready, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Would you introduce yourself, please.

MR. GREGORY: I will. Good morning, folks. My
name is Tom Gregory. I'm the chief deputy district attorney
here for Douglas County. I'll be representing the State of
Nevada in these proceedings.

THE COURT: Thank you. Is the defense ready?

MS. BROWN: The defense is ready, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Would you introduce yourself, please.

MS. BROWN: Thank you, Your Honor. My name is
Kristine Brown. I'm one of the attorneys representing
Ms. Leibel in this case. This is Jamie Henry. We also have
an investigator present in the courtroom. This is Dustin
Great. If he's not talking to you, he's not being rude.
He's following the judge's orders.

THE COURT: Now, ultimately 14 of you will be

chosen to be on this jury, 14. Well, that's a jury of 12 and

CAPITOL REPORTERS (775)882-5322
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think I'm an alternate. I don't have to really pay attention

two alternates. The alternates won't know who the alternates

are until the end of the trial, so you can't sit up there and

because wefll select the alternate at the end of the trial.
We'll go through a process this morning that helps'us select
the 14 members of the community who will serve on this Jjury.

To begin that process, the clerk is going to call
some names, and we'll have those people come and sit down
here but before we do that, we're going to call everyone's
name that got summbned this morning so that I know who
responded to the summons and who appeared and who did not.

| So to begin with, Ms. Wilfert is going to call
the roll.

THE CLERK: If I don't speak loud enough, just
holler at me or if you need to correct the way I say your
name, just go ahead and speak up.

THE COURT: When she calls your name, if you
could just signify by saying here or present or something
like that, that will work.

THE CLERK: Okay. Steven Albert?

MR.'ALBERT: Here. |

THE ‘COURT: Allen Alexander.

MR. ALEXANbER: Here.

THE CLERK: Ashli Alexander? Ashli Alexander?

CAPITOL REPORTERS (775)882-5322
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Doris Azevedo? Doris Azevedo?

Michel Balda-?

MR. BALDA: Right here.

THE CLERK: Samantha Barns?

Rhonda Bavaro?

MS. BAVARO: Here.

THE CLERK: Brandon Bernard?

Therese Born? Therese Born?

James Butler?

MR. BUTLER: Here.

THE CLERK: Christopher Buxton?

Raul Cabagnot?

MR. CABAGNOT: Here.

THE CLERK: Rudolph
Susan Clark?

MS. CLARK: Here.

Campbell? Rudolph Campbell?

THE CLERK: Patricia Corwin?

MS. CORWIN: Here.

THE CLERK: Corwin,

I'm sorry.

Kenmneth Cowden? Kenneth Cowden?

' Salvatore Disalvo?

Kevin Dolan?

MR. DOLAN: Here.

CAPITOL REPORTERS
9
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Christopher
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THE CLERK: Sharon Dublanc?
MS. DUBLANC: Here.

THE CLERK: Troy Dumas?

MR. DUMAS: Here.

THE CLERK: Audrey Ellbogen?
MS. ELLBOGEN: Here.

THE CLERK: Patrick Ezekiel?
MR. EZEKIEL: Ezekiel.

THE CLERK: Ezekiel, thank you.
MR. EZEKIEL: Here.

THE CLERK: Wallace Farnham.
MS. FARNHAM: Here.

THE CLERK: Katherine Funk.
MS. FUNK: Here.

THE COURT: Maria Garcia?

MS. GARCIA: Here.

THE CLERK: Denise Geissinger?
MS. GEISSINGER: Here.

THE CLERK: Lucile Gillett?
MS. GILLETT: Gillett, here.
THE CLERK: Gillett, thank you.
Anita Gonzales?

MS. GONZALES{ Here.

THE CLERK: Marlene Goodwin?

CAPITOL REPORTERS (775)882-5322
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MS. GOODWIN: Here.

THE CLERK: Deborah Graf?
MS. GRAF: Here.

THE CLERK: Harry Pissamai?

MR. PISSAMAI: Here.

THE CLERK: Okay. Douglas Hash?

Dawn Havens?

MS. HAVENS: Here.

THE CLERK: Lance Hipple?
MR, HIPPLE: Here.

THE CLERK: William Jones?
MR. JONES: Here.

THE CLERK: Richard Kelsh?
MR.'KELSH: Here.

THE CLERK: Edwin Kingham?
MR. KINGHAM: Here.

THE CLERK: Raymond Klein?
MR. KLEIN: Here.

THE CLERK: Elaine Kyle?
MR: KYILE: Here.

THE CLERK: Whit Landvater?
MR. LANDVATER: Here.

THE CLERK: Anthony Lundy?

John Lynn? John Lynn?

11
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Jeanette Manzano?

MR. MANZANO:

THE CLERK:

MS. MARLOW:

THE CLERK:

MR. MARTIN:

THE CLERK:

.MS. MARTIN:

THE CLERK:

MS. MATHERS:

THE CLERK:

Here.

Mary Marlow?
Here.

Billy Martin?
Here.

Suzanne Martin?
Here.

Nichole Mathers?
Here.

Patricia Matthews?

MS. MATTHEWS: Here.

THE CLERK:

MS. MATUS:

THE CLERK:

MR. MCKAY:

THE CLERK:

MS. MCNEIL:

THE CLERK:

MR. MOORE:

THE CLERK:

Tamara Matus?
Here.
Mary McKay —-- Mark McKay,
Here.
Kelly McNeil?
Here.
Davie Moore?
Here.

Barry Morningstar?

MR. MORNINGSTAR: Here.

THE CLERK:

MR. MORROW:

CAPITOL REPORTERS (775)882-5322
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Peneueta?

THE CLERK: Russell Mortellaro?

MR, MORTELLARO: Here.

THE CLERK: Byran Moss?

MR. MOSS: Here.

THE CLERK: Gail Nault? Gail Nault?
Jack Norberg?

MR. NORBERG: Here.

THE CLERK: Andrew Oddo?

MR. ODDO: Right here.

THE CLERK: Victoria Peneueta? Victoria

Eric Petrie?

MR. PETRIE: Here.

THE CLERK: Leaann Randall.
MS. RANDALL: Here.

THE CLERK: Marcy Rouse?
MS. ROUSE: Here.

THE CLERK: Kyle Russell?
MR. RUSSELL: Here.

THE CLERK: Craig Schorr?
MR. SCHORﬁ: Here.v

THE CLERK: Terry Schrecker?
Rita Stewart?

MS. STEWART: Here.

CAPITOL REPORTERS (775)882-5322
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THE CLERK: Linda Strickland?
MS. STRICKLAND: Here.

THE CLERK: Susan Stugart?
MS. STUGART: Here.

THE CLERK: Shgron Thompson?
MS. THOMPSON: Here.

THE CLERK: Thomas Tittle?
MR. TITTLE: Here.

THE CLERK: Elaine Trent?

MS. TRENT: Here.

THE CLERK: Trent Unruh?

MR, UNRUH: Present.

THE CLERK: Donna Unsinn?

MR. UNSINN: Here.

THE CLERK: Danette Vargas? Danette Vargas?
Sarah Vido? Sarah Vido?

Lisa Watson?

MS. WATSON: Here.

THE CLERK: Deborah Wood?
4MS. WOOD: Here.

THE CLERK: Steven Yateé?

MR. YATES: Here.

THE CLERK: Thank you so much;

THE COURT: To all of you who are here, again,

CAPITOL REPORTERS (775)882-5322
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thank you for being here.

Madam clerk, those who did not appear in response
to a summons, an order to show cause will issue as to why
they should not be held in contempt of this Court.

Now, let me talk to you a little bit about before
we begin the general session of selecting jurors. ZLet me
talk a little about the issue of being able to hear and to
see oOr maybe being ill.

Is there anyone in the room who has such a
difficulty with their hearing or their eyesight or their
health in some other fashion such that they feel that that
would prevent them from serving on this jury. If so, just
raise your hand. This is not intended to embarrass anyone
but if you have health issues, please let me know. So if you
would raise your hand.

Ma'am, would you stand up, pledse. And could you
tell me your name, please. |

MS. STRICKIAND: Linda Strickland.

THE COURT: Yes, ma'am, Ms. Strickland; what is
your health concern?

MS. STRICKLAND: It's hard for me to sit for a
long time. I have fibromyalgia, and I also have to use the
restroom a lot.

THE COURT: Okay. Are you on any medication?

CAPITOL REPORTERS (775)882-5322
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MS. STRICKLAND: No, nothing that would effect my
body.

THE COURT: As we go through this trial, it is
generally my practice to take a break about every hour and a
half. TWould that be sufficient for you?

MS. STRICKLAND: Yes, it would.

THE COURT: Would you be able to serve given
that? ’

MS. STRICKLAND: Yes.

THE COURT: Okay. If you believe that your
health issue would keep you from serving, given that
informatibn, I need you to tell me so.

MS. STRICKIAND: I think I could do it, yes.

THE COURT: Thank you, ma'am.

There was a gentleman behind her. Sir?

MR, CABAGNOT: Good morning, Your Honor. I'm
Raul Cabagnot.

THE COURT: Your last name, sir?

MR. CABAGNOT: Cabagnot.

THE COURT: Yes, sir?

MR. CABAGNOT: I'm a diabetic person.

THE COURT: You're what?

MR. CARAGNOT: Diabetic.

THE COURT: Diabetic?

CAPITOL REPORTERS (775)882-5322
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MR. CABAGNOT: Yes. So I just use the bathroom
often becausevmy -— and I can hardly see. Sometimes, you
know, my vision is blurry.

THE COURT: Because of your diabetes, sir?

MR. CABAGNOT: I bring my prescription. I take
this twice a day.

THE COURT: Yes, sir. So did you hear me explain
that generally we take a break about every hour and a half.

MR. CABAGNOT: Yeah, I Cén do that.

THE COURT: Would that be sufficient for you?

MR. CABAGNOT: Yes.

THE COURT: Would you be able to serve if we
broke about every hour and a half?

| MR. CABAGNOT: Yeah.

THE COURT: That's for the convenience of the
Court and tﬁe employees and particularly for Ms. Jackson
because if you all can imagine what it would be like to go
longer than that trying to write down e&ery single word
that's said, so we do break about every hour and a half about
15 minutéSVOr so, and we take a lunch break also. Would that
work for you, sir?

MR. CABAGNOT: Yes.

THE COURT: Okay. Thank you. Thank you for

telling me.

CAPITOL REPORTERS (775)882-5322
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Yes, ma'am? Could you tell me who you are,
please.

MS. RANDALL: Leann Randall.

THE COURT: Yes, ma'am?

MS. RANDALL: I have an ingrown -- I got a hernia
and I had it checked last week, and they want me to see a
éurgeon on Friday because they think it's bad, and the bain
hasn't let up much.

Also, I'm a caregiver for my 82-year-old father,
so I'm under tremendous amounts of stress trying to take care
of him, and I'm bipolar, manic depressant, and I'm under a
lot of medications.

THE COURT: You don't have to tell me all of the
medications but let me ask you this, do you think the
medication that you take would make it difficult for you to
concentrate for long periods of time?

| MS. RANDALL: Yes, sir, especially the stress
I've been under. I forget things a lot now because of the
stress of taking -- being a caregiver with my father, and I
have contacted my therapist and notified him of my situation.

THE COURT: I'm going to excuse you, ma'am.

MS. RANDALL: Thank you, sir.

THE COURT: But I appreciate you beingvhere,

Ms. Randall.

CAPITOL REPORTERS (775)882-5322
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MS. RANDALL: Thank you.

THE COURT: Thank you for coming.

(Ms. Randall was excused.)

TﬁE COURT: Did anyone else have their hand up or
want to talk to me about a health issue?

- We've got a healthy group here today. That's
great.

Okay. Next, I want to talk to you about the
qualifications to be a juror and in order to do that, I am
going to read to you what the Nevada law says. Except as
otherwise provided in this section, eévery qualified elector
of the state whether registered or not who has sufficient
knowledge of the English language and who has not been
convicted of treason, a felony or other infamous crime and
who is not rendered incapable by reason of physical or mental
infirmity is a qualified juror of the county in which the
person resides. A person who has been convicted of a felony
is not a qualified juror of the county in which the person
resides until the person's civil rights to serve as a juror
has been restored.

So what that tells us is that, one, if English is
not your primary language and you have difficulty
understanding English, if you have been convicted of a felony

and not had your civil rights restored, if you're not a

CAPITOL REPORTERS (775)882-5322
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citizen of this county, a resident of Douglas County, then
you're not qualified to serve as a juror.

Is there anyone who would want to repoft to me °
that you have either been convicted of a felony, youire nét a
resident of this county or you don't understahd English well
enough to serve? Anyone fall into that category?

Yes, ma'am. Could you stand up, please.

\ MS. HARRY: My name is Pissamai Harry. I'm not
—-- English is not primary language for me.

THE COURT; Okay. Do you read and write the
English language?

MS. HARRY: I can read, but I can write, but I'm
not —— I understand correctly in court. I even have to do
something misunderstood and then something is going to be --

THE COURT: Are you a citizen of the United
States?

MS, HARRY: I am.

THE COURT: Okay. And have you understood what
I've said today?

MS. HARRY: I understand but if -- if I happen to
serve whatever thing but if something not really clear, you
know, maybe make everything worse. I would be concerned.

THE COURT: Any objection to me excusing her?

MR. GREGORY: No, Your Honor.

CAPITOL REPORTERS (775)882-5322
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MS. BROWN: No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Did you become a citizen afteé you
moved here?

MS. HARRY: Yes.

THE COURT: Well, congratulations for that, and I
think that's wonderful. Serving as a juror is part of being
a citizen, but it's very important to all of us citizens and
to the litigants here that the people who sit on the jury
understand everything that gets said, at least that they
don't have language problemé. And so because you've reported
to me that you might have difficulty with the language, I'm
going to egcuse you for this jury, and I'm going to count on
your English continuing to get better and maybe have yoﬁ back
for another jury. You are excused, ma'am. Thank you for
being here. (

(Ms. Harry was excused.)

THE COURT: Anyone else?

Now, you may be wondering how you got here.
Generally, I will tell you that our jury commissioner every
few years develops a list of prospective jurors and that's
done through a nﬁmber of different sources. We use
everything from telephone directories, voter registration
lists, tax roles, motor vehicle registration lists, utility

customer list and some other sources, and then we draw these

CAPITOL REPORTERS (775)882-5322
21

BB



10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23

24

gy
. Yy

names randomly and that's how you got chosen. So if you
don't ﬁave a registered car, that doesn't keep you from
getting pulled in or if you don't have electricity, that
doesn't keep you from getting pulled in. We try to make it
broad enough so we get a wide selection of the community, and
that'

how you ended up being here.

of this trial is two weeks. We're scheduled for the balance

of this week and all of next week, except for Tuesday of next

week

best

have

ready to go. We'll be moving right along. There may be
times when the jury is waiting for us to conduct some
business outside of their presence but I assure you, we will
be workiﬁg during that period of time to make sure that this

trial is concluded by the end of next week.

32 names. As your name is called, what I'm going to ask you

to do is to begin by filling the row in the back back here

s our goal in trying to develop a good jury pool, that's

I want to let you know that the probable duration

when the Court has some other matters calendared and
got to hear those issues. So I expect that this trial
conclude by Friday of next week.

Now, as we go through the process, I will do my
to try to eliminate unreasonable delays. The attorneys

already assured me that they will have their witnesses

Next, we're going to start with the clerk drawing

CAPITOL REPORTERS (775)882-5322
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and that will start with this seat back here or, okay, over
here in the corner by Mr. Sutton on the top, fill that back
row and then the next row, and then we'll fill these front
YOWS.

If your name is called, please stand up and come
forﬁard.

THE CLERK: Russell Mortellaro. William Jones.

MS. BROWN: What was the last name?

THE CLERK: William Jones.

Whit Landvater. Catherine Funk.

THE COURT: Ms. Funk, you have a child with you.

MS. FUNK: I do. She's sick and I didn't want to
get a babysitter, like spread the sickness. I also have an
ll-year-old daughter at home. I think she has strep throat.

THE COURT: Well, I don't want these jurors to
get siék and so what I'm going to do is I'm going to excuse
Ms. FUnkf

But, Ms. Funk, I need to let you know that it was
most appropriate that you get a babysitter for today because,
ma'am, when you told me you didn't want to spread the
sickness, you still brought your child into a room full of
people, so I understand that she's not well, and I'm going to
let you go home, okay.

MS. FUNK: T called and told them, and they said

CAPITOL REPORTERS (775)882-5322
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I had to bring her.

THE COURT: Well, I'll talk to those people.

(Ms. Funk was excused.)

THE COURT: Okay. Thank you. Another name.

THE CLERK: Sharon Thompson. Rhonda Bavaro.
Allen Alexander. Eric Petrie. Nichole Mathers. Richard
Kelsh. Kyle Russell. Marlene Goodwin. Elaine Trent.
Wallace Farnham, Jarrod Morrow. Patrick Ezekiel, Ezekiel,
sorry. James Butler. Donna Unsinn. Lisa Watson. Billy
Martin. Susan Stugart. Mary Marlow. Marcy Rouse.

THE COURT: Ms. Rouse?

MS. ROUSE: Rouse.

THE CLERK: Lance Hipple. Rita Stewart.
Patricia Matthéws. Anita Gonzales. Jack Norbert. Tamara
Matus. Sharon Dublanc. Kelly McNeil.

MS. MCNEIL: It's Walling.

THE COURT: Would you share that with me too.

THE CLERK: Ms. McNeil's last name is Walling,
W-a-1l-1-i-n-g.

THE COURT: Ms. McNeil's last name is Walling.
She'll be referred to in that fashion.

THE CLERK: Trent Unruh. Thomas Tittle.

THE'COURT: What was the last name?

THE CLERK: Tittle, Thomas Tittle.

CAPITOL REPORTERS (775)882-5322
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THE COURT: All right. Thank you. We'll let
Mr. Tittle get up here. No hurry, sir.

And now just because you remain in the back of
the room doesn't mean that you might. not get up to the front
of the room. So as I talk to you, it's important that
whether you're in the front up here or ¥ou're still in the
back that you listen carefully to these questions.

We're going to start though before I begin any
questioning with the‘clerk swearing all of the prospective
jurors, including those in the back. So if you would,
please, everyone rise. Face the clerk. Raise your right
hand.

(Whereupon, the prospective jurors were duly
sworn. )

THE COURT: Thank you. Have a seat. Now, ladies
and gentlemen, the following comments are directed to all
prospective jurors. It's important that you pay close
attention to what's going on now. It is not possible but it
is proﬁable that some of the people now up here in the front
of the room will be excused, and some of you outside the
rail, which is behind the lawyers here, will take their
places.

The purpose of what follows is to ascertain if

you're qualified under the law to serve as a juror in this

CAPITOL REPORTERS (775)882-5322
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particular case, that is are you so unrelated to the parties,
their attorneys and the facts of the case that you would be
able to act as a fair and impartial juror. To make this
determination, I will first ask a number of general questions
and give you some admonitions. Then the attorneys may ask
some specific questions. You're obligated by your oath which
you just took to answer all of these queétions fully and
truthfully.

If any of your answers appear to reveal a legal
basis for you to be excused as a juror, one of the attorneys
will challenge you. That is he or she will‘request that you
be excused. It's not like a dual,‘that sort of a challenge.
It's a legal term. You won't have to arm wrestle, I assure
you.

If the Court agrees with the reason stated for

the challenge, you'll be excused from further service in this

'case, and the name of another prospective juror will be

called and drawn up. These are called challenges for cause.
Once enough jurors have been éualified for cause, the
attorneys may then exercise another type of challenge called
a peremptory challenge, and each side ié allowed a number of
peremptory challenges. If either side for any reason or for
no reason at all makes this type of challenge, then I have no

alternative but to excuse you. It simply means that you have
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been excused and nothing more. You shouldn't read éﬁything
into it. The attorneys on each side attempt to seek a jury
they believe will be fair to their side and.to their cause,
and that's all this process is about.

During this questioning, I ask all of you to bear
in mind that neither I nor the attorneys want to embarrass
you or pry into your personal affairs but to discover if you
have any knowledge of the case; if you have any preconceived
opinions which you cannot lay aside or if you have experience
in your personal or family life that might cause you to
identify yourself with one or either party. These questions
are necessary to assure each party receives a fair and
impartial trial and a fair and impartial -jury.

I'm now going to ask some general questions that
I mentioned earlier and if any juror in the box would answer
the following questions affirmatively, I would ask you to.
raise your hand, and I'm going to start by speaking to the
folks up front, but it's important that the folks out in the
back listen to the questions because if you fill a spot,
you'll answer the same questions. |
- - If"yéﬁ-giQe ﬁe aﬁ affirmativeﬁéhswér, I may
explore the matter further, and the attorneys may also be
given a chance to do so later. I encourage you do not

hesitate to raise your hand if the question prompts you to do

CAPITOL REPCRTERS (775)882-5322
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so. The integrity of our entire judicial system depeﬁds upon
obtaining jurors who are disinterested, unbiased and
un-prejudice, and the only way we can do this is by asking
you these questions and relying oﬁ'you to give honest and
thorough‘answersf

éo to begin with, I'm going to start in the back
with Mr. Mortellaro and ask you to just stand and give me a
little bit of information. T would like to know -- I've got
your name, but can you tell me how long you've lived in
Douglas County, your occupation, and I'll ask you a couple of
others. You all will remember all of these questions by the
time we get down to the front.

So how long have you been ;n Douglas County, sir?

MR. MORTELLARO: A little over 11 years, 12 years

in July.

THE COURT: And what kind of work do you do?

MR. MORTELLARO: Financial analyst.

THE COURT: All right. Are you married or
single? |

MR. MORTELLARO: Married.

THE COURT: And does your spouse work?
MR. MORTELLARO: Yes.

THE COURT: What does your spouse do?

MR. MORTELLARO: She's an occupational therapist.

CAPITOL REPORTERS (775)882-5322
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THE INTERPRETER: This is the interpreter

speaking. Could Your Honor slow down with the questions,

please.

THE COURT:
this, if you haven't seen already, this whole proceeding is
being interpreted for Ms. Leibel, and so I need to go slower,
‘and periodically I may remind the lawyers to go a little bit
slower. That's also a very difficult job to interpret.

So your wife does what, sir?

MR. MORTELLARO: Occupational therapist.

THE. COURT:

children?

MR, MORTELLARO: Yes.
THE COURT:
MR. MORTELLARO: Almost 12.
THE COURT:
Mr. Jones, and just the same general questions, sir. How
long have you been in Douglas County?
MR. JONES:
THE COURT:
MR. JONES:
THE COURT:
MR, JONES:

THE COURT:

CAPITOL REPORTERS (775)882-5322

I could. As you'll see throughout

All right. Thank you. Do you have

How old are they?

Thank you. And we'll go to

Since 1975.

OCkay. Do you work, sir?

Not anymore.

Are you retired?

Yeah, unemployed slash retired.

What kind of work are you unemployed
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JONES: Equipment operator.

COURT: Okay. Are you married?
JONES: Yeah.

COURT: Does your wife work?

JONES: Uh-huh.

COURT: What does she do?

JONES: CPA.

COURT: Do you have children?
JONES: Yep.

COURT: And how old and how many?
JONES: Three, 21, 27 and 31.
COURT: Thank you, Mr.. Jones.
Landvater?

LANDVATER: Yes, sir.

COURT: How long have you been here?
LANDVATER: Approximately a little over 20
COURT: Okay. What do you do, sir?
LANDVATER: Self-employed.

COURT: Doing what?

LANDVATER: Web designer.

COURT: Web designer?

LANDVATER: Yes, sir.

(775)882-5322
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COURT: And are you married?

LANDVATER: Yes, sir.

COURT: Whét does your spouse do?
She's a‘béokkeeper.
COURT: Okay. Do yoﬁ have children?
LANDVATER: A 3l-year-old.

COURT: Thank you, sir.

Thompson, I bet you're starting to remember
How long have you been here?

THOMPSON:

Eight years.
COURT: Do you work, ma'am?
THOMPSON: I'm starting a new job on Tuesday
COURT: Good for you.
THOMPSON: Hopefully starting on Tuesday as a
COURT: Oh.
THOMPSON: I've been employed eight months
COURT: Yes, ma'am. Are you married?

THOMPSON: No.
COURT: Do you have children?
THOMPSON: No.

COURT: Thank you, ma'am,
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Ms. Bavaro?

MS. BAVARO: Bavaro.

THE COURT: Yes, ma'am. How long have you been
here? V
| MS. BAVARO: 32 years.

THE COURT: Do you work?

MS. BAVARO: Yes.

THE COURT: What do you do?

MS. BAVARO: I'm the deputy director of the
department of mofor vehicles.-

THE COURT: All right. Are you married?

MS. BAVARO: I am.

THE COURT: What does youf spouse do?

MS. BAVARO: My husband is a supervisor at
casino, and I have two sons, 31 and 33.

THE COURT: See, she jumped right to the next
question. Thank you, ma'am. |

Mr. Alexander?

MR. ALEXANDER: I've lived here for 14 years. I
have a couple éf Small businesses in Carson City.

THE. COURT: What kind of businesses are those,
sir?

MR. ALEXANDER: We build hydrostatic test pumps

A

and tools for estimators, measuring devices.
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THE COURT: Okay.

MR. ALEXANDER: I have three kids, 11, eight and
seven, and my wife does not work.

THE INTERPRETER: Your Honor?

THE COURT: He's a little soft spoken. He said
his wife does not work. |

MR. ALEXANDER: Well, if I told her, she has
three kids.

THE COURT: She works. Thank you, sir.

Mr. Petri? |

MR. PETRI: I've been here 16 years. I work for
Frontier Communications. Single and no children.

THE COURT: Thank you, sir. g

Ms. Mathers?

MS. MATHERS: 1I've been here éince I was —-
28 years.

THE COURT: Who is doing the math?

MS. MATHERS: I work for the State of Nevada
Welfare Division. I do quality‘control, and I\have a five
and an eight-year-old, two boys.

THE COURT: Do you héve a spouse?

MS. MATHERS: No.

THE CCURT: Thank you, ma'am.

Mr. Kelsh?
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MR. KELSH: Kelsh.

THE COURT: Kelsh.

MR. KELSH: I've been here 28 years. I work for
Direct TV, no kids, single.

THE COURT: Thank you, sir.

Mr. Russell?

MR. RUSSELL: I've been here since '93 and
unemployed, no spouse, no children and also something I
probably should have mentioned when we did the medical
question, I'm getting surgery on my shouider on Thursday so I
won't be able to come in that day. |

THE COURT: You don't get to skip a day. This
surgery is already planned, sir?

. MR. RUSSELL: Yes,.

THE COURT: Where are you having surgery?

MR. RUSSELL: Carson Valley Medical Center.

THE COURT: All right.

MR. RUSSELL: If you need, I can probably get
the —-

THE COURT: Mr. Ruésell, I.believe you're telling
me the truth, sir. You wouldn't tell me a lie about that,
would you?

MR. RUSSELL: No.

THE COURT: I didn't think so. I'm going to
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excuse, Mr. Russell as he has a prescheduled surgery.

\
;

Mr. Russell, thank you for your appearance today. You are
excused.

(Mi. Russell was excused and another name was
called.)

THE COURT: The clerk will call another\name.

THE CLERK: Linda Strickland. -

THE COURT: Was there any objection to that?

MS. BROWN: No, Your Honor.

MR. GREGORY: No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Ms. Strickland, come on up. So as
you make your way up there, Ms. Strickland, can you tell us
how long‘you have been here.

MS. STRICKLAND: Approximately 37 years. I'm
married. I have two children. I believe they are 42 and 32,
and I'm not working right now. I'm retired, and my husband
is driving truck.

THE COURT:- What are you retired from?

MS. STRICKLAND: I worked for the school district
in the nutrition.

THE CCURT: Thank you, ma'am.

Ms. Goodwin?

MS., GOCDWIN: I have lived }n,Douglas County

40 years and worked at Harrah's at the lake\for 40 years.
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THE COURT: Doing what, ma'am?

MS. GOCDWIN: I'm a dealer.

THE COURT: Okay.

MS. GOODWIN: My husband is pretty much retired,
does a little consulting work. He was a chef, and we have
one son who works at Tinker Air Force Base, Oklahoma City.'
He's 26.

THE COURT: Thank you, ma'am.

Ms. Trent?

MS. TENT: 18 years a legal secretary. My
husband is an environmental scientist, two children, 26 and’
23.

THE COURT: Very good. Thank you.

Mr. Farnham?

MR. FARNHAM: 13 years, heavy equipment operator,
no children, married. She's disabled.

THE COURT: Thank you, sir.

Mr. Morrow?

MR. MORROW: 25 years being here, currently
unemployed. Single, no children.

THE COURT: What kind of work are you unemployed
from?

MR. MORROW: I used to be a cashier, then I went

in to gét my master's degree and I got that with a 4.0 so I'm
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happy about that.
| THE COURT: I'm happy for you.

MR. MORROW: But I had to take care of my
disabled mother and my elderly -—- my 83-year-old grandmother,
so I've been out of work for a whiie Nnow.

THE COURT: Yes, sir. Thank you.

Mr. Ezekiel? |

" MR. EZEKIEL: Yeah, I've been in this county
14 years. I'm married. I'm a machinist‘at General Electric.

I got two children, a boy and a girl. The boy is 36. The

girl is 26.

THE COURT: Thank you, sir. Did you say you are
married? |

MR. EZEKIEL: I am married. My wife is a
housewife.

THE{COURT: Thank you, sir.

Mr. Butler?

MR. BUTLER: I've been here 32 years. I'm a
correctional officer for the State of Nevada. My wife works
at bank. I ha&e one 34-year-old daughter, who lives in
Oregon.

THE CQOURT: Thank you, sir.

Ms. Unsinn?

MS. UNSINN: I -
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THE COURT: Did I say your name correctly?

MS. UNSINN: Unsinn, yes, thank you. I've been
here for eight years. I'm a school secretary. I have a
l4-year-old daughter, no spouse.

| THE COURT: Thank you, ma'am.

Ms. Watson?

MS. WATSON: Yes, full time resident for ten
years in Douglas County. I'm retired from a long career with
American Airlineé and cargo sales, and I'm married. My
husband is retiied also from a long career and runs a small
consulting business out of our house, and we have three kids,
three grand kids énd one great grandson.

THE COURT: Wow.

MS. WATSON: Don't ask me all their ages.

THE COURT: I'll let you go on that.

Mr. Martin?

MR. MARTIN: I've lived here 26 years. I'm
married. My wife is a full time grandmother at home. We
have guardianship over our seven-year-old granddaughter, and -
I have two sons, both live in Reno, 29, 26.

THE COURT: Did you tell ﬁe you're retired?

MR. MARTIN: I'm not retired. I still work. I
work for an aerosol and lubricant manufacturing here in

Gardnerville, 30 years.
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THE COURT: Thank you, sir.

Ms. Stugart?

MS. STUGART: I'm Susan Stugart. I'm an
administrative.assistant for the CEO of Douglas County. I'm
married. I have two kids, two girls, one 30 and one 27.

THE COURT: What does your spouse do?

MS. STUGART: He is presently not working at the
moment . |

THE COURT: Okay.

MS. STUGART: Because of illness.

THE COURT: Thank you.

Ms. Marlow?

MS. MARLOW: Hi there. I've been in the wvalley
since 1982, I'm semi-married. I have a 34-year-old and
37-year-old children, and I work part-time. I have retired
from one job, and I work pa;t—time here in town in the gift
shop, retail. |

THE COURT: What does your semi.spouse do?

MS. MARLOW: Looks at the computer all day. He's
retired.

THE COURT: T was expecting drive a semi. Thank
you.

Ms. Rouse?

MS. ROUSE: 1I've been here 15 years. I'm a
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pharmacist at Smith's. My husband is a store director for
Safeway at Round Hill. We've two children, a 1l5-year-old
know it at all and a ten—year—old,\both boys.

THE COURT: Thank you.

Mr. Hipple?

MR. HIPPLE: I've been here about three and a
half years. I'm-married; My wife is a teacher for Douglas
schools, and I'm a home health physical therapist, and we
have no kids.

THE COURT: Thank you, sir.

Ms. Stewart?

MS. STEWART: Yes, I've been here since 1998,
about 17 years, and I am married. I am retired. My husband
is retired. I was always a stay at home mom, and he is
retired and three children, 33 to 23.

THE COURT: And what did your husband retire
from, ma'am?

MS. STEWART: He was in the broadcast business.
and —— but I don't know if right now is the time to mention
this to you, he's having health problems, and he has.a
medical procedure scheduled fof I.think it's a week frbm
Friday, February 6th, and I have the medical documentatioﬁ
for that, and I need to be with him for that and to drive him

to and from, to make sure he'll be okay.
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THE COCURT:
from this Friday. What
MS. STEWART:
I believe it's early in
takes three hours, you k
THE CCURT:
MS, STEWART:
THE COURT:
the truth. It's okay.
Mr. Gregory?
MR, GREGORY:
excusing Ms. Stewart, Yo
THE COURT:
MS. BROWN:
THE CCOURT:
with your husband.
MS. STEWART:
THE COURT:
that you showed up. Tha
MS. STEWART:
THE COURT:
MS. STEWART:
THE COURT:

MS. STEWART:

CAPITOL REPORTERS (775)882-5322

Let me see, February 6th is a week
time is that scheduled?

I think it's in the morning, yes.
the morning and it's -- I think it
Nnow.

Okay.
I have the documentation.

Ma'am, I believe you're telling me

The State would not object to
ur Honor.
Ms. Brown?
No objection, Your Honor.

Ma'am, I think it's important you be

Yeah.
So I appreciate and honor the fact
nk you.
Thank you.
We're going to excuse you.
Thank you.
Ms. Clerk?

Thank you, Your Honor. Thank you.
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THE COURT; Yes, ma'am. Good luck to your
husband.

(Ms. Stewart was excused and another name was
called.)

THE CLERK: Barry Morningstar.

THE COURT: Could you give me that name.

THE CLERK: Barry Morningstar.

THE COURT: Thank you, ma'am.

So, Mr. Morningstar, this is the test to-see if
you were listening to the questions.

MR. MORNINGSTAR: What? 21 years. I'm married.
My wife works with autistic children at a place called Kids
and Horses. Child is 21, and I am lost now.

THE COURT: How about you, do you work?

MR. MORNINGSTAR: I'm working for the state
department éf corrections.

THE COURT: Okay. What do you do?

MR. MORNINGSTAR: 17 years. I run a commissary
for the inmates at the prison.

THE COURT: Okay. All right.‘ Thank you very
much.

Ms. Matthews?

MS. MATTHEWS: Good morning.

THE COURT: Good morning.
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MS. MATTHEWS: T am.retired.

THE COURT: From?

MS. MATTHEWS: I have lived in Douglas County
full time for about 13 years. I retired from Toyota Motor
Sales, USA, the headquarters in Torrance. I'm married. My
husband is also reﬁired. He worked as a long shore man in
Southern California, and I have four step children, ranging
in age from 50 to 58.

THE COURT: Thank you, ma'am.

Ms. Gonzales?

MS. GONZALES: I've lived here six years. I work
at Wal-Mart, and I'm married, no kids.

THE COURT: And you are married?

MS. GONZALES: No.

THE COURT: Thank you.

Mr. Norberg?

MR. NORBERG:_ I've lived in Douglas County for
28 years. I'm a consulting civil engineer. I work in Reno.
My wife is the librarian at Jacks Valley Elementary School.
We have a 34-year-old daughter and a 32-year-old son.

THE COURT: Thank you, sir.

Ms. Matus?

MS. MATUS: Good morning. I've lived in Douglas

County for 16 years. I'm a pardons investigator for parole
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and probation. My husband is a retired radiation\physicist,
and I have two kids, ages nine and 11. I don't know if I
missed anything.

THE COURT: You did well. Thank you, ma'am.

Ms. Dublanc? .

MS..DUBLANC: I've been here 19 years. I'm a
surgical tech at Carson-Tahoe Hospital. My Husband works for
NDOT. I have two kids, a four-year-old daughter and a
19-year-old son.

THE COURT: Thank you, ma'am.

Ms. Walling? |

MS. WALLING: My name is Ms. Walling. I am a

human resources generalist, and I have -- I am married. My

husband is a civil engineer at RO Anderson Engineering, and

we have no children, and I've been here 26 years.

THE COURT: How long have you been Ms. Walling?

MS. WALLING: Two and a half. It is-legally
through the system already so I don't know.

THE COURT: Well, this jury pool was actually —-—
I said we do this every couple of years. This is -- we're at
the tail end of what we're doing so thank you, ma'am.

Mr. Unruh?

MR. UNRUH: I'm a full time student at WNC right

now. I've lived here pretty much my entire life, except for
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three years when I lived in Colorado. Thankfully no kids.
I'm not married.

THE COURT: Well, given the last answer, the next
to last answer, you're right, thankfully.

Mr. Tittle?

MR. TITTLE: I've been here 20 years, married.
She's a homemaker. I'm an auditor. We have a 43-year-old
son.

THE COURT: Thank you, sir.

" So now I'm going to ask some questions generally
and ask these folks up here to answer them. In the back, I
want you to think about these questions because, again, if
you come up, you may have to answer them but at the moment,
you don't have to raise your hand regardless of your
response.

Do any of you feel that you have any business or
personal reason which you believe would interfere with your
impartiality in this case as a juror?

I should probably tell you a little bit about the
nature of the charge. Ms. Leibel is accused by the State of’
open murder with the use of a deadly weabon. To that charge,
she's entered a plea of not guilty. Having told you that,
does that give any of you the feel that you have a personal

reason that you could not serve impartially?
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Do any of you have any sort of.a debtor, creditor
relationship with either of the parties?

Now, if you could look up on the blackboard,
there's a list of witnesses in this case. Mr. Tittle, from
your position, it's really hard to see the last couple.

Mr. Unruh, you may have that same problem. If you want to
stand to see the last few names, anyone is welcome to do
that.

Is there any potential juror related to or
acquainted with Ms. Leibel?

Is any juror acquainted with any of the attorneys
involved in this case?

Ma'am? Ms. Mathers?

MS. MATHERS: I graduated with Jamie.

THE COURT: You graduated with Ms. Hehry?

MS. MATHERS: Yeah.

THE COURT: Okayf Does having been in the same
graduating class with her cause you to have any prejudice
against or for Ms. Leibel? Can you say something out loud,
ma'am?

MS. MATHERS: Sorry, no, it doesn't.

THE COURT: Do you socialize with Ms. Henry these
days?

MS. MATHERS: We'wve seen each other out and
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about. I'm not going to ignore her.

THE COURT: Okay. So if you see her in the
grocery store, you recognize her and might say hello; is that
correct?

MS. MATHERS: Yes.

THE COURT: Do you have dinner together?

MS. MATHERS: No.

THE COURT: Do you go to activities together?

MS. MATHERS: No;

THE COURT: Is there any reason that you feel
that your having graduated with her or seeing her in the
community causes you to favor or disfavor her position in
this case?

MS. MATHERS: No.

THE COURT: Okay. Just so you know. Yes, ma'am.

Mr. Gregory, would you state the name of the
other attorneys in our office, please.

MR. GREGORY: Mr. Jackson is the elected
official, the District Attorney. In the criminal division
other than myself, there's Deputy District Attorney Ric
Casper, Deputy District Attorney Brian Filter, Deputy
District Attorney Préston Day and Deputy District Attorney
Tina Russom.

Would you like me to also -- we have a bunch of
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secretaries in the office. I don't know how you would like

me to do --

THE COURT:

secretaries and your investigator.

MR. GREGORY:

investigator is Steve Schultz. We have another investigator
in our office named Brian Putzer. We have several

secretaries that support us. They are Sarah McMonagle, Erin

Palante, Leah Williams,
are all in our criminal

THE COURT:

Ms. Brown, you have no other attorneys in your

office; is that correct?
MS. BROWN:
THE COURT:
MS. BROWN:

THE COURT:

Ms. Henry, you don't have other attorneys in your

law firm, do you?
MS. HENRY:
THE COURT:
MS. HENRY:
THE COURT:

is.
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I would like you to name your

The investigator, chief

Jan Budden and Erin Palante, and they
division.

Thank you, sir.

That is correct, Your Honor.
Do you have any employees?
Ms. Dorian McCull.

Thank you.

I do not.
Do you have employees?
Yes, I do.

Would you tell the jurors who that
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MS. HENRY: Katie Nash is my paralegal.

THE COURT: Thank you. So are any of you
acquainted with any of the other attorneys or employees that
were just named?

MR. TITTLE: Yes, sir. Last year I was on jury
duty, and I believe the woman lawyer for fhe state was the
one being the lawyer for the state but that's the only way I
know her.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. TITTLE: Just to let you know.

THE COURT: Does that -- did that experience

cause you to have any prejudice either for or against the

State?

"MR. TITTLE: No.

THE COURT: Or for or against Ms. Leibel?

MR, TITTLE: No, sir.

THE COURT: All right. I thought the beard would
cure that.

- Somebody else raised their hand.

MS. MATUS: Your Honor, I know all of attorneys
that are here and several that are in .the District Attorney's
Office from dding presentence investigations in the past.

THE COURT: And you know me.

MS. MATUS: Yes.
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THE COURT: Would that knowledge cause you to
have any prejudice for or against any of the parties?

MS. MATUS: No.

THE COURT: Do you have any preconceived. opinion
about this case?

MS. MATUS: No.

THE COURT: Could you serve as a fair and
impartial juror? \

MS. MATUS: Yes.

THE COURT: Thank you. Who else raised their
hand? Mr. Unruh?

MR.4UNRUH: The only person I know is you and but
since you're impartial, I don't see that influencing me at
all.

THE COURT: - Okay. And for the record, you know
me because back some time ago when I was in brivate practice
in Douglas County, I may have represented you'or some members
of your family.

MR. UNRUH: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Does that cause you to have any
prejudice against either party in this case?

MR. UNRUH: ©No, sir.

THE COURT: Did it cause you to have any feeling

regarding the judicial system or lawyers or Jjudges that would
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keep you from being impartial in this case?

MR. UNRUH:  No, I've grown up quite a bit.

THE COURT: Yes, sir. Thank you.

Who else raised their hand?

Yés, ma'am, in the back, Ms. Strickland.

MS. STRICKLAND: I know Mark Jackson and Erin
Palante.

THE COURT: Okay. How do you know them?

MS. STRICKLAND: My daughter and son-in-law are
friends with Mark and Kathy, watched their'children and she
also watches Erin's children.

THE COURT: Does that relationship with
Mr. Jackson and Ms. Jackson, who happens to be the court
reporter here, cause you to feel that you cannot be impartial
in this' case?

MS. STRICKLAND: No.

THE COURT: Does it make you feel that you would
favor the side of the State?

MS. STRICKLAND: No.

' THE COURT: Or disfavor Ms. Leibel?

MS. STRICKLAND: No.

THE COURT: Or disfavor the State?

MS. STRICKLAND: No.

THE COURT: Or favor Ms. Leibel?
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MS. STRICKLAND: I could be totally impartial.

THE COURT: Who else raised their hand, I'm
sorry. Yes, sir,. thaf‘s Mr. Hipple.

MR, HIPPLE: - Yes, I know Mark Jackson. I coached
with him during Pop Warner and I also know Kathy and also
Tina Russom. I don't know if she represented me or what, but
I was bit by a dog, myself and my dog, and the case was
sentenced a couple of days ago.

THE COURT: Okay. So you were the victim in a
matter that Ms. Russom prosecuted?

MR. HIPPLE: Yes.

THE COURT: Does your relatipnship with either
Mr. or Ms. Jackson or your relationship and history with
Ms. Russom cause you to favor or disfavor either side in this
case”?

MR. HIPPLE: No.

THE COURT: Do you believe you could be a fair
and impartial juror?

| MR. HIPPLE: Yes.

THE COURT: Okay. I'll allow the attorneys to

explore these issues later if you choose to do so.
i Anyone else that I skipped? Yes, sir?
MR. BUTLER: I think I know Kathy from power

lifting days?
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THE COURT: She doesn't get to answer the
questions, sir.

MR. BUTLER: ILike 15 years ago. Her previous
boyfriend used to before but now I look at her, her hair is
different.

THE COURT: But she's hard to forget. Does that
cause you any to favor or disfavor to either side?

MR. BUTLER: No, sir.

THE COURT: Okay. Are any of you presently being
represented by any of the attorneys or their associates?

Is there anyone present who is in any way
obligated to any of these attorneys or their associates?

Is there anyone present to whom an obligation is
owed by any of the attorneys or their associates?

Is any juror acquainted with or related to any
law enforcement personnel, police officer, sheriff deputy,
sheriff highway patrolman, et cetera that you haven't told me
about so far?

MR. TITTLE: I was with the gaming control board
as an investigator and auditor so I know a lot of guys that
are with the gaming control board that work in investigations
and auditing.

THE COURT: And does your relationship with those

law enforcement officers cause you to favor the State in this
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case”?

MR. TITTLE: No, sir.

THE COURT: Or to disfavor the defense or the
reverse?

MR. TITTLE: No, sir.

THE COURT: Thank you.

Ms. Matus?

MS. MATUS: Your Honor, I know several officeré
with parole and probation and a few deputies in Carson and
Douglas at different times.

THE COURT: And do those relationships impact
your ability to be fair and impartial in this case?

MS. MATUS: No.

THE COURT: Would it cause you to favor one side
over the other?

MS. MATUS: No.

THE. COURT: Someone else raise —- okay. In the
back? I'm just hopping around as I see the hands go up. So
Ms. Bavaro?

MS. BAVARO: My brother is retired chief of
alternative sentencing in Carson City.

THE COURT: And does your relationship with your
brother cause you to favor or disfavor one side here?

MS. BAVARO: No.
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THE COURT: Could you be fair to both sides?

MS. BAVARO: Yes. |

THE COURT: All right. Thank you. Who else had
your hand up? Please, we'll go back to Mr. Butler.

MR. BUTLER: Dave Nishikida, when I was a
security supervisor at .a casino 20 years ago, I remember him,
that's all.

THE COURT: Okay. So-and Deputy Nishikida, who
is one of the bailiffs here.

MR. BUTLER: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Does your 20-year-old relationship
impact you in any way as to influence your fairness here?

MR. BUTLER: No.

THE COURT: So your answer is no, so that
Ms. Jackson can write it no?

MS. BUTLER: Yes.

THE COURT: There's another hand right up over
here. I'll go to Ms. Matthews.

| MS. MATTHEWS: Your Honor, my brother was on
the -- was a lieutenant on the Las Vegas police department
for over 30 years, but he recently passed away, and that
would not be an influence to me.

THE COURT: Okay. Thank you, ma'am.

I think Ms. Rouse?
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MS. ROUSE: My brother-in-law is a police officer

for out of state.
| THE COURT: For where?

MS. ROUSE: He's a police officer in Arkansas.

THE COURT: In Arkansas-?

MS. ROﬁSE: It would not influence me here.

THE COURT: You don't believe that would |
influence you, okay.

And then Ms. Marlow?

MS. MARLOW: I just know three names on that
board. I used to work with Eric Schinzing.

THE COURT: All right. So the names that you
know, could you tell me what names you know.

MS. MARLOW: Claudette Springmeyer used to be my
first husband's employer's wife. We went to dances and hung
together. Nate Alameda is another child of a lady I worked
with, and then I worked with Eric years ago.

THE COURT: Okay. Would your.rélatiOnship with
any of those people, maybe not-all of them, but any of them
impact your ability to be fair and impartial.in this case?

| MS. MARLOW: Not at all.
THE COURT: Would you because of those

relationships afford those witnesses any greater credibility

“than anyone else?
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MS.‘MARLOW: No.

THE COURT: In other words, would you —-- well,
because it's I think you mentioned Mr. Schinzing, for
example, because it's Mr. Schinzing, whatever he said must be
true no matter what anybody else says?

MS. MARLOW: A person can lean that way, but I
think I have an open mind.

THE COURT: I'm asking do you lean that way?

MS. MARIOW: Okay. I might. I might think —-
yeah, I might.

THE COURT: Okay. This is why we're talking.

MS. MARLOW: Yeah.

THE COURT: I need to know your answer to this.
And is that particularly about Mr. Schinzing or Mr. Almeidé
or I think you mentioned Ms. Springmeyer also?

MS. MARLOW: Well, I'm not sure I understand your
question.

THE COURT: Does your relationship -- does your
leaning towards them, that is at about one of them or all of
them?

MS. MARLOW: No, it would be to all of them in
just a general familiarity. If they -- if one of them told
me Bob did it and she told me Bob did it, I would more

believe them.
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THE COURT: I see, okay. All right.

MS. MARLOW: Just because I've been --

THE COURT: Do you think you have a hafd time
putting that aside?

MS. MARLOW: No, no.

THE COURT: How would you put that aside?

MS. MARLOW: Bring in my adult maturity and know
that these are --- we're all people.

THE COURT: Could you weigh the credibility of
those witnesses fairly and equally with the other witnesses?

MS. MARLOW: Yes, oh, yes.

THE COURT: Okay. Thank you.

Yes, ma'am. That's Ms. Strickland.

MS.'STRICKLAND: I know Claudette Springmeyer.

THE COURT: How do you know her?

MS. STRICKLAND: Our children grew up together
and just through sports and stuff.

THE COURT: So does knowing her make you feel
that you would give her testimony more credibility than
someone else's?

MS. STRICKLAND: No, I would listen to
everything.

THE COURT: Are you able to do that?

MS. STRICKLAND: Yes, I am.
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THE COURT: Anyone else? Yes, ma'am. That's
Ms. Trent.

MS. TRENT: I worked —- if that's the same Stacey
Chambers, I think -- I haven't seen her since 2003 at one
time, but I haven't spoken to her since 2003.

THE INTERPRETER: Your Honor?

THE COURT: You need to -- we need to speak a
little bit louder, okay. And I believe that Ms. Trent said
that if it is the same Stacey Chambers, you might have worked
with her —-

MS. TRENT: In 2003. I haven't seen her since
then.

THE COURT: Would thaf impact your ability —- the
witness' credibility?

MS. TRENT: No.

THE COURT: Anyone else? Yes, ma'am?

UNIDENTIFIED PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Well, I don't
know any of those people but my dad was a police officer.

THE COURT: Your dad was a police officer, okay.
And does that impact your ability to —-

UNIDENTIFIED PROSPECTIVE JURCR: No.

THE COURT: -- weigh the testimony of the
witnesses®?

UNIDENTIFIED PROSPECTIVE JUROR: No.
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THE COURT: Would you necessarily favor the
testimony of a police officer over someone else just because
they are a poliée officer?

UNIDENTIFIED PROSPECTIVE JURCR: No.

THE COURT: Does that make you prejudice for or
against one side or the other in this case?

UNIDENTIFIED PROSPECTIVE JUROR: No.

THE COURT: All right. All witnesses are
presumed to testify truthfully until the contrary is shown.
This presumption applies regardless of whom the witness may
be. Do you understand that no witness is automatically,
because of his or her position or title entitled to more than
this presumption or less? Does everyone understand that?
Does anyone not understand that?

Do any of you feel that you would give any
witness undo credence or believability because of his or her
title or position?

Do any of you know anything about the facts of
this case prior to today? Okay. Without telling me what you
believe those facts are, let me start with Ms. Strickland.
You believe you know some facts?

MS. STRICKIAND: I don't know them for sure, Jjust
what I read in the paper.

THE COURT: You read in the newspaper?
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MS. STRICKLAND: I read the newspaper.

THE COURT: Okay. So, Mr. Norberg?

MR. NORBERG: Same, there was an article I think
some time over the weekend and just in reading the paper, I
remember reading about it. I don't remember the facts.

THE COURT: Ms. Matus? |

MS. MATUS: I typically read the newspaper. I
haven‘t'in'the last month so I don't know if there was
anything prior toc that. |

THE COURT: Now, with all due respect to the
press who happens to be here in the courtroom, do all of you
understand that sometimes they get it wrong? Anyone who
disagrees with that? Is there anyone who disagrees with the
idea that sometimes they get it right? Is there anyone who
disagrees with the idea that we don't try people in the .
United States in the press and that's exactly what this
process 1s for?

To any of you who read a newspaper article about
this case, without telling everyone specifically what you
read, can you put aside what you read and judge this case

solely on the evidence that's presented in this room during

'this trial?

Ms. Strickland?

MS. STRICKLAND: Yes, sir.
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that?

THE

THE

THE

Has

to the guilt or

COURT: Ms. Matus?
. MATUS: Yes.
COURT: And, Mr. Norberg?

. NORBERG: Yes.

COURT: Anyone who would have difficulty with

any juror formed or expressed an opinion as

innocence of Ms. Leibel or as to any other

matter connected with this case? Yes, ma'am?

MS.

'ROUSE: I want to disclose that my husband

had a business relationship or business interactions with the

victim.

that.

THE

MS.

THE

MS.

THE

disclosing that

Mr.

Leibel.

How

MR.

THE

CAPITOL REPORTERS (775)882-5322

COURT: Okay. And when was that?
ROUSE: Just slightly before the incident.

COURT: Before his death?

. ROUSE: Correct.

HENRY: Your Honor, I'm sorry, we didn't hear

COURT: Ms. Rouse tells us that she is

her husband had a business relationship with

long was that relationship?
ROUSE: I don't know.

COURT: Have you discussed this case with
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your husband?

MS. ROUSE: He said something to me the day that
he fourid out about this that it happened.

THE COURT: Did he express an opinion as to what
happened?

MS. ROUSE: No.

THE COURT: Do you believe your husband has any
independent knowledge as to what happened in this matter?

| MSZ ROUSE: No.

THE COURT: Has your husband told you that he
does?

MS. ROUSE: No.

THE COURT: Do you believe thatlyour husband's
business relationship with Mr. Leibel causes you to feel bias
either for or against either party in this matter?

MS. ROUSE: It could.

THE INTERPRETER: This is the interpreter
speaking. The interpreter did not heér the answer.

THE COURT: The answer was it could.

Okay. And do you believe it would be difficult
for you to set that aside?

MS. ROUSE: No.

THE COURT: How would you do that, ma'am?

MS. ROUSE: Their relationship was just business.
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It was not a personal relatiénship.

THE COURT: You mean your husband's relationship
with Mr. Leibel?

MS. ROUSE: Yes.

THE COURT: Did you socialize with them?

MS. ROUSE: No.

THE COURT: Did your husband socialize with them?

MS. ROUSE: It was strictly just a business
interaction.

THE COURT: How do you' believe that relationship
might impact you then?

MS. ROUSE: Just from what he said.

THE COURT: From things your husband told you?
Thank you. You may get ;ome further questions on that.

Okay. Do any of you have any friends or
neighbors up here in the well or in the jury box? In other
words, do any of you know each other? Yes{ I always get yes
on that. So we'll start with Ms. Strickland again.

MS. STRICKLAND: Well, I don't even know her
name, but I know her because my daughter takes care of her
children.

MS. DUBLANC: .Yeah

THE COURT: Ms. Dublanc?

MS. DUBLANC: Yes. And I also know Susan Stugart
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and I also know,.he's my neighbor.

THE COURT: Okay. All right. So you're talking
about Mr. Farnham?

MS. DUBLANC: Yes.

THE COURT: Would -- it's okay to have friends

and neighbors, that's what makes us a community. That's what

- makes us different from just a bunch of people who live in

caves near each other or in houses near each other, we have
friends and neighbors and so that's all right.

What is important is would you be able to form
your own opinion without necessarily feeling like you're
obligated to agree with your friends or neighbor? Would any
of you have difficulty in having your own opinion if there
anything in the experience of having a friend or neighbor in
this same group that would influence you in one way or
another to either disagree or agree with them?

Okay. At the conclusion of the evidence, I will
state to you the law that is appliqable to this case. I will
instruct you that it is your duty to apply the law to the
facts as found by you. Would any juror be reluctant to apply
the general principles of law that will be so stated by the
Court?

Is there anyone present who has such a

preconceived idea of what the law is or what it ought to be
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that it would render you incapable of setting aside such an
idea if you were instructed by me to the contrary? Sir?
That's Mr. Kelsh.

MR. KELSH: Yes, sir. Just past experience in my
life. Any decision I would come up with would be bias at
best.

THE COURT: I'm sure it's just me, but I'm not

-sure I understand what you're telling me, so.

MR. KELSH: I did federal grand jury for
18 months and just from experience, I have a difficult time
bringing a guilty or an indictment charge against anybody,
Just due to past experience in my life with law enforcement.

THE COURT: So you feel like you might have some
bias against law enforcement?

MR. KELSH: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Would you be able to set that aside
and hear the evidence in this case and decide this case based
solely upon the evidence that you hear here?

MR. KELSH: I mean, I feel I'm an intelligent
individual, and I can understand evidence. I did the
18 months of grand jury duty, and thought I was able to put
it past me, but it had an influence on a lot of my decisions.

THE COURT: So the answer to the question I asked

you is would you be able to be fair?
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MR. KELSH: ©No, sir, I would not be able to.

THE COURT: You could not give equal justice to
the State as you would to Ms. Leibel?

MR. KELSH: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: I'm going to excuse you.

MR. KELSH: Thank you, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Any objection?

MS. BROWN: No, Your Honor.

MR. GREGORY: No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Mr. Kelsh, thank you for your
appearance today.

MR. KELSH: I appreciate it. Thank you.

(Mr. Kelsh was excused and another name was
called.)

THE CLERK: Suzanne Martin?

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Your Honor, would we be
taking a short break soon?

THE COURT: As a matter of fact, Ms. Martin, do
you see where your seat is? We've been a little more than an
hour and a half, and we're going to take that break right
now.

Now, I have to read something to you that I am
required to read to you every time we take a break. So

you're going to hear this a great deal. We're going to take
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a 15-minute recess. During this recess, you're admonished
not to-talk or converse among yourselves or with anyone else
on any subject connected with this trial. Don't read, watch
or listen to any report of or commentary on the trial or any
person éonnected with this trial by any medium of
information, including without limitation newspapers,
television, radio or internet. Do not form or express any
opinion on any subject connected with this trial until the
case 1s finally submitted to you. Please remember what seat
you're in. I want you to return right to that very seat, and
we will return at five minutes until the hour. Thank you.
We are in recess.

(Whereupon, a brief recess was taken.)

fHE‘COURT: During our break, I was advised that
there were a couple of jurors who had a question. I think
thg first one was Mr. Jones.

Mr. Jones, I've been told that you're having a
hard time hearing. .

MR. JONES: You're the only one that I can really
hear good and I can appreciate it.

THE COURT: There may also be some difficultj
with your vision, sir.

MR. JONES: I can't read those names on the

board. I can only correct them so well. TI had a detached
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retina.

THE COURT: Yes, sir.

i MR, JONES: I have my hearing aids in.

THE COURT: 1I'll tell you a couple of things.
One, the statute tells me that if you've reached the age of
65, that if you have a hearing or a vision difficulty and you
réquest to be released, I should lef you go. I believe
you're not»65, but I can see it. Do you think you would have
a hard time following along in the case here if we were to
provide you with -- you said you have hearing aids. We
actually have some headphones that/amplify that everything
that goes into these microphones.

MR. JONES: I use them for TV and stuff.

THE COURT: Okay. Do they help?

MR. JONES: Yeah.

THE COURT: Of course, that doesn't help with
your vision. )

MR, JONES: Not really. I wasn't sure how well T
had to see.

THE COURT: 1I'll tell all of you that during the -
course of this trial, you can expect that this screen is
going to come down, and I anticipate that the parties are
going to display on the screen some things they want you to

see. Now, those things are blown up, and they are put up,
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pretty good size-up on is this projector. It would be bigger
than the print Fhat you see on the board now. Do you think
you would be able to see that if it's projected large enough?.

MR. JONES:‘ It's possible, yeah.

THE COURT: If you —- i1f we got you the
headphones and if you continue to have a hard time hearing,
would you tell me that?

MR. JONES: Yeah.

THE COURT: Okay. Are you asking to be excused
because of your hearing?

MR. JONES: I'm just concerned that I would miss
too much.

THE COURT: Well, sir, I will make every effort
to make sure that people speak loud enough for you. If you
can't hear, I would ask you to make the effort to tell me and
we'll work together on that issue.

MR. JONES: Okay.

THE COURT: ., Is that okay?

MR. JONES: Yes.

THE COURT: I should also tell all of you that
there's also a statute which advises me that if you're
70 years of age and you don't want to serve on the jury, I
should excuse yoﬁ. I haven't said that yet because I was

worried about how many people we would have assemble. Is
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there anyone 70 years of age or older who is requesting to be
excused? There are no hands up, all right;

We'll proceed, but I think there was someone else
who had an issue that advised Mr. Sutton that you wanted to
talk to me, and I can't remember who it was. |

Mr, Alexander?

MR. ALEXANDER: Yes, I spoke to Mr. --

THE COURT: Mr. Sutton or Mr. Nishikida?

MR. ALEXANDER: Mr. Nishikida. I didn't know
when this would actually come up. Next week, I'm slated to
travel to the World of Concrete for two days. I do make my
own travel arrangements, and I can change it, but I do have
an opportunity to attend that show and work with a new
inventor from University of Auburn.

THE COURT: Well, sir, I think that it may be
that there are a number of people who have either business or
educational opportunities or work that they'are simply going
to miss and while I really appreciate that your work is
valuable to you . ,and I want you to know that's important to
me, that's not a reason I'm going to excuse you. Thank you
though.

In a jury trial, the jury determines all of the
factual matters, that is all questions of fact. The judée

determines all questions of law. I will not infringe on your
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prerogative as to the facts you find, aﬁd I expect that you
won't infringe on mine as to what the law is. Do you all
understand that?

| As I previously stated, this is an action
involving a charge of open murder with the use of a deadly
weapon. Does any juror quarrel with the principle that open
murder with the use of a deadly weapon is declared to be a
criminal offenses in this state?

Is there anything in the nature of this case that
causes you Lo believe that you cannot be a fair and impartial
juror?

Do you realize the criminal information is not
evidence at all but it's only a piece of paper in order to
bring the defendant into court?

Do you understand that the fact that an arrest
occurred in this matter does not in and of itself constitute
evidence of guilt of the defendant?

If the Court were essentially to instruct you at
the conclusion of the case that a defendant in a criminai
action is presumed to be innocent until the contrary is
proven beyond a reasonable doubt and in the case of a
reasonable doubt, the defendant's guilt, she is entitled to
be acquitted. Would each of you accept and follow that

instruction?
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Do you understand that you are to consider this
presumption of innocence as actual proof of innocence until
it is overcome by proof of quilt beyond a reasonable doubt?
You are acknowledging that.

You understand, do you not, that the burden of

- proving the defendant guilty beyond a reasonable doubt rests
- !

with the prosecution and that the accused need not introduce
arly evidence whatsoever? Essentially the State must prove,,‘
one, that a crime was committed and, two, ﬁhat the defendant
committed fhat crime. Knowing that, would any of you require
the accused at any time to convince you of her innocence?

When it becomes time for you to consider a
verdict in this case, the concurrence of all 12 of the final
jurors is required. However, each of the parties to this
action is entitled to the opinion and judgment of each
individual juror. All jurors must agree on the verdict, but
it must be understood that the individual judgment of each
Juror is important, do you understand that?

‘If you happen to be in the minority as for
example, Jjust an example, say a ten to two vote or an 11 to
one vote, would you change your position what you consider to
be reasonable solely because you were in the minority, would
anyone/do that? |

Do you understand it's your duty to agree on a
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verdict if you can do so without viclating conscientiously
held convictions that are based on the evidence?

Now, if.you came to the conclusion that the
prosecution had not proven the guilt of the accused beyond a
reasonable doubt and you found that a majority of the jurors
believed the defendant was guilty, would you change your
verdict or Vote only because you were in the minority or vice
versa?

Do you understand that both sides in this matter
are entitled to a verdict on the evidence here produced and
on nothing else?

Is there any juror now in the box who knows of
any reason why he or she cannot act as a fair and impartial
jJuror in this matter? Okay. Thank you.

I'm going to allow the attorneys now to-question
you some. We'll begin with the prosecution, Mr. Gregory?

MR. GREGORY: Thank you, Your Honor.‘ Good news
is Judge Young was so thorough I'm not going to have a lot
here, and I do thank you for your patience.

Mr. Jones, I'm just going to come back to you
again to check on you. How are you doing with the hearing?

MR. JONES: it's quite tenable. I can hear men's
voices a lot better than women's voices.

MR. GREGORY: You said you could hear Judge Young
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pretty well? Have you been able to hear me?

MR. JONES: Yes. How I can usually hear better
is if I can watch your mouth.

MR. GREGORY: Okay. But you've indicated there
are some —-- there's been some speaking that you could not
hear?

MR. JONES: Quite a bit.

MR. GREGORY: Quite a bit? So it is important
during the course of the trial that you hear everything.

MR. JONES: That's right.

MR. GREGORY: Your Honor, would he be able to try
those? Getting them out now.

THE COURT: I'm going to try these out for him,
but I want to get them turned on first. Let's give that to
Mr. Jones and see that it helps. Turn the volume up a
little.

Mr. Jones, do you mind trying one of the Court's
headphones?

MR. JONES: That's fine.

THE COURT: Thank you. Do you hear anything
through that? Can you hear that?

MR. JONES: I don't know if I can hear it through
here though.

THE CLERK: Can you hear me?
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THE COURT: Can you hear anything through that?
MR. JONES: I can hear you.
THE CLERK: There's buzzing.
THE COURT: We're going to work on those. You
can take that off, and we'll work on that.
‘Mr. Gregory, I would point out to you that
Ms. Martin was not asked any questions as she came up so I'm

going to ask you if you would ask her maybe any of the

. general questions.

Ms. Martin, if you would just maybe just tgll us
how long have you been in the valley and what you do.

MS. MARTIN: My name is Suzanne Martin. I've
been in the wvalley 22 years. I work for the State of Nevada
Housing Division. My husband is retired. He worked for
NDOT. I have a stepson, 47, who lives in Arizona, and I am
acquainted with Tom through work. He audited our division,
and I am acquainted with Pat through Douglas Animal Welfare
Group, but I don't do it anymore, but we use to walk dogs
together.

THE COUﬁT: Do any of those relationships make
you feel like you wouldn't be able to hold your own opinion
in this group?

MS. MARTIN: No.

THE COURT: Ms. Martin, would you have -- to any
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of the other questions that I've asked, do you believe that
any of them would cause you trouble being a fair and
impartial juror?

MS. MARTIN: Absolutely not. And Claudette
Springmeyer, I was in Soroptimist with and quite a long time
ago, 17 years.

THE COURT: Thank you, ma'am.

Mr. Grégory, I'll allow you to follow-up on that.

MR. GREGORY: Thank you, Your Honor.

Were you able to hear all of the questions when
you were seated out there?

MS. MARTIN: Some voices are less strong than
others. '

MR. GREGORY: And did any of those question; give
you concern or do you want to give us some information?

MS. MARTIN: No.

MR. GREGORY: Okay. Thank you.

Ms. Rouse, I wanted to follow-up with you
regarding the business relationship your husband had with
Mr. Leibel. You indicated that upon Mr. Leibel's passing
that your husband and you discussed that?

MS. ROUSE: Correct.

MR. GREGORY: I don't want you to get into what

you discussed, but it seemed like maybe you had some
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discomfort with that. Is there anything about the
conversation that you had with your husband that would cause
you to not to be fair in this case to either side?

MS. ROUSE: There was just some things said that
gives me a preconceived idea. |

MR. GREGORY: Okay. And I appreciate that.

Would that preconceived notion and, again, I'm not asking you
what that notion was, but would that impact your ability to
sit in this case?

MS. MARTIN: I don't think so.

MR. GREGORY: Okay. Tell me why not. Why do you
think you can do this?

MS. ROUSE: I think I can -- I just already have
an idea about the victim's, perhaps, personality —-—

MR. GREGORY: Okay.

MS. ROUSE: -- his personal life. Although, I've
never met him. I've never met the wife as well.

MR. GREGORY: So you know some things about the
defendant and her husband that the other jurors would not
know, correct?

MS. ROUSE: I don't know about them. I just know
about myself.

MR. GREGORY: Okay. But what I'm saying is your

husband told you some things that so now you have some ideas
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about them that other jurors sitting here would not have.

MS. ROUSE: That's probably true.

'MR. GREGORY: Okay. And if there were another
jury trial next week where you didn't know anything or didn't
know anything about the players, do you think you would be a
better juror in that case?

MS. ROUSE: Probably, particularly for the
charges that are here.

MR. GREGORY: Okay. And I appreciate your
honesty.

Your Honor, I would ask to excuse Ms. Rouse for
cause. She's‘indicated she does have a preconceived notion
about the case, and I would ask that she be excused.

THE COURT: Ms. Brown?

MS. BROWN: No objection, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Ms. Rouse, you feel that those

preconceived notions impact your ability to be fair and

impartial?

MS. ROUSE: I just know something about the
victim.

THE COURT: I couldn't hear.

MS. ROUSE: I know information from abott the
victim.

THE COURT: I'm going to excuse you, okay.- Thank
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you for being here today, ma'am. We'll call another name.
'Thank you, Ms. Rouse.

(Ms. Rouse was excused and ancther name was
called.)

THE CLERK: Edwin Kingham.

MS. BROWN: I missed thé name.

THE COURT: Edwin Kinghém.

MS. BROWN: I missed it again.

THE CLERK: Kingham.

THE COURT: Mr. Kingham?

MR. -KINGHAM: Yes.

THE COURT: How are you, sir?

MR. KINGHAM: I'm okay. Thank you.

THE COURT: Can you tell us how long you've been
here, sir? |

MR. KINGHAM: 1I've lived in Douglas County since
1997. I'm retired from teaching mathematics, college
mathematics. I'm not married, and I have ﬁo children.

THE COURT: Thank you, sir. Did any of the other
questions that I've asked this panel' cause you any concern or
make you want to respond in any fashion?

MR. KINGHAM: I can't think of one but there were
SO many.

THE COURT: Let me get to the essence of it. Is
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there'anything about any of the attorneys, the witnesses or
the nature of this case that make you feel any bias for or
against either side?

MR. KINGHAM: No. I couldn't really read the
names from the angle I was sitting at, so I need to look
through those.

THE COURT: Certainly, sir. Take your time.

MR. KINGHAM: I don't recognize any of those as
anyone that I know.

THE COURT: And do you believe that if‘you were
chosen to Be a juror in this case that you could do fair and
equal justice to both sides?

MR. KINGHAM: Yes.

THE COURT: Have a seat.

And, Mr. Gregory, would‘you please continue.

MR. GREGORY: Thank you, Your Honor. Anybody on
the panel up here a fan of the CSI crime shows? All right.
Pretty popular. Any reason that you can't separate what you

see on TV from what you see here in the courtroom? I trust

~you all understand those are for entertainment purposes and

this is the real deal. Can you all separate that? All of
you that raised your hand, do you have any issues with that?
All right. The judge mentioned the type of case

this is and given the type of case this is, you're apt to see

CAPITOL REPORTERS (775)882-5322

81



10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

some gory photographs. Now, my question isn't are you going
to enjoy that. My question is does anybody have a problem
with that such that they don't believe they can look at those
photographs and take them into considératioﬁ?

MS. THOMPSON: I pass out in first aid class
every time I take one. I don't know. I couldn't judge
because I don't know what I'm going to see. |

MR. GREGORY: Okay. So if we put something up
there that you're uncomfortable with, do you think you can
focus and look at the photograph and be considered?

MS. THOMPSON: I can try, but you may have to
revive me.

MR. GREGORY: Does that impact your ability to
sit on this jury?

MS. THOMPSON: I don't think unless reviving me
is not a good thing. It depends on how graphic it really is.
ILike, I can watch the TV shows, but I know that's not real
but in first aid class with blood and fake blood, I get a
little. L

MR. GREGORY: Would you feel comfortable if you
got to a point in the trial where you were feeling a little
woozy, would you feel comfortable letting Judge Young know
that so.we can take a break? |

MS. THOMPSON: Yeah, if I can catch myself.
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MR. GREGORY: All right. Thank you.

Anybody else? Sir?

MR. MORROW: While I'm not actually squeamish
towards pictures all that much, it's like presentation or
something, I may get squeamish because I'm back when I was
younger, we did some biology on a cow brain, and that was
kind of a bit much for me, but that was also a couple of
decades ago, so I may be over it now.

MR. GREGORY: Okay. I would ask you to do the
same thing, if you got uncomfortable, would you —-

MR. MORRéW: Yes, I would be able to tell the
judge.

MR. GREGORY: -- let the judge know?

MR. MORROW: Yes.

MR. GREGORY: Thank you. I appreciate that.

In criminal trials, the jury has important
decisions to make. 1Is there anybody that feels they are
incapable or unwilling to make important decisions? I almost
always get at least one hand, you know, I just don't think
that’I can make those decisions. Anybody have that feeling?

Sir?

UNIDENTIFIED POTENTIAL JUROR: Will those
decisions include sentencing decisiohs?

THE COURT: They will not, sir. Sentencing is
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not a matter that is in the province of this jury and is not
something that this jury should consider in any fashion
whatsoever. In the event that therevis a verdict of guilty,
sentencing will be thé sole resﬁonéibility of me, and I'll
address thaf with you Iater as I have éome other comments.

MR. GREGORY: Did that answer your question
sufficiently, sir?

UNIDENTIFIED POTENTIAL JUROR: Yes.

MR. GREGORY: Okay. Thank you, sir.

Anybody else want to respond to that question?

As the judge indicated, the State has the burden
of proof in this case. My question to each of you is if I
prove the case to you beyond a reasonable doubt, will you
find Ms. Leibel guilty?

Thank you, Your Honor. Pass the panel for cause.

THE COURT: Mr. Gregory, thank you.

Ms. Brown, or, Ms. Henry?

MS. BROWN: Thank you, Your Honor.

I would like to go back and document some
foIlow—up questions first on questions that have already been
asked and, of course, Mr. Jones I'll start with you. I'm
known to be soft spoken. Can you hear me?

MR. JONES: Sort of. . I can't hear at all.

MS. BROWN: Are you still concerned if you were a

N
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(
Juror on this trial, you would be missing a lot of the

evidence?

MR. JONES: I think so.

MS. BROWN: Your-Honor, I would ask that
Mr. Jones be excused. I think he's repeétedly indicated he's
not able to hear and follow the evidence.

MR. GREGORY: No objection, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Mr. Jones, I appreciate you being
here, sir, I really do, and I appreciate you making the
effort. My concern has less to do with you hearing me but
with yoﬁ being able to see across the room. I think we'll be
able to work on your hearing. I can't work on your vision
very much, and I'm well aware that the partiés intend to
present some phdtographic evidence that you might have to
look at from across the room and there may be some other
,evidence in here that you're going to have to see.

So it's with respect to you and appreciation but
I'm going to release you, sir. I thank you for being here.
The clerk will call another name.

MR. JONES: I gave it a shot.

THE COURT: Yes, sir, I know you did, and i thank
you for that.

i (Mr. Jones was excused and another name was

called.)
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THE CLERK: Raymond Klein?

THE COURT: All the way up there, sir. Mr.
Klein, would you tell us a little bit about yourself.

| MR. KLEIN: I work for the US Postal Service.
I'm married. I've lived here for 16 years. My wife is a
dental hygienist, and she just resigned from her job. She's
looking for another one, so.

THE COURT: Thank you, sir. To any of the
questions that I've asked this group, are there any of them
that maké you feel that because of your relationship with the
attorneys or the parties or the witnesses that you could not
be a fair and impartial juror?

MR. KLEIN: I would be fair and impartial, and I
don't know any of the witnesses or any of the attorneys. I
have an open mind.’

THE COURT: Thank you. Were there any questions
that I asked that gave you pause or concern, sir?

MR. KLEIN: No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Thank you.

Mr. Gregory, do you have questions of this
gentleman?

MR. GREGORY: I do not. Thank you.

THE COURT: Ms. Brown?

MS. BROWN: Thank you, Your Honor.
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Ms. Thompson?

MS. THOMPSON: Yes.

MS. BROWN: You indicated that you may be
starting a job next Tuesday?

MS. THOMPSON: I'm hoping to. I will if I'm not
on a jury.

MS. BROWN: Okay. Would that be distracting from
your attention if you were chosen to sit on the jury, that
prospect of not having that job?

MS. THOMPSON: Well, yeah, I've been in a place
for eight months. If I don't have thét job, I don't have any
Jjob.

MS. BROWN: Would that be on your mind then if
you were -—-

MS. THOMPSON: Yes.

MS. BROWN: -- asked to be on this jury?

Does anybody else have commitments? I know we've
heard from Mr. Alexander, work commitments, child care
commitménts, those types of things that would be on their
mind if they were all of a sudden taken away for two weeks to
be placed on a jury? That would be?

MR. LANDVATER: Landvater.

MS. BROWN: Landvater, can you tell me about

that?’
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MR. LANDVATER: I'm as busy as I've eﬁer been
right now, and my head is all in it, honest to God.

MS. BROWN: Okay. Busy with your work?

MR. LANDVATER: Yes, ma'am.

MS. BROWN: And you do web design?

MR. LANDVATER: Yes, ma'am.

MS. BROWN: You're self-employed?

MR. LANDVATER: Yes, ma'am.

MS. BROWN: There's no vacation pay or anything?

MR. LANDVATER: No, ma'am. If you can give me
about three weeks, I'll come back.

MS. BROWN: Okay. So this -- this would be
something that would be on your mind then if you were chosen
to be on the jury?

MR, LANDVATER: Yes, ma'am.

MS. BROWN: Okay. Thanks.

Anybody else to that question?

And, Ms. Walling?

MS. WALLING:; Yes, as the human resources
generalist, I work at the Starbucks Roasting Plant, and there
is two of us supporting 320 people. So we have a lot of,
similar to this, in that we're constantly dealing with
regarding employee relation issues and things that rise to

that nature. So literally every break, I will be checking my
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phone, as I will have to be called upon for most of that, if
not working after juror hours to support those.

MS. BROWN: In order to be on this jury, you
would basically be multi-tasking with managing your work and
managing what is here?

MS. WALLING: Yes.

MS. BROWN: Do you think that would distract your |
attention away from it as the evidence is presented in this
case”?

MS.-WALLING: I would do my best to separate the
two as best as possible. I mean, in no way should it impact
my partiality to one or‘the other side. It's just making
sure that, you know, I can balance both of those.

MS. BROWN: Okay. Thank you.

Anybody else as to that question?

Mr. Hipple?

MR. HIPPLE: Yes, I'm a home health physical
therapist énd for the company I work for, I'm the only
therapist providing services for the Minden and Gardnerville
area. And so if I'm here on the jury, my patients won't be
seen for —— until the trial is over.

MS. BROWN: Okay. So these are patients —-

MR. HIPPLE: Elderly people that are fall risks

and people that have recently had surgery, who have started

CAPITOL REPORTERS (775)882-5322
89 '

qoH



10
11
12
13
14
15
le
17
18
19
20
21
22
23

24

PN

i ™

C\ <;/¥
/ .

to rehab at home who are homebound.

MS. BROWN: .Okay. Again, would that -- if you
were chosen to sit on the jury, would your concerns
concerning your patients be distracting?

MR. HIPPLE: No, I would probably see them on the
weekends and after hours.

MS. BROWN: Okay. Thank you. Was that everybody
on that question?

Mr. Kingham?

MR. KINGHAM: Kingham.

MS. BROWN: Kingham, sorry.

MR. KINGHAM: I can't remember'your exact words
but something to the effect of taking -- if you're taken away
from your life for two weeks, does that imply that we won't
be going home at all or would we in the evenings?

MS. BROWN: No.

THE COURT: I am not intending to sequester this
jury. There's not been a motion to do so. I don't see any
reason why I should. I will give you admonishments about not
reading the paper or the news or watching television,

listening to radio reports of this, and I will éxpect you to

honor that, but I do not intend to sequester the jury and

keep the jury locked in a hotel room during the course of the

trial.
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Once deliberation begins, you will continue to
deliberate until I release you but during the course of the
trial, you will be going home tonight. Does that answer your
question, sir?

MR. KINGHAM: Yes.

MS. BROWN: And, Ms. Strickland, you said that
you know both Mr. Jackson and his wife, Kathy, the reporter,
and that you also know Erin Palante, who works in the
District Attorney's Office?

MS. SfRICKLAND: Yes.

MS. BROWN: And you care for their children
sometimes?

MS. STRICKLAND: My daughter does.

MS. BROWN: Your daughter does. Do you have
social contacts with Mr. Jackson and his wife?

MS. STRICKLAND: No, we just see each around
town.

MS. BROWN: You said that knowing them wouldn't
affect your decision-making process in this case. If you sat
as a juror, at some point your.decision is going to be known
to the world and if you had to think what -- you know,
knowing Mr. Jackson and he's the elected D.A. in this case
and I reached a verdict of not guilty, you know, having to

try to explain that to him, would that cause any you concern?
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MS. STRICKLAND: No, I will be good with my
decision.

MS. BROWN: Okay. And you also said you know
Ms. Springmeyer?

MS. STRICKLAND: Yes.

MS. BROWN: And wQuld knowing her, if she were
called as a witness in this case, would you tend to favor
what she said more than another witness based on that?

MS. STRICKLAND: No.

MS. BROWN: Okay. All right. Thank you.

Aﬁd,-Mr. Butler, I think you said basically your
knowledge of Ms. Jackson was from 15 years ago?

MR. BUTLER: Or more.

MS. BROWN: Or more, okay. Do you have any
ongoing social relationship?

MR. BUTLER: It's the first time I've seen her.

MS. BROWN: So there's nothing about that
relationship then that would come'into play in this case?

MR. BUTLER: No.

MS. BROWN: And, Mr. Hipple, you said you know
both Mr. Jackson and his wife?

MR. HIPPLE: Yes.

MS. BROWN: And you coached with --

MR. HIPPLE: Yes.
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MS. BROWN: -- Mr. Jackson. And, again, the same
type of question to you, would knowing them and knowing that
you'll be coming in contact with them again, would that come
into mind in you feaching your verdict?

MR. HIPPLE: No, I would feel comfortable with
whatever decision is made, not based on -- just totally
independent of my relationship with both of them.

MS. BROWN: And for example, contacts with
Mr. Jackson while you were coaching or anything, was there
any general discussion of the criminal justice system or
their office or —-

MR. HIPPLE: No, it's just been about football.

MS. BROWN: Okay. Thank you.

Ms. Marlow?

MS. MARLOW: Yes.

MS. BROWN: You also said you knew
Ms. Springmeyer and Mr. Almeida and Mr. Schinzing.

MS. MARLOW: Yes.

MS. BROWN: And, again, if they were called as
witnesses in this case, would knowing them, any personal
knowledge you have of them affect your ability to view their
testimony one way or another?

MS. MARLOW: I would believe their testimony.

MS. BROWN: And would you believe it even if it
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was called into question while they were testifying on the
stand?

MS. MARLOW: T would listen to both sides of
something most definitely.

MS. BROWN: But you're tendency would be then to
give them credibility and it would have to be taken away for
someone else? Okay. Thank you.

And, Ms. Matus?

MS. MATUS: Yes.

MS. BROWN: You know everybody in the couftroom.
You know law enforcement. You know the defense attorneys,
and you deal day to day with basically writing presentence
reports.

MS. MATUS: I did.

MS. BROWN: In criminal cases discussing what
your recommended sentence should be in a case, so you're very
familiar with the criminal justice system?

MS. MATUS: Yes.

MS. BROWN: And in spite of that, you would step
aside from that role as basically a partisan? I mean, you've
been a representative of the State office that deals with
prisoners, and you would be able to step aside from that
occupation and look at this case without that coming into

play?

/
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MS. MATUS: I believe so. Cases I've worked bn
in the past where people who were already convicted of a
crime, that's completely different from what we're doing
here.

MS. BROWN: Okay. I appreciate that. Thank you.

And, Mr. Butler, again, you're also a
correctional officer?

MR. BUTLER: Yes, ma'am.

MS. BROWN: Would your —-- is that here in Carson
with the State?

MR. BUTLER: Northern Nevada Correctional Center.

MS. BROWN: Would that employment with the State
in a correctional type setting, would you have more tendency
to believe police officers against other witnesses if --

MR. BUTLER: No, ma'am.

MS. BROWN: Okay. And what about, again, the
same question, if you were called upon to reach a verdict in
this case and wanted to give a verdict of not guilty, going
back then into your friends, your group of co-workers, would
that thought of having to explain, justify, even say that
decision have any impact on your decision?

MR. BUTLER: I've been there a lot longer than
they have, no.

MS. BROWN: Thank you. And, Mr. Tittle, did you
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say you had previously sat on a criminal jury?

MR. TITTLE: Yes, ma'am.

MS. BROWN: And that was when?

MR. TITTLE: Last year, January time frame.

MS. BROWN: And without saying what the verdict
was, were you —- did the case finally go to verdict?

MR.4TITTLE: Yes, ma'am.

MS. BROWN: And was the jury -- again, without
saying what the verdict was, were you able to reach a verdict
in that case?

MR. TITTLE: Yes, ma'am.

MS. BROWN: Was there anything about your service
on that jury that caused you any concern or was very
positive, very negative experience?

MR. TITTLE: It was a positive experience.

MS. BROWN: And theré wouldn't be anything then
that would in viewing the evidence in this case that would —--

MR. TITTLE: ©No, ma'am.

MS. BROWN: -- come into mind.

Let me broaden that out to other people on the
jury. How many of you have sat previously on juries? And of
the group that have sat previously on juries, have you had
very positive or negative experiences as a result of that

that might effect your ability to sit as a juror on this
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case?

UNIDENTIFIED PROSPECTIVE JUROR: I had a positive
experience.

UNIDENTIFIED PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Positive.

MS. BROWN: Anybody else? Yes?

UNIDENTIFIED PROSPECTIVE JﬁROR: Mine was
positive. It was about 30 years ago but.

MS. BROWN: Okay.

UNIDENTIFIED PROSPECTIVE JUROCR: From what I
remember.

MS. BROWN: Anybody else?

Yes, Mr. Petri.

MR. PETRI: Positive?

MS. BROWN: Real positive?

And,.Mr. Tittle, you said this was -- your
sitting bn a jury was»just last year?

MR. TITTLE: Yes.

MS. BROWN: Is there —-- are you wondering how you
got so lucky to be called again?

MR. TITTLE: No, they gave me the letter saying I
didn't have to do it for a year, but I assume that meant to
the end of 2014, so we're in 2015, so.

MS. BROWN: Okéy. So there's nothing about being

called again as a juror so quickly?
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MR. TITTLE: Oh, no, it's my responsibility.

"MS. BROWN: And as we go through these questions,
I don't think -- nobody is asking you questions to try to
make you feel uncomfortable. It's just we need to try to get
to know you a little bit better and get some information out.
If there is anything that comes to mind that you don't feel
comfortable in discussing in front of the full panel, during
breaks or lunch, you can contact Mr. Sutton or any of
bailiffs, and there's a possibility of raising those kind of
matters out of the presence of the other jurors, just so you
can be sure you can speak freely in this case.

THE COURT: Ms. Brown, Ms. Thompson had her hand
raised.

MS. THOMPSON: I'm sorry. When I was on a jury,
it was actually a negative experience because the evidence
was presented well, and the defense didn't, and this one gal
just sat up there going, well, you know, law enforcement does
all of these wrong things. And I'm like, that wasn't what
was presented. It wasn't the best experience, I'll tell you
that much.

MS. BROWN: And would that experience influence
your decision or --

MS. THOMPSON: It makes me not want to be here

but as far as using my adult brain and coming to my own
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conclusions about this case, it doesn't.

MS. BROWN: Thank you. Now, a few people, and I
don't know if.they ended up here on this panel but on their
jury questionnaires indicated they'had family members, who
have been convicted of crimes. And what I wanted to know is
are there any of you that made it to the panel that have
family members or either yourself, family members or close
friends that have been convicted of crimes? Let's start in
the front row here with Mr. Norberg.

MR. NORBERG: Yes, my brother years ago was
convicted of DUI multiple times, spent six or eight months in
county jail.

My brother-in-law about 30 years ago was a fatal
DUI. He spent five or six years in the California State
Prison.

" We have a friend, same age as my son, who about
20 years ago, he was 14, killed a man, and he's currently in
the Nevada State Prison.

MS. BROWN:/ Going through, you know, that type of
experience, was there any contact with law enforcement that
was either a negative experience for you, positive experience
for you?

MR. NORBERG: None.

MS. BROWN: Was there any -- as the cases were
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going through the court system, again, did that have'any -~
did you get a positive, negative_feeling or?

MR. NORBERG: You know, I felt that everything -
you know, .the verdicts were all correct. You know, the only
difference was in the sentencing of my son's young friend,
being sent to prison for 50 years when he was 14, that rubbed
me the wrong way. |

MS. BROWN: But, and that was how long ago?

MR. NORBERG: That was 20 years ago.

MS. BROWN: So time heals all wounds.

MR. NORBERG: Yeah, it wouldn't impact my ability
to be fair and impartial.

MS. BROWN: Okay. Anybody else on the front row?

Ms. Matus?

MS. MATUS: My brother had a DUI misdemeanor
probably 20, 25 years ago in Miami. I don't remember when it
was exactly.

MS. BROWN: Okay. Anything about that case that
would come to mind?

MS. MATUS: I was nevef involved in it.

THE COURT: Anybody else on the front row? What
about in the second row back?

UNIDENTIFIED PROSPECTIVE JUROR: My brother,

repeated DUI's, no prejudice.
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MS. BROWN: Okay. And in the third row?

Yes, Mr. Butler?

MR. BUTLER: My wife's brother did four years,
two in California, two in Nevada, and her niece did a couple
of years. |

MS. BROWN: Okay. Were you involved in the
cases?

MR. BUTLER: No.

MS. BROWN: -- in any way?

And Ms. Unsinn?

MS. UNSINN: Yes, my fiance's little brother
served some time here, but I don't even know what he did.

MS. BROWN: Okay. So you had no involvement in
the justice system?

MS. UNSINN: I just knew he was here.

MS. BROWN: Anybody else on that row?

And, yes, Mr. Martin, correct?

MR. MARTIN: My son served one year in the Nevada
State Prison for three DUI's and --

MS. BROWN: Were you involved in the case in any
way as it worked its way through?

Mﬁ. MARTIN: It worked its way fhrough, and I
have no prejudice. ' '

MS. BROWN: Thank you.
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THE INTERPRETER: Your Honor, the interpreter
could not hear the answer that was rendered.

THE COURT: The answer was it worked its way
through, and I don't have any prejudice.

Is that correct, sir?

MR. MARTIN: Correct.

THE COURT: Thank you, sir.

MS. BROWN: Anybody else in the next row up? In
the final row?

Ms. Mathers?

MS. MATHERS: My boyfriend did a year for third
DUT.

THE COURT: My boyfriend did a year for third
DUT.

MS. BROWN: Okay. Were you involved in the court
system with law enforcement in any way concerning that case?

MS. MATHERS: You mean like over there during the
trial, uh-huh, yes. Sorry.

MS. BROWN: That's okay. Was there anything
about that experience that affected you either in a positive
way, negative wéy or was it just --

MS. MATHERS: There was a lot to it.

MS. BROWN: I'm sorry, I can't --

MS. MATHERS: Yes, it actually went to the

CAPITOL REPORTERS (775)882-5322

102



10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23

24

A

"\ £
Q / ()
e Gk

Supreme Court.

MS. BROWN: Okay.

MS. MATHERS: So it was a lot, yeah, and I have
good and bad about it.

MS. BROWN: Okay. Would there be anything about

that case and having to go through that system that might

- come to mind as you listen to the evidence in this case?

MS. MATHERS: Maybe.

MS. BROWN: Can you explain a little bit further?

MS. MATHERS: I guess it just depends on the
circumstances. You know, there was a lot to his because it
went all the way to the Supreme Court.

MS. BROWN: Uh-huh.

MS. MATHERS: But I don't think this would do
that but I don't know.

MS. BROWN: .Okay. In what way do you think it
might affect you in this case?

MS. MATHERS: I could judge. I would be
Judgmental I guess.

MS. BROWN: Be judgmental towards?

‘MS. MATHERS: Towards either side, it just
depends. I don't know.

MS. BROWN: Okay. Anybody else in that row?

Yes?
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UNIDENTIFIED PROSPECTIVE JUROR: 30 years ago,
they gave me a wet reckless. It wasn't really a DUI, so it
wés a one time mistake. 3

And then about two years ago; when my wife and T
were on a long vacation, our son thrashed our house and got
arrested for minor in consumption. He's a good boy, that's
it. |

MS. BROWN: Okay. Anything about those
experiences and your contact with maybe law enforcement that
would come to mind in this case?

UNIDENTIFIED PROSPECTIVE JUROR: No, I used to be
a park ranger in Yosemite and I was in law enforcement and no
prejudices.

MS. BROWN: Okay. And other than actual

involvement in criminal cases, has anybody had just an

experience with law enforcement that was either very positive
or very négative in their feelings towards maybe law
enforcement as a whole?

Yes, Mr. Morrow?

MR. MORROW: Yeah, I have a generally positive
view of law enforcement because back when I was a minor in --
around middle school to high school, I basically had an
outburst on the school bus, and my bus driver called Secret

Witness on me. The cops came and basically listened to my
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side of the story and then basically told me that what I did
was just fine in a sense because I didn't actually inflict
violence on anyone else, and that I was'trying to relieve my
stress without accidentally bringing someone involved into
the situation, so I've had a positive view towards law
enforcement for actually listening to me as a person, even
tmm@th@sjwta]dd. -

MS. BROWN: Okay. Thank you.

Anyone else?

Yes, Mr. Unruh.

MR. UNRUH: Yes, I've had positive and negative
experiences but, I mean, just to be honest, a couple of
times, I felt like they power tripped on me. I don't know
how else to really say that. They are in the position of
pbwer over me and like made me feel iower, and T don't, like,
express that towards all cops or law enforcement. But, like,
if those traits are, like, displayed as them being, like, a -
egomaniac or something, it's going to make me not want to
listen to them because it's just hard to trust somebody that
is like that and sorry buF.

MS. BROWN: That's okay. But you're able -- you
say you had bofh good and bad experiences, correct?

MR. UNRUH: Yeah.

MS. BROWN: And so if there's a certain type of
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individual that you don't agree with the way they treat
people?

MR. UNRUH: Yes.

MS. BROWN: But there's other law enforcement
officers who don't act in that way that you --'

MR. UNRUH: Yes, like, 99 - percent have the best
intentions at heart I;m willing tolstate, but there is the
ones that are, you know, not up to par with the rest.

THE COURT: Okay. So this isn't a preconceived,
I hate everybody in law enforcement?

MR. UNRUH: No.

MS. BROWN: TI've had a dealing with an

individual?
MR. UNRUH: No, I'm just trying to be honest.
MS. BROWN: That's fine and that's the kind of
thing we like to talk about because it brings out -- I mean,

you can think the world of law enforcement and tell if you
know 1f there's a particular law enforcement officer that
testifies that you don't think is credible, you know, we're
looking for being able to judge people, their credibility on
how they present the evidence on the stand and not just a
preconceived idea of I love all law enforcement or I hate all
law enforcement?

MR. UNRUH: Yes.
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MS. BROWN: Thank you.

Anybody else?

Some of you have been involved in civil cases
also. I saw some of the questionnaires. Anybody had -- and
civil -- by civil cases I mean the contract cases, personal
injury, things like that where you've gone into court for
money damages or to enforce an agreement. Has anybody had
any experiences in the courtroom in dealing with those types
of cases that might impact the way you view the judicial
system in this case? Some people come -- yes, Ms. —-—

UNIDENTIFTIED PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Are you asking
if we've had personal involvement?

MS. BROWN: If there's -- I mean, maybe if it's
maybe a family member or friend, something, something that
may have left a sour taste in your mouth of, you know, that
Jjudge just was way out of line or whatever and might affect
Just your ability to view things in this case.

UNIDENTIFTED PROSPECTIVE JUROR: I was involwved
in a personal lawsuit. It lasted about four years, but I
don't think it would have any bearence on this case.

MS. BROWN: Okay. So there was nothing that you
just kind of went, you know, I hate this system type thing?

UNIDENTIFIED PROSPECTIVE JUROR: No, I think it

was rather slow but.
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MS. BROWN: Well, they can be that.

Has anyone here or with close friends or family
members been a victim of a violent crime?

Mr. Unruh?

MR. UNRUH: Yeah, my, like, second cousin got
murdered about a year ago and -- or actually two years ago,
and we just g&t done with the sentencing about two weeks ago
but -—-

MS. BROWN: Would there be anything about that
experi?nce of being, you know, associated with the victim
side of the family that would have an impact on the way you
view the evidence in this case?

MR. UNRUH: I don't think so.

MS. BROWN: You could set thatlaside as something
separate?

MR. UNRUH: Yeah, it's a separate matter, you
know.

MS. BROWN: Okay. Thank you. Anybody else?
Second row? Anyone else?

Has anybody had.friends or close family members]‘
that have committed or tried to commit suicide?

Ms. Mathers?

MS. MATHERS: My boyfriend did.

MS. BROWN: Committed suicide or -—-

CAPITOL REPORTERS (775)882-5322

108

903



10
11
12

13

14.

15
le
17
18
19
20
21
22
23

24

. MS. MATHERS: Yeah, he committed suicide.

MS. BROWN: - Okay. In this case, Ms. Leibel made
a report to the sheriff's department when her husband died
that he had committed suicide, and the law enforcement didn't
take her word for that. Is there anything about living
through the experieﬁce that you have been through that might
come to mind if you were chosen as a juror in this case?

MS. MATHERS: I could be -- I could be really
judgmental about it. |

MS. BROWN: I'm sorry?

MS. MATHERS: I could be very judgmental about
if.

MS. BROWN: Judgmental?

MS. MATHERS: If it's shown that she did that and
lied about it, I guess, I could, yeah.

MS. BROWN: Okay. Thank you.

Mr. Morrow?

MR. MORROW: My brother when I was 12 hung
himself, and my mom was the one who discovered the body, and
I had to come home to the aftermath of it, and I can't deal
with suicides. I just can't deal with them.

MS. BROWN: Okay. So if that's going to be an
issue that's discussed in the testimony --

MR. MORROW: It would be —— it would be too hard
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for me.

MS. BROWN: Would you be able to listen to the
evidence and consider it fairly with that strong feeling
concerning justlthe subject?

MR. MORROW: It depends on -- no, I don't think I
could do it.

MS. BROWN: Your Honor, I would ask that
Mr. Morrow be excused for cause.

THE COURT: Mr. Gregory?

MR. GREGORY: No objection, Your Honor:

THE COURT: Mr. Morrow, I'm going to thank and
excuse you for your attendance today. You've given us a lot
of answers and a'lot of insight into your life, and I think
you've been real honest in your answers. I appreciate that.

(Mr. Morrow was excused and another name was
called.)

THE COURT: The clerk will call another naﬁe.

THE CLERK: Maria Garcia.

THE COURT: Ms. Garcia, would you maybe remain
standing for a moment and tell us a little about yourself.
How long have you been here? 1 '

MS. GARCIA: TI've been here 17 years. I'm not
working. Actually, I'm a part-time student.

THE COURT: Part-time student?
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MS. GARCIA: Yes.

THE COURT: Where?

MS. GARCIA: WNC.

THE COURT: Okay.

MS. GARCIA: I'm not married. T don't have any
children.

THE COURT: What are you studying?

MS. GARCIA: Well, before my grandpa went
downhill and died a couple of years ago, I was in the
American Sign Language program, but I figure I would be a
lousy interpreter so right now, I've gone back to
mathematics.

THE COURT: Okay. Were you able to hear all of
questions that we've been talking about this morning?

MS. GARCIA: Yeah, but nét ali of the answers but
the questions.

THE COURT: Well, the questions are what I want
to talk to you about, and we'll hear your answers. Was there
anything about any of the questions that made you feel that
you could not be fair.or impartial?

MS. GARCIA: The fairness or impartiality not
really. My big thing is kind of the making the decision. He
asked a question if anybody was goihg to not be able to make

that kind of decision because it's a heavy decision. It's
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kind of a big affect on somebody's life, no, no.

THE COURT: You don't feel that you could do
that?

MS. GARCIA: No, not really.

THE COURT: Why is that, ma'am?

MS. GARCIA: Because it's a huge decision that is
going to weigh heavily on somebody else's life. I just can't
do it.

THE COURT: Okay. How old are you?

MS. GARCIA: 27.

THE COURT: Mr. Gregory, do you want to ask any
questions of this potential juror?

MR. GREGORY: And I thank you for sharing that.
That's important to everybody that you be open and honest.

So at the end of the case, obviously, you do, you have a very
hard weighty decision to make in this case, and you voiced
some concern. My question is could you do it? Could you
arrive at a decision? Would you be able to do that?

MS. GARCIA: I am one of the more indecisive
people I know. I —-- the thing is I could know what I was
thinking but being‘willing to point that out, I'm not ——- I'm
not sure I would be willing to do that.

MR. GREGORY: I appreciate you sharing that.

And, Your.Honor, I would ask that she be removed
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for cause.
MS. BROWN: No objection, Your Honor.
| THE COURT: All right. Ms. Garcia, I'll let you
go with no objections to it. Thank you for being here today.

MS. GARCIA: Uh-huh.

(Ms. Garcia was excused and another name was
called.)

THE CLERK: Debra Wood.

THE COURT: Good morning, Ms. Wood. Go up and
have a seat in that spot. And I think you know what I would
start out asking you.

MS. WOOD: Yes, I've been here, gosh, 52 years.
I'm married. My husband is a software engineer. I'm a
kindergarten aid at CC Meneley. I have one son who is nine
years old.

THE COURT: Okay. Let's talk about éome of these
other questions. Have you been able to hear me this morning?

MS. WOOD: Yes.

THE COURT: Are any of the questions that I've
asked or any of the attorneys have asked given you pause and
made you feel that you could not be a fair and unbias juror
in this case?

MS. WOOD: No.

THE COURT: Do you believe that you could?
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MS. WOOD: Yes, my only concern is being here the
duration of two weeks and with my job and getting my son to
and from échool, I'm his transpoftation. I have Cub Scout
commitments, meetings I've made the end of this week, that
kind of thing.

-THE COURT: And I think those are common problems
for all of us bécause everybody bringé into the courtroom a
life that they have been living up until they got summoned to
come in here. So let's talk more specifically about the
issues in this case. Do you believe you would be able to
hear a case of this nature?

MS. WOOD: Yes,

THE COURT: To reach a decision?

MS. WOOD: I think so.

THE COURT: Okay. And did you know any of the
people on -the board?

MS. WOOD: It's hard to see from where I was
sitting. I mean, I know some of the names but not
personally, maybe just knowing names just from I've been here
forever.

THE COURT: Would that cause you to have any -—-—
any bias for or against them?

MS. WOOD: No. X

THE COURT: Or for or against either party.
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MS. WCOD: No.

THE.COURT: Mr. Gregory, are there questions you
would like to ask Ms. Wood?

MR. GREGORY: No, Your Honér.

THE COURT: Ms. Brown, I don't believe you were
done generally yet either so —--

MS. BROWN: Yes.

THE COURT: -- go on.

MS. BROWN: Thank you, Your Honor.

I think we made it down to the second row from
the top there concerning éuicide with close family or family
and close friends and that.

Ms. Martin?

MS. MARTIN: My brother tried to commit suicide

twice.

MS. BROWN: Okay. And --

MS. MARTIN: He was-bipolar. He did not
commit -- he didn't die of suicide. He had pancreatic
cancer.

MS. BROWN: And would anything about those
attempts and your involvement in them come to mind if there
was evidence presented concerning suicide in this case?

MS. MARTIN: He was a troubled person and

everybody is different.
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MS. BROWN: Okay. Thank you.

Yes,-Mr. Alexander?

MR. ALEXANDER: I moved from Southern California
about 15 years ago, but I grew up there most of my life, and
my childhood friend that I have known and his wife, he just
passed about a week and a half ago, so he was suffering from
depression and committed suicide. There's two different
families that are being looked at and his wife's.family
and —-

THE COURT: Mr. Alexander, could I ask you to
speak up just a little bit. T know it's a difficult subject,
but it is important thaﬁ we be able to hear.

MR. ALEXANDER: Basically, his wife, they have
two boys that are left. This happened a week and a half ago
or about two weeks ago. The service was on Monday, and so
they are doing the autopsy and the processing of that. My
understanding, it's going to take about 50 days for them to
go through the process to fully determine his cause of death.

MS. BROWN: Okay. Is there anything about being
involved in that experience and knowing similar evidence may
come up in this case that might affect your ability to sit on
this case?

MR. ALEXANDER: I think I could sit on this. I

have a pretty sound and strong mind and can look at things

CAPITOL REPORTERS (775)882-5322

116

921



10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18

19

20°

21

22

23

24

C O

openly. I haven't gone through the whole process with that
but it's many things and factors that happened to his -- his
death that are a little bit in question. So I don't know
exactly how I would interpret them, but I think I would be
fair.

MS. BROWN: Okay. And you could separate the
fécts of that case from the facts of this case?

MR. ALEXANDER: I don't know how they would work
together, I guess. So I guess I could separate them.

MS. BROWN: I mean, you wouldn't overlap this
happened in his case then --

MR. ALEXANDER: I don't know. I have not had
that thought process or just until you mentioned that so I
don't know how I would actually, but I think I would be
fairly strong.

MS. BROWN: Okay.

MR. ALEXANDER: Mentally aware.

MS. BROWN: Okay. All right. Just think about
it. If something comes to mind, let us know and everybody do
the same thing on all of these questions. BAs we're going to
be leaving for lunch here soon or whatever, if you think of
things while you're away or as you're sitting, listening to
others answer that, you know, you think you need to bring up,

go ahead and do that. We don't need to come back to you and
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Anybody down here in the front part?

Ms. Matus?

MS. MATUS: Our friend's son committed suicide
last month.

MS. BROWN: Last month?

MS. MATUS: - Yeah, I didn't know their son. I
just know our friend and what happened to him in tﬂat
situation.

MS. BROWN: Knowing what little you know about
this case now, is there anything about just the cbntact with
that family that you think would affect your ability to
listen to the evidence or make a decision in this case?

MS. MATUS: ©No, I don't think so.

MS BROWN: Okay. Mr. Hipple?

MR. HIPPLE: Yes, in 1999, a close friend of mine
committed suicide that I had known most of my life.

MS. BROWN: Okay. And, again, the same type of
question.

MR. HIPPLE: I could totally separate what
happened in the past from this case.

MS. BRdWN: Okay. Ms. Watson?

MS. WATSON: Just a few months ago, a cousin of

mine jumped off a bridge and tried to commit suicide. He has

CAPITOL REPORTERS (775)882-5322

118

”;?5523



10
11
12
13
14
15
lo
17
18
19
20
21
22
23

24

a very long serious history of bipolar problems. And maybe
20 years ago, my cousin's husband did commit suicide. He
also had a long history of psychological problems.

MS. BROWN: Okay. Is there anything about those
two situations in your life that might enter into either your
consideration of the evidence or deliberation?

MS. WATSON: No, I don't, none at all.

MS. BROWN: Okay. Thank you. Have we covered
everybody on that?

And the judge did talk to you previously
concerning criminal cases. There was a presumption of
innocence, and I know a lot of people have difficulty with
that concept. 1It's kind of mental gymnastics. Why is
somebody here and you're telling me they are presumed
innocent. And maybe we kind of Eroad brush things but with
that concept, if you're arrested, there must be a reason. If
there's smoke, there must be fire.

How many people have been following the news for
example concerning Bill Cosby? Based on those news reports,
has anybody formed a very strong opinion on whether something
happened or something did not happen?

Yes, Ms. Matthews?

MS. MATTHEWS: Yeah, I have —-

MS. BROWN: Well, tell us about that.
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that said they had been attacked, there's so many. I mean,

MS. MATTHEWS: Just from reading articles in the

paper and listening to the interviews of some of the people

it's not like one. 1It's like 20, yes.

MS. BROWN: So you'wve kind of formed an opinion
where there's smoke, there's fire?

MS. MATTHEWS: In this case, yes, just because of
the numberiof women that stepped forward.

MS. BROWN: If you were called as a juror on that
case and all of a sudden, it wasn't 20 women with varying
allegations, it was just you were told to look at specific
facts of this specific case and judge the credibility of the
witnesses in this specific case, would you be able to set
aside that broad, where there's smoke, there's fire type idea
and look at a spécific case, a specific individual that's
making the allegation as opposed to they all type situation?

MS. MATTHEWS: From what I know going into court,
I would probably say no, that I would have to say that he was
guilty.

MS. BROWN: Okay;

MS. MATTHEWS: I haven't listened to a lot, but
I'm on-line quite a bit. |

MS. BROWN: Uh-=huh.

MS. MATTHEWS: I go to various on-line sites.
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And from what I've seen and read and just know they have
interviewed a couple of women involved, I would have to say

yes. I don't think I could go into that particular jury with

- an open mind.

MS. BROWN: Okay. Anybody else have a problem on
that?

Again,-hand in hand with that principle of the
presumption of innocence, there's that presumption exists
until the State has provén the allegations beyond a
reasonable doubt if they do. Does anybody have any questions
concerning the concept of reasonable doubt? Just for
example, the judge told YQu there was a definition of
reasonable doubt that was different from what you think it
is, I mean, we all have kind of have a preconceived notion of
what terms mean. If at the end of this case, you're given an
instruction that says, well, what you thought about is
reasonable doubt before isn't what we're talking about, it's
this standard and you must apply this standard, if that was
different from what you had previously thought, would you
still be able to follow that instruction, kind of set aéide
what your notion of what should happen in a criminal case
should be?

Now, Ms. Leibel was born in Russia. She is still

a Russian citizen. It's easy for us to have kind of

CAPITOL REPORTERS (775)882-5322

121



10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23

24

. o
3 7

i P

-~ 5 g

preconceived notions in our mind when we hear a specific
nationality or religion, something like that. When you hear
the term she's a Russian, is there some stereotypical image
or characteristic that comes to mind.

Yes, Ms. Matus?.

MS. MATUS: I think of Vodka, honestly.

MS. BROWN: Okéy. Anybody else on the first row?
Anybody en the second row? Back, third roW? In the upper
gallery?

MS. MATHERS: That they are meén.

MS. BROWN: Excuse me?

THE COURT: She said that they are mean.

MS. BROWN: They are mean? |

MS. MATHERS: Uh-huh, yes.

MS. BROWN: Why do you say that?

MS. MATHERS: Because I had a client tﬁat was a
Russian lady, and she was mean. She was Just all around
mean.

MS. BROWN: And that Russian lady has nothiﬁg to
do with this Russian lady.

MS. MATHERS: Not that‘I know of.

MS. BROWN: So would your relationship with the
other Russian lady affect your feelings towards Ms. Leibel in

this case?

CAPITOL REPORTERS (775)882-5322
122 C



10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23

24

S , T
S 3
o SRy
o 5

MS. MATHERS: Maybe if it's a murder case.

MS. BROWN: Okay. And but without knowing the
facts of this case, you would have that idea in your mind
that she may be mean just like that other woman?

MS. MATHERS: Yeah.

MS. BROWN: And would that

THE COURT: She ﬁodded her head yes for the
record.

MS. BROWN: Yes, and would she have to dispel,
get away that notion that you had that --

MS. MATHERS: Yes.

MS. BROWN: And, Your Honor, I challenge
Ms. Mathers>for cause.

THE COURT: Mr. Gregory?

MR. GREGORY: No objection, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Ms. Mathers, I'm going to release you
now. Thank you for being here today. I appreciate your
attendance and your time.

(Ms. Mathers was excusea and another name was
called.)

THE CLERK: Deborah Graf, G-r-a-f.

THE COURT: Ms. Graf, as you get up there, if you
would, ma'am, I think you heard our introductory questions.

MS. GRAF: Yes.
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THE COURT: Could you tell us a little about
yourself?

MS. - GRAF: I've been living in this valley -- I'm
Deborah Graf. I've lived in this wvalley for about 27,

28 Years,-and I'm retired from the school district, and
currently I wdrk part time at Maratime Senior Living.

THE COURT: What did you do when you were at the
school district?

MS. GRAF: Special needs.

THE COURT: Yes, ma'am. You were going to tell
me you're married?

MS. GRAF: Yes, I am married. My husband works
at Wal-Mart. He's a night stocker, so that did not sound
right. Two children.

THE COURT: Stocker, not a stélker?

MS. GRAF': .Yes, and then I have two children that
are like 32 and 27.

THE COURT: Thank you, ma'am. Now, were you able
to hear my other questions?

MS. GRAF: Yes.,

THE COURT: 1Is there anything about this case
that would cause you to feel that you could not be fair and
unbias?

MS. GRAF: No.
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THE COURT:
attorneys?

MS. GRAF:

THE COURT:

MS. GRAF:

Do you know any of the witnesses or

You know, I couldn't see them.

Take a moment.

No, just familiar names from being in

the valley for so many years.

THE COURT: Were there any of the questions that
' /

gave you pause Or gave you concern?

MS. GRAF:

my daughter in the younger years, and she's.been in and out

of here but -other than that, I don't think that would have an

effect on me.

THE COURT:

MS. GRAF:

THE COURT:

Only that I did have some trouble with

How is she doing now?
She's doing good now.

Good. Thank you, ma'am.

Mr. Gregory?

MR. GREGORY: No questions.

THE COURT:

MS. BROWN:

with the daughter, if I had been involved in one of those

cases.

THE COURT:

MS. BROWN:

remember it.
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THE COURT: Well, as long as Ms. Graf doesn't
remember, I don't think it matters if you do.

MS. BROWN: Okay. Was-there anybody else on that
last row or, Ms. Graf, that has any feelings one way or
another that come to mind when they hear a person is of a
Russian? \

THE COURT: Ms. Brown, I'm going to give you the

time that you need to do your job. However, it .appears that

‘we're'at lunch time. It also appears that we're almost an

‘hour and a half in for our reporter. How much longer do you

think you'll go?

MS. BROWN: I have a couple of more pages, Your
Honor.

THE COURT: Okay. All right. We're going to
take a recess. So to everyone, including those in the back
and everyone—up front, we're going to take a lunch recess.
We'll be back at 1:15, which is an. hour from now, and ask you
to be in your seats at that time.

What is important as you come in, and I'm going
to say this again later, but it is critically important that
you not discuss this case, and I'm going to read the
admonition here in a moment, but one of the things that you
need to know is that you don't know who the witnesses are.

You won't know them in the hallway if they happen to be here,

CAPITOL REPORTERS (775)882-5322

126



10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23

24

O )

feady to testify. You won't know who works for whom. ‘And so
if you engage in a conversation with someone, it may turn out
that that person is a witness in this case. So you must pay
attention to the admonition and you must honor it. We're
going to take a one-hour recess.

During this recess, you are admonished not to
talk or converse among yourselves or with anyone else on any
subject connected &ith this trial. You're not to read, watch
or listen to any report or commentary on the trial or any
person connected with this trial by any medium of
information, including without limitation, newspapers,
television, radio or internet or to form or express any
opinion on any subject connected with the trial until the
case 1is finally submitted to you. We'll be in recess until
1:15.

Attorneys stay. I'm going to let all of the
jurors leave for a moment, and I'm going to meet with the
attorneys.

Everyone have a seat. All of the potential
jurors are out of the room, except for one.

Sir, would you give me your name, please?

MR. SHARP: Yes, Your Honor, my name is Craig
Schorr.

THE COURT: Schorr?
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MR. SCHORR: Schorr.

THE COURT: Mr. Schorr, you had something you
wanted to tell me?

MR. SCHORR: Yes, I waé wondering if I could
please be dismissed as a potential juror for this case.

THE COURT: And why would you want to be
dismissed, sir? ,

MR. SCHORR: Because I personally know Mr. and
Ms. Leibel;

THE COURT: How do you know them?

MR. SCHORR: We were both members of Temple Bat
Yam which is a religious organization in South Lake Tahoe.

THE COURT: Do you feel that you would not be
able to be fair and impartial in this case? |

MR. SCHORR: I believe that I would not be féir
and impartial in this case.

THE COURT: Mr. Gregory?

MR. GREGORY: Mr. Schorr, how well did you know
Mr. and Ms. Leibel?

MR. SCHORR: Well, I knew them from being active
temple members. |

MR. GREGORY: Did you socialize with them?

MR. SCHORR: Only as it relates to the temple.

MR. GREGORY: Did you go to their home at all?
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MR. SCHORR: I was -- I have not been at their
home, no.

MR. GREGORY: What is it about your relationship
with them that makes you feel like you could not be fair and
impartial in this case?

MR. SCHORR: For one, for Harry, may his memory
be --

THE COURT: No, Mr. Schultz, sit down, please.

Mr. Schorr, you're fine. I wanted that other
gentleman to sit down.

MR. SCHORR: Could you please repeat your
question?

! MR. GREGORY: I was wondering if you could couch

—-— you don't need to get into detail. What was it about your

relationship with them that makes you feel like you couldn't
be fair in this case?

| MR. SCHORR: I was a personal friend of Harry,
and there were certain events like the gentleman up on the
board, Dr.-Brooks is my personal physician and he would have
events at his home, and Harry was a part of a program called
Kabbalah which is a special form of Judaism that he would be
a part of, and I listened to Harry and I -- and he was a
personal friend of mine, and I don't think I would be —- I

don't think I would be fair.
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MR. GREGORY: Thank you for that.

I don't have any furthér questions, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Ms. Brown?

MS. BROWN: No questions, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Anybody have any objection if I
release him?

MR. GREGORY: The State does not, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Mr. Schorr, I thank you for your

appearance today. You did what you exactly should have done

as a good citizen and a member of the community, and you are

released, sir.

MR. SCHORR: Thank you.

THE COURT: Thank you for being here.

(Mr. Schorr was excused.)

THE COURT: We're going to start right at 1:15.
We need to move along, and I'm not rushing. You have what
time you need, but that's why we're not having an hour and a
half lunch. We have an hour and be back in your seats.

(Whereupon, a lunch recess was taken.)

THE COURT: The parties stipulate to the presence
of the vénire.

MR. GREGORY: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Ms. Brown?

MS. BROWN: Yes, Your Honor.
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‘questioned, you talked about knowing Ms. Springmeyer and a

them. Does that make sense?

THE COURT: Ms. Brown, please proceed.
MS. BROWN: Ms. Marlow, there was just one thing

I wanted to come back to. When you were first being

couple of other witnesses and stated you would have a
tendency to believe them if they testified.

MS. MARLOW: Well, they are credible people that
I do know personally.

MS. BROWN: So that would be based on your
experience with them and not what you hear on the stand?

MS. MARLOW: Definitely, yes.

MS. BROWN: And knowing them personally, would
you be able to set that aside and listen to their testimony
without that preconception?

MS. MARLOW: Well, I'm not sure the question. If
they were speaking, I would believe them; If they were

telling an untruth, I might believe them just because I know

MS. BROWN: Yeah. And, Your Honor, I would
challenge Ms. Marlow for cause on the basis of bias.
~ THE COURT: Mr. Gregory, any response?
MR. GREGORY: No objection, Your Honor.
THE COURT: Ms. Marlow, without objection, I'm

going to let you go.
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MS. MARLOW: Okay.

THE COURT: But I want you to know, I greatly

appreciate you being here today. You did the right thing by

showing up.
| MS. MARLOW: It's our thing to do, so thank you.

THE COURT: Yes, ma'am, it certainly is, and I'm
glad you recognize that. Thank you for your time.

(Ms. Marlow was excused and another name was
called.)

THE CLERK: Jeanette Manzano.

THE. COURT: Got all the way up to past lunch and
thought you had to stay. Could you tell‘us your name, and I
think you know some of the questions.

MS. MANZANO: My name is Jeanette Manzano. I've
lived here about 32 years, married. My husband works for
Douglas County Works Department, no kids.

THE COURT: Do you work?

MS. MANZANO: No.

THE COURT: Okay. Thank you, ma'am. Do -- were
you able to hear all of the questions that we talked about
earlier?

MS. MANZANO: Yes.

THE COURT: Were any of them questions that

raised concerns for you?
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MS. MANZANO: I've just heard stuff around about
it so I kind of have already made in my mind. |

THE COURT: You've kind of made up your mind
already? |

MS. MANZANO: Just from what I've heard.

THE COURT: Well, the source of what you heard,
was it the'newspaper?

MS. MANZANO: Yeah and people, other people.

THE COURT: People talking?

MS. MANZANO: Yes.

THE COURT: So you have engaged in conversations
with your friends and your neighbors about this case?

MS. MANZANO: Uh-huh.

THE COURT: TIs that correct?

MS. MANZANO: Yes.

THE COURT: You believe based on those
conversations, you made up your mind one way or the other,
whichever way it is. You don't need to tell me that. You
feel like based on those conversations that you could not be
fair and impartial?

MS. MANZANO: I could:be fair and impartial.

THE COURT: You could?

MS. MANZANO: Yes, but —-

THE COURT: Tell me how you would set aside those
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discussions that you've had.

Ms. MANZANO: I would have to see probably all of
the evidence and have i£vpointed out.

THE COURT: Do you realize that the friends ‘and
neighbors that you've'had conversations with haven't seen any
of the evidence?

MS. MANZANO: Correct.

THE COURT: Do you realize they haven't heard any
of the witnesses?

MS. MANZANO: Yes.

THE COURT: And neither have you.

MS. MANZANO: No.

THE COURT: And none of that has happened and is

not going to happen until this trial begins, do you

understand that?

MS. MANZANO: Yes.

THE COURT: Would you be able to reach a
conclusion based solely on what you hear at this trial in
this room?

MS. MANZANO: Yes.

THE COURT: Did any of the other questions asked
earlier this morning give you cause for concern or make you
feel like you could not be fair and unbias?

MS. MANZANO: No.
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THE COURT: Do you think you can do equal justice
to both sides in this case? Is that a yes?

MS. MANZANO: Yes.

THE COURT: She can't write down when you nod
your head.

MS. MANZANO: I do have out of town reservations.
We are supposed to leave Friday morning.

THE COURT: Of this week?

MS. MANZANO: Yes.

THE COURT: To go how long?

MS. MANZANO: For four days.

THE COURT: Four days? Are they flight
reservations or hotel reservations?

MS. MANZANO: I don't know. It's a surprise for
my birthday.

THE COURT: TIt's not a very good surprise.

MS. MANZANO: Well, it's a surprise when I get
there.

THE COURT: I see. One of those pack a bag,
honey, we're going somewhere. I assume with your husband?

MS. MANZANO: Yes.

THE COURT: Mr. Gregory?

MR. GREGORY: Ma'am, do you know any of the folks

on the board there?
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MS. MANZANO: I do. I know —-- Dave back here.

THE COURT: I need you to speak up a little so
theiinterpreters can hear you.

MS. MANZANO: I know Dave Nishikida. I know that
cute little lady up there and her family. There was somebody
else I saw, just know them briefly.

THE COURT: So you know a couple of court
employees?

MS. MANZANO: Yes.

THE COURT: Would that cause you to have bias one
way or another?

MS. MANZANO: No.

THE COURT: Mr. Gregory?

MR. GREGORY: No other questions, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Ms. Brown?

MS. BROWN: Ms. Manzano, you say you have formed
an opinion -- an opinion concerning this case; is that
correct?

MS. MANZANO: Yes.

MS. BROWN: And that's based on information
you've gained from outside this courtroom?

MS. MANZANO: Of course.

MS. BROWN: If you formed an opinion, how do you

already set that aside?
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MS. MANZANO: I don't know. I mean, it's tough.

MS. BROWN: So it would be a challenge for you.

And, in fact, it would be almost you have an opinion and you

have to be brought away from that opinionlas opposed to you
have no opinion and you're waiting to form one; is that |
correct?

MS. MANZANO: Right.

MS. BROWN: And so the presumption of innocence
that Ms. Leibel is guaranteed wouldn't be there as far as
you're concerned because you formed an opinion?

MS. MANZANO: Correct.

MS. BROWN: Your Honor, I would challenge
Ms. Manzano for cause.

THE COURT: Mr. Gregory?

MR. GREGORY: No objection.

THE COURT: Ms. Manzano, thank you for being

here. I appreciate you showing up. You did the right thing.

Thank you. You are excused. Have a good trip.

MS. MANZANO: Thank you wvery much.

(Ms. Manzano was excused and another name was
called.)

THE CLERK: Elaine Kyle.

THE COURT: Ms. Kyle, come on up, and set your

coat down, and tell us a little bit about yourself, if you
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would, pleése, ma'am.

MS. KYLE: I've been here the shortest amount of
time. I've been here seven years, and I'm married and
retired, and my husband is retired, and so neither one of us
are doing anything. f volunteer at the animal shelter.

THE COURT: Okay. ©Now, tell us what you retired
from doing.

MS. KYLE: I was an office manager.

THE COURT: All right.

MS. KYLE: I moved here to take care of my
elderly mother who has since passed away.

THE COURT: What did your husband retire from?

MS. KYLE: He owned his own construction
business.

THE COURT: Okay. Did he retire also before you
moved?

MS. KYLE: When we moved.

THE COURT: When you moved.

MS. KYLE: Yes, we had no choice.

THE COURT: Okay. Now, were you able to hear me
this morning?

MS. KYLE: Yes, your voice projects very well.

THE COURT: Oh, good.

MS. KYLE: I could not hear some of the people up
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here because I was way in the back because it was ——.they
didn't speak very loudly.

THE COURT: Yog know, I mentioned it earlier but
the ventilation system in this room is really difficult and
if you're in that back corner, you really can't hear
anything, especially if we turn the air-conditioning up
enough to make it comfortable, so that's one of the problems
with this building.

But let's talk a little bit about some of those
questions that I asked. Were any of them that gave you cause
for concern or maybe made you think, well, that might bother
me a little bit or so?

MS. KYLE: Not really, and I have been here such
a short time, I don't know any of these people, you know,

SO —-—

THE COURT: Okay. -

MS. KYLE: I'm not familiar with the case.

THE COURT: And do you have any history with the
judicial system or the legal system or law enforcement that
would make you either bias for or against either party in
this case?

MS. KYLE: Not really.

THE COURT: Okay. Mr. Gregory, do you have

questions that you would like to ask‘Ms. Kyle?
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MR. GREGORY: No thank you, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Thank you, sir.

Ms. Brown? |

MS. BROWN: No, Your Honor. Thank you.

THE COURT: Thank you.

Ms. Kyle, you can have a seat, if you would like.

MS. KYLE: Yay.

THE COURT: Ms. Brown, you have some additional
questions I think of the entire panel.

MS. BROWN: If I can back up to one specific one

- for Ms. Trent. You stated you were a legal secretary. Where

do you work at?

MS. TRENT: I work for the Attornéy General's
Office for bufeau of consumer protection.

MS. BROWN: So you deal with consumer issues, not
criminal issues; is that correct?

MS. TRENT: Yes, utilities.

MS. BROWN: Thank you. Since e&erybody has had a
short period of time to reflect over lunch today, is there
any concerns that have come to mind that you would like to
address with the Court concerning any questions that have
been previously asked?

I think most of you now understand the decision

you make in this case is going to be basically a life
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changing decision for Ms. Leibel?

There was one juror that left earlier that was
very emotionally upset over even the idea of making this type
of decision. I was wondering, is there anybody that has any
personal beliefs or religious beliefs that would make them
have kind of the same emotional or type feelings in this
situation or make them feel that they are under able to do
that, fulfill that task?

And I know all us in the courtroom, we're kind of
use to using some legal terminology or just terminology that
has become common in the context of a criminal case, and I
know on several occasions the word victim has been attached
to Mr. Leibel. For us, it really doesn't carry any emotional
connotation, but I want to check with you and are you —- do
any of you at this time assume Mr. Leibel to be a victim and
have that -- including that emotional attachment or is it if
he died at his own hands, he's not a victim is the easiest
way to say it. By terming him a victim, it's already as if a
decision has been made that something happéned. Can
everybody kind of separaté themselves from our more common
use within the legal system of these various terms? Thank
you.

Now, as you're going to hear during this case, as

I told you previously, Ms. Leibel was born in Russia. She
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does speak English as a second language, and so she can
converse in English, but she is here with interpreters today.

Are there any of you who speak a foreign language
as a second language?

And we heard from Ms. Pissamai earlier when she
was on the panel. She was in the back of the courtroom, and
she expressed some concern for herself because even though
she spoke English, she wrote English, it wasn't her own
language. It was a second language to her, and her concern
was if I'm a juror on this case, I might miss important
information because it's coming .to me in a language that
while I can converse in, I'm not an expert in and it's not
my —-- it's not my native language.

Do any of you have any feelings one way or
another of the fact that even though Ms. Leibel can converse
in English, if there are interpreters present in the
courtroom to help her understand all of the conversation and
all of the information that's coming to her?

Your Honor, could we have the interpreters just
introduce themselves. They have beautiful names, and I don't
want to butcher their last name.

THE COURT: Absolutely.

THE INTERPRETER: Hello, my is Zoya Spivakovsky.

I'm a certified court interpreter, and my language is Russian
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and English.

THE INTERPRETER: Hello, my name is Anna
Sosnovskoya. I'm a certified court interpreter, and my
native language is Russian, and I work with Russian
immigrants.

THE COURT: Thank you both.

MS. BROWN: And both of these individuals are
employed by the Court. They are not personal friends with
Ms. Leibel. They are hired for their professionalism. And I
want to know if you -- if you were on trial in a country
where you weren't familiar with the language, would you want
an interpreter present even if you knew some of the language
to make sure you understood everything that was going on?
Nobody has a problem with that? Thank you.

There's going to be testimony at trial that
Mr. and Ms. Leibel are of the Jewish faith. In our society,
a lot of times our religions get bound up in our politics,
and I want to ask you basically a direct question. Because
of this religion, are there political reasons or any other
reasons that you would have bias against Ms. Leibel because
of her religious beliefs?

Does anyone have any special familiarity with the
Jewish reiigion? o

In the back row, are you Mr. Klein?
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THE COURT: Mr. Klein.

MR. KIEIN: I grew up in Los Angeles, and a lot
of my friends were Jewish and speak some Yiddish.

MS. BROWN: Okay. Is there anything about just
that general knowledge that you foresee having any affect on
how you view the evidence in this case?

MR.. KLEIN: No.

THE COURT: Thank you. And, Ms. Martin?

MS. MARTIN: I grew up in New York, so I had a
lot of Jewish friends, a lot of syﬁagogue services, and it
wouldn't bias me one way or the other. I'm Christian.

MS. BROWN: Thank you. And, Ms. Watson?

MS. WATSON: Yes, my sister —-- I grew up in New
Jersey and New York, as well. My sister is Jewish. My niece
and nephew are Jewish. My great nieces are Jewish, and we
have one big happy family of mixed everything.

MS. BROWN: Okay.

MS. WATSON: We're —-—

MS. BROWN: So there's nothing about that that
would cause you any concerns in this case?

MS. WATSON: Not at all.

THE COURT: Anyone else? Yes.

UNIDENTIFTED PROSPECTIVE JUROR: I'm in the same

boat. I just have friends who are Jewish and would not cause
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me any concern.

MS. BROWN: Anyone else? Thank you.

I kind of like to have everybody maybe go dbwn a
row or something and just talk about maybe your
decision-making process in an election year, would you say
you're the researcher that goes to all of the town meetings
or listens to the debates, reads the articles, you know, does
on-line investigation or are you more one that would vote
along a party line or maybe basically on what advice of.
friends? So if we can just start down there and just maybe
describe that type of process or if you're interested in
politics.

MR. TITTLE: Well, I'm an auditdr so I always X
reséarch everything and politically would be the same. I do
lean one way or the other as far as party wise, but I do do a
lot of research. I go to town meetings. I'm very active in
that kind of stuff.

MS. BROWN: Thank you. Go ahead.

MR. UNRUH: I definitely do have, like, a
political party that I -- that I, like, associate with, but I
definitely do do research over the different candidates, and
I've voted against what I'm registered as in a couple of
times just because the facts on the person, so I feel like

I'm pretty intelligent, and I'm a good critical thinker. I'm
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pretty good with, like, analyzing so I don't think it will be
a problem. |

MS. BROWN: Okay;

MS. WALLING: I don't side with either political
party. I typically will make a decision based on certain |
major topics and just kind of how I'm influenced based on
those individual topics than where the party stands on those.

MS. BROWN: Okay. And, Ms. Dublanc?

MS. DUBLANC: I'm a researcher. I have to base
everything on, you know, what I find out, what I see, and
then I base it off of that, so.

MS. BROWN: Ms. Matus?

MS. MATUS: I'm very very unpolitical. So I
basically end up going off the views that I hear from the
individuals. I don't vote one party or the other.

MS. BROWN: Okay. Mr. Norberg?

MR. NORBERG: In my work, for instance, as a
civil engineer, we work with a lot of facts, a lot of
different facts and so when I make decisions, I weigh all of
the facts and ask questions and just use all of the iﬁput to
make a best decision I can.

MS. BROWN: Okay. Thank you.

And, Ms. Gonzales?

MS. GONZALES: Well, I usually don't vote.
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MS. BROWN: Okay. When you make -- you're going
to make an important decision -- I mean, if I'm going to buy
a car, I pretty much say I want a Toyota and go to the Toyota
place and say I want that car. I want to pay this much a
month, make it happen, and I don't like to research.

MS. GONZALES: Well, I guess I would research it
a bit.

THE COURT: Are you more of a researcher?

MS. GONZALES: Yes.

MS. BROWN: And, Ms. Matthews?

MS. MATTHEWS: TIf I'm making a major decision, I
do research the evidence, and I also would check with my
friends for reference if it's something I'm going to purchase
or if it's somewhere I'm going to go, if my friends who I
trust if they have had experience. Also, I weigh the pro's
and the con's, and I am affiliated with one party, and I
pretty much stick to the party line.

MS. BROWN: Okay.

MS. MATTHEWS: I have been the same party ever
since I started voting.

MS. BROWN: Mr. Morningstar?

MR. MORNINGSTAR: I consistently am open to all
channels, no biases.

MS. BROWN: Okay.
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MR. MORNINGSTAR: I do research.
MS.
MR. HIPPLE: I have a little bit of a political
lean towards one side, but I definitely don't just follow
party lines, as I do more research and if I haven't had time
to research one side or the other, I just won't vote on the
issue unless I'm informed on what's going on.
MS.
MR.
MS.
MS,

and then decide. If it's an issue I'm not totally sure on

one way or the

MS.

MS.

MS.

MR.

decisions from

MS.

MS.

MS.

MS.

there.

BROWN':

BROWN':

KINGHAM: I'm a researcher.

BROWN:

KYLE:

other,
BROWN :
STUGAR!

BROWN :

MARTIN:

that.

BROWN':

WATSON:

BROWN:

UNSINN:

- research so I can take my notes and make my decision from
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Mr. Hipple?

Okay. And, Mr. Kingham?

Okay. Ms. Kyle?

I research. I take on the information

I don't vote on that issue.
Okay. Ms. Stugart?

T: I research.
And, Mr. Martin?

I research also based on facts, make

And, Ms. Watson?
I research also, mostly on-line.
Okay. And Ms. Unsinn?.

I'm a note-taker, so I have to
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MS. BROWN: Okay. And, Mr. Butler-?

MR. BUTLER: Well, I'm not from Missouri, so you
have to show me.

MS. BROWN: And, Mr. Ezekiel?

MR. EZEKIEL: I'm neutral, and I'm a researcher.

MS. BROWN: Okay. Ms. Wood?

MS. WOOD: I pretty much stick to the party that
I've been affiliated with since I started voting.

MS. BROWN: Okay. Mr. Farnham?

MR. FARNHAM: I'm not political at all, and I do
a lot of research and gather as much information as poséible
before I make any big decisions.

MS. BROWN: Okay. And, Ms. Trent?

MS. TRENT: I'm a researcher.

MS. BROWN: Okay. Ms. Goodwin?

MS. GOODWIN: I'm pretty much living still in the
'60s. I don't do anything on the internet. I've never been
on Face Book. I don't do any of that stuff. I read the Wall
Street Journal every night. I still like the newspaper. I
read the -- I watch the news. My husband and I have very
heated political conversations over dinner almost nightly.
We're very like minded, but we discuss a lot of politics.
I'm very much into politics.

MS. BROWN: Okay. You brought up a good point,

CAPITOL REPORTERS (775)882-5322

149

964



10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23

24

* ",
4 i
. ;
i E4
o .

that you and your husband can have heated discussions.

MS. GOODWIN: And still be married.

Mé. BROWN: So if you're in a jury room with
people that some of who you know, some of who you don't know,
you have that background expressing an opinion?

MS;.GOODWIN: Oh, yeah. 1I'll make myself known.

MS. BROWN: Okay. Ms. Strickland?

MS. STRICKLAND: A little bit of research, not a

lot. I like to talk to people if I'm making a big decision,

and I'm not to believe everything everyone.says.

MS. BROWN: Okay. And, Ms. Martin?

MS. MARTIN: I'm not political. Although, I do
vote. I don't vote for party line, and I'm probably the
minority in this county, and&I vote, and I do research.

MS. BROWN: You do research, okay.

And, Ms. Graf?

MS. GRAF: I'm just kind of neutral. I'm pretty
easygoing. I'll take -- if it's something really important,
I will research facts but other than that, I just kind of
like go with my true feelings on what I feel.

MS. BROWN: Mr. Petri? ’

MR. PETRI: Research.

MS. BROWN: Okay. Mr. Alexander?

MR. ALEXANDER: I'll tie it back to my work, so
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research. And then next week I got scheduled to fly down to
Vegas, deal with a person that created the product that
people that we'll be using it to make our decision.

MS. BROWN: Okay. Ms. Bavaro?

MS. BAVARO: I do research myself, and I don't
necessarily vote for party line.

MS. BROWN: And, Ms. Thompson?

MS. THOMPSON: I don't do politics. I don't talk
politics. I don't listen to politics. I:-can't stand
politics.

MS. BROWN: Bad topic?

MS. THOMPSON: If people talk about it, I'll let
them talk, but I don't give my opinion and if forced to,
forget it. It's not happening.

MS. BROWN: Mr. Landvater?

MR. LANDVATER: I make decisions based on
research when I can and also depending on what the situation
is, not split second decisions, based on knowledge.

MS. BROWN: Okay. And, Mr. Klein?

MR. KLEIN: Well, I'm not like Will Rogers. I
don't bélieve everything I read in the ﬁewspaper. I do a lot
of research and a lot of times I don't believe what
politicians say until I see their voting record. If I agreé

with their voting record, then I'll agree with the
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politician, but that's proof in the pudding right there.

MS. BROWN: Okay. And, Mr. Mortellaro?

MR. MORTELLARO: I'm an analyst for a living so I
do a lot of research.

MS. BROWN: I want to bring up with, Ms. Graf,
you did speak with me briefly earlier concerning your
daughter, and there's no issue. I know we had some contact
concerning that. Do you have -- does that bring up any
issues with you?

MS. GRAF: ©No, that's fine. That's fine.

MS. BROWN: If Mr. Gregory woula like to
follow-up on that.

MR. GREGORY: Just quickly, Your Honor, I did see
them have a conversation and if you could just let us know
what that conversation was, that would be great.

MS. GRAF: Oh, we were discussing the fact that I
couldn't remember if she had defended my daughter. My
daughter had gotten in a little trouble, and my daughter
pleaded guilty, so it was kind of very neutral. I don't
really know her, and I have no bias against or for what
happened. It was ﬁy daughter's fault.

MR. GREGORY: And Ms. Brown represented your
daughter?

MS. GRAF: Yes.
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MR. GREGORY: Did you have contact with
Ms. Brown?

MS. GRAF: Not at all.

MR. GREGORY: What made you think about going up
to visit with her today?

MS. GRAF: Well, because my daughter had been in
trouble several times, and I asked her who, you know —- you
know, who was representing her and stuff like that, and she
did mention Ms. Brown, but I personally was not there at the'
time of court and did not have any interactions with her.

MR. GREGORY: Okay. Thank you.

MS. GRAF: Okay.

MS. BROWN: Thank you. Now, I've noticed on some
of the questionnaires, there's several folks --

THE COURT: Wait. Perhaps this is a good
opportunity for me to remind everybody that -- Ms. Graf, I
understand that you may have had a conversation with your
daughter at lunch time?

MS. GRAF: I called her and asked her who
represented her.

THE COURT: Again, there will be no independent,
investigation of any issue in this case.

MS. GRAF: Okay.

THE COURT: None whatsoever. You will not go on
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the internet, to look up anything about this case. You won't
call someone you know, and I'll discuss it more with you
later. That is the last instance, the very last instance of
anyone making a call or doing any independent research about
any issue associated with this case.

Please proceed.

MS. BROWN: Thank you, Your Honor. There were
some folks within the jury panel that noted that in their
background they had some medical training, either through
nursing, with EMT, whatever. There is going to be some
medical testimony in this case, anq sometimes people have
preconceptions of things based on their own experience.

Anybody that has a background for example in the
medical field, can you separate what your medical experience
is from, if there's an expert or doctor for example that
comes in and expresses a different opinion, would you be able
to ——- you get to evaluate the testimony of experts the same
as any other witness. Would you be able to set your own
personal experiences aside and listen to that type of
testimony if it was in your own field in an open manner
without any preconceptions?

THE COURT: Mr. Klein had his hand up.

MS. BROWN: Oh, I'm sorry, Mr. Klein.

MR. KLEIN: Well, I was an EMT and search and
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rescue. I didn't make any judgments how somebody got hurt or
whatever happened. I just tried to save their life.

MS. BROWN:v Okay. So your job was the actual
emergency at the time?

MR. KLEIN: Exactly.

MS. BROWN: Thank you. There's going‘to be other
types of scientific evidence in this case. I know we have
analysts and some people with backgrouhds in engineering and
again, I mean, you can bring as a collective unit'all your
practical experiences and your common sense into the jury
room, but would everybody be able to listen to an expert in
whatever scientific field they are testifying in without your
own —- without trying to become the third expert in the jury
room if it was something within your field of expertise?

You understand it's the testimony of the
witnesses that's judged in the jury room and somebody else
can't be -- another juror with -- and may very well have a
great background in that information can't supply the extra
information or disinformation?

Are there any of you believe just because

- something is written in the police report, it's true?

There's going to be the testimony of several
experts also in this case and when someone testifies as an

expert, they discuss their qualifications but, again, you're
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going to be listening to not only their background and
experience but to what they say and because somebody is
testifying as an expert doesn't automatically mean that their
word is gold. Do you understand even with expert testimony,
you're able to judge it under the same standard as you would
any other witness? 1Is it reasonable? Is it credible? Those
types of things;

Now, you've all been sitting here quite a long
time today. Is there anything that we haven't brought up in
our questioning that if you would like to bring up to us to
see if there's an issue? And, again, if anybody, as I said,
feels they need to bring up something out of the presence of
the jury, contact can always be made with the bailiffs.

Are there any of you here who have for example
familiar with firearms?

Okay. Why don't we just start down theré, the
type of familiarity you have.

MR. TITTLE: I've been in marine corps for
22 years, so I have -- I'm familiar with different types of
weapons. I also target practice.

MS. BROWN: And, Mr. Unruh?

MR. UNRUH: I've been shooting ever since I was,
like, six, been reloading pretty much rifles, handguns,

shotguns, anything.
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MS. BROWN: Okay. 2And second row back. That
will be Ms. Gonzales?

MS. GONZALES: I'm from Michigan.

MS. BROWN: I'm sorry, I can't hear you.

MS. GONZALES: I'm from Michigan so I grew up
hunting and stuff with my dad.

MS. BROWN: Okay. So you're familiar through

hunting?

MS. GONZALES: Well, yeah, and I go to the range
a lot.

MS. BROWN: Okay. Anybody else in that row? I'm
SOrry.

UNIDENTIFIED PROSPECTIVE JUROR: I own a variety
of rifle, shotguns and handguns. I do a lot of hunting, both
bird and big game and a lot of target shooting.

MS. BROWN: Okay.

UNIDENTTIFIED PROSPECTIVE JUROR: And hunting for
me as well.

MS. BROWN: Okay. Back on the second row,
anybody else? Third row would be Ms. Watson.

MS. WATSON: My husband owns firearms, but I
don't know anything —— I don't handle them. I don't know how
to use them, but we do have them locked in safe in our house.

MS. BROWN: Okay. Yes?
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MR. BUTLER: I work at the prison so I have to
qualify twice a year with a handgun, a shotgun, a high
powered rifle, but I own no personal weapons at home.

MS. BROWN: Okay. And, Mr. Ezekiel, did you
have?

Okay. And then the next row, Ms. Martin?

MS. MARTIN: We have some guns. I've done some
target practice, but I would not call myself in any way,
shape or form any kind of expert.

MS..BROWN: Okay. Anyone else?

UNIDENTIFIED PROSPECTIVE JUROR: I would say the
same thing.

MS. BROWN: Okay. Yes?

UNIDENTTFTIED PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Shootiné since I
was a little kid with my dad, hunting, reloading shotgun and
several handguns.

MS. BROWN: Okay. And in the back row, down,
Ms. Graf?

MS. GRAF: No.

MS. BROWN: Anybody else along that, yes.

UNIDENTIFIED PROSPECTIVE JUROR: I've had
weapons, training and own a couple of firearms.

UNIDENTIFIED PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Same here, as

well as target shooting.
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shotgun,

practice.

THE INTERPRETER: I'm sorry, what?

UNIDENTIFIED PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Target shooting.

MS. BROWN: Ms. Bavaro?

MS. BAVARO: No.

MS. BROWN: Yes?

UNIDENTIFIED PROSPECTIVE JUROR: I'm familiar

with firearms.

MS. BROWN: Do you own firearms?
UNIDENTIFIED PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Yes.
MS. BROWN: What type of firearms do you own?

UNIDENTIFIED PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Handguns,

long gun.

MS. BROWN: Okay. Yes?

UNIDENTIFIED PROSPECTIVE JURCR: Along with

classic cars, I collect firearms. I have a concealed carry
permit, and I have Federal C and R firearms license and I
have an extensive firearm selection. I do not hunt.

MS. BROWN: Okay. And do you go to the range and

UNIDENTIFTED PROSPECTIVE JUROR: JI target

MS. BROWN: Okay. Thank you.
Mr. Mortellaro?

MR. MORTELLARO: I grew up hunting and target
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shooting.

MS. BROWN: OCkay. Do you own presently?

MR. MORTELLARO: I do still own firearms and
handguns and shotguns.

MS. BROWN: Thank you.

UNIDENTIFTED PROSPECTIVE JUROR: I just want to
disclose that my husband collects firearms. They are in a
safe. He's taken me target practice maybe twice --

MS. BROWN: Okay.

UNIDENTIFTED PROSPECTIVE JUROR: =-- in 20 years,
but I don't know a thing about firearms. -

MS. BROWN: Okay. Do you have the —-- does he
keep the guns in the home?

UNIDENTIFIED PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Yes, they are in
a safe.

MS. BROWN: Okay. Thank you. Yes?

MS. MATUS: My husband owns several different
guns and they are kept in a safe in tﬂe house, but I don't
know anything about them.

MS. BROWN: Okay.

MS. MATUS: He took me shooting once, but that
was eons ago.

MS. BROWN: Did you ever have to carry a gun as
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MS. MATUS: I've never been a sworn officer,
always been a civilian.

MS. BROWN: Does anyone feel that there's any
other reason we haven't discussed that you wouldn't'be able
to be a fair and impartial juror in this case?

Thank you, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Do you pass for cause?

MS. BROWN: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Do you pass for cause, Mr. Gregory?

MR. GREGORY: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay. Ladies and gentlemen, now is
the point at which the attorneys need to examine their notes
for a few minutes and make some decisions. While although
we've only been back in session for a few minutes, I'm going
to give you the opportunity to go to the restroom and come
back and have a seat back there, okay? I'm going to ask
everyone else not to leave just yet until this matter is
concluded.

Those of you that are in the back of the room
will probably get the opportunity to leave very shortly, and
so I'm going to ask you -- I'm going to give the attorneys
about ten minutes. Do you need more than that, 152

MS. BROWN: Yes.

MR. GREGORY: 15 minutes, please, Your Honor.
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THE COURT: Very well. You can tell I like to
move things along.

So I'll tell you what, we will be in recess until
2:15. Now, here's the thing, at 2:15, I would really like to
come in and sit down in my chair and get started. So that
means that probably by about 2:13, the bailiffs are going to
be calling everybody into the room to come and have a seat,
so please be in an area where they can find you and get you
in to have a seat.

If the attorneys feel like they need more time
than that, allow me the opportunity to tell the jurors before
I bring them in here. You have every opportunity to just
tell the bailiff you want to see me, and I'll give you more
time if you feel that you need more time, all right? It is
an important decision, I recognize that.

So, Ms. Brown, you look concerned. Do you need
more time than that right now?

MS. BROWN: Yes.

THE COURT: Tell me how much time you need?

MS. BROWN: I think a half an hour is more
reasonable.

THE COURT: Be prepared to be in your seats at
2:30. We'll be in recess until then.

Now, before you leave, you may have heard this
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befbre, but you're going to hear it again. Ladies and
gentlemen, we're going take a half an hour recess. During
this recess, you are admonished not to talk or converse among
yourselves or with anyone else on any subject connected with
this trial. You're not to read, watch, listen to any report
of or commentary on the trial or any person connected with
this trial by any medium of information, including without
limitation newspaper, television, radio or internet. You're
not to form or express any opinion on any subject connected
with the trial until the case is finally submitted to you.
No phone calls. No asking relatives. No research. No
internet, and I'll see you at 2:30.

Wé’re in recess.

(Whereupon, a brief recess was taken.)

THE COURT: We're back in session. We're back in
session. The State is here. Ms. Brown is here. Ms. Henry
is here. Ms. Leibel is here. The interpreters are here.

| First of all, would the parties stipulate that
the venire was here during the last proceeding which we did
right after lunch?

MR. GREGORY: Yes, Your Honor.

MS. BROWN: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: And I will tell you that just a few

moments ago.
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MS. WOOD: Ms. Wood.

THE COURT: Ms. Wood came to my office and
advised me that she had some difficulties that she did not
say in front of everyone else, and so I'm going ask her to
enunciate those now, and we will address them. Please,
madam.

MS. WOOD: Past cases, things I've read in the
paper, stuff like that has kind of given me prejudice towards
Ms. Brown. I don't know what it is personally. I Jjust don't
know that I would have a problem with listen}ng to and being
uﬁbias in your case, and I just wanted to be hpnest about
that. I'm sorry I didn't say anything. I just didn't want
to say it in front all of the juries or jurors, but I went
home and thought about it at lunch, and I can't tell you what
it is. I won't say something personal because I don't know
you, but I've just read other things, and I just have my
opinion, just my opinion.

THE COURT: So you believe that you may have a
bias against Ms. Brown?

MS. WOOD: Yes.

THE COURT: You think that would keep you from
being a fair and impartial juror?

MS. WOOD: Yes, I do.

THE COURT: And you think that that would reflect
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negatively on Ms. Leibel?

MR. GREGORY: Yes, it might.

THE COURT: Mr. Gregory, do you have questions
you want to ask?

MR. GREGORY: No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Ms. Brown?

MS. BROWN: No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: I'm going to excuse Ms. Wood, and do
we have the other juror available?

Ms. Wood, thank you for your --

MS. WOOD: Thank you.

THE COURT: -- appearance today. I appreciate
you being here, and I appreciate you being honest with me and
telling me about those things. I wish you well.

MS., WOOD: Thank you.

(Ms. Wood was excused and another name was
called.)

THE BAILIFF: They have disbursed so one of the
bailiffs is Currently looking for him.

THE COURT: I've already asked the clerk to pull
another name. When we find that person, the bailiffs will
notify me, and we'll go into session immediately, and we'll
go through all of the questions that I've been going through

with people when they have come up. They will each get an
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opportunity to question this potential juror.

‘ That juror, what is marked on your sheet as seat
number nine, which is in the jury box on the upper corner in
the —— towards the wall, and we'll get the opportunity to
examine that -- that potential juror. I'm going to ask
nobody to go very far. You can go back to your office if you
want, but I want you to be available to come immediately back
once we find this juror.

Would you please give them the name of this
potential juror.

THE CLERK: They have it.

THE BATLIFF: Steven Yates.

THE COURT: They have it? I want the lawyers to
have it.

THE CLERK: Steven Yates. Steven with a V.

THE COURT: Steven Yates?

THE CLERK: Yes.

THE COURT: I want you to pull another name,
whoever the next name is and while we talk to Mr. Yates, if
he's not available -- if he's not going to be a potential
Juror. here, we have to excuse him for cause. I want the
other name available immediately, so let Rick know who that
is and have that person not wandering far so I can pull the

name immediately if I have to.
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MS.
THE

MS.

THE
Mr. Yates.
MS.

we're trying to

there any questions about this procedure?
GREGORY: No, Your Honor.

BROWN: No, Your Honor.

COURT: Are there any objections to it?
BROWN: No, Your Honor.

GREGORY: No, Your Honor.

COURT: Okay. We're in recess until we f

)

BROWN: Your Honor, can I just bring up,

discuss jurors here. We have court personnel

in the courtroom, and we cannot take Ms. Leibel anywhere.

THE

think that security is going to want to be somewhere nearby.

MS.

otherwise.

THE

MS.

THE

COURT: Okay. I'm going to ask -- well,

BROWN: Well, I understand that but

COURT: What are you asking for?

HENRY: We need privacy.

COURT: To what degree? If you have a

bailiff in the courtroom, does that bother you?

MS.

THE

courtroom.

MS.

MS.

CAPITOL REPORTERS (775)882-5322

BROWN: No.

COURT: Okay. Then everyone else leave the

BROWN: Thank you.

HENRY: Thank you, Your Honor.
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(Whereupon, a recess was had.)

THE COURT: I believe that this is Mr. Yates.

MR. YATES: Yes.

THE COURT: How are you, sir?

MR. YATES: Good.

THE COURT: Mr. Yates, you found yourself brought
in at this la£e stage because it became necessary for me to
excuse one of the people who was sitting up here earlier.

MR. YATES: Okay.

THE COURT: So I would like for you to maybe just
answer those first initial questions for us. How long have
you been here?

MR. YATES: 1I'll tell you what, you scared the
crap out of me. I was like what the heck am I doing?

THE COURT: Sir, you're in no trouble. We just
had to remove someone and you were the next name that would
be called on the list and rather than bring everybody in and
go through this, I'm trying to move the process along.

MR. YATES: Okay.

THE COURT: I'm sorry to do that to you. We do
have the cardiac paddle devices available.

MR. YATES: I think we're good. I've been here
nine years. I'm married. My wife is a hairstylist. I work

for the State.
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THE COURT: What do you do?

MR. YATES: I help people with government
contracts. I also own a small business. My wife and I have
a franchise called Margarita Man. We have margarita
machines. If you need one here, let me know. I have two
kids, 20, 24 years old, and that's pretty much it. All of
the questions that you asked, I had no issues at all.

THE COURT: Were you able to hear me, sir?

MR. YATES: Everything.

THE COURT: And do you have any bias either for
or against either party?

MR. YATES: I don't. I'm an independent voter.
Whenever I buy anything, I read reviews on almost everything
I buy. I don't get the local newspaper so I have no idea
what this case is about. Almost everything that I get is off
the internet.

THE COURT: Very well.

Mr. Gregory, do you have any questions?

MR. GREGORY: No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Ms. Brown?

- MS. BROWN: Thank you. Mr. Yates, do you own any
firearms?

MR. YATES: I do not.

MS. BROWN: Okay. Are you familiar with
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firearms?

MR. YATES: I'm not, and I don't believe in
firearms.

MS. BROWN: And when you say I don't believe in
firearms?

MR. YATES: I don't believe in owning firearms.

MS. BROWN: Okay. Is that just personally for
yourself or is that just that I don't fhink people should
have firearms?

- MR. YATES: Personally, that's my personal

choice.

MS. BROWN: Okay. And I'm sorry, I missed --
I've got the fact that you work for the State of Nevada, is
that true?

MR: YATES: I help small businesses with
government contracts.

MS. BROWN: Okay.

MR. YATES: I would have no trouble doing the two
weeks.

MS. BROWN: Okay. That's fine, Your Honor.
Thank you.

THE COURT: Thank you.

Mr. Yates, I appreciate you being here. I'm

going to send you out in the hallway for a moment, but it
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will be just that. During that period of time, you are
instructed not to talk or converse amongst yourselves, with
anyone else or any on any subject connected with this trial
or to read, watch or listen to any report of or commentary on
the trial or any person connected with this trial by any
medium of information, including without limitation
newspaper, television, radio or internet. You're not to form
Or express any opinion on any subject connected with the
trial until the case is finally submitted to you.

Sir, thank you for being here. We're sorry for
the shock. If you'll wait outside for just a moment, I'm
going to talk to the attorneys for just a moment.

MR. YATES: You did wake me up, that's for sure.

THE COURT: Very well. We'll bring everyone in
in a moment.

MR. YATES: Okay. Thank you.

THE COURT: Does either party have an objection
to the matter in which this issue has come before the Court
in the manner in which the Court raised?

MR. GREGORY: No, Your Honor.

MS. BROWN: No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay. Does either party have any
objections to the process by which we are choosing the

jurors?
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MR. GREGORY: No, Your Honor.

MS. BROWN: Are we going to be passing that back
and forth in open court?

THE COURT: No, you're going to do it without
them here. I'm going to give you a chance to do it here in
Jjust a moment.,

MS. BROWN: Okay.

THE COURT: Do you have any objection to it?

MS. BROWN: No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Do you have any objection the number
of peremptories?

MS. BROWN: No, Your Honor.

MR. GREGORY: No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: In that case, let's give them the
sheet. The State goes first. And by the way, are you
prepared to proceed, Mr. Gregory?

MR. GREGORY: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Ms. Brown?

MS. BROWN: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Did you have enough time?

MS. BROWN: Yes, Your Honor. Slow it down a bit.
You're even talking fast today.

THE COURT: Usually I'm so laid back.

MS. BROWN: I know.
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MR. GREGORY: Your Honor, would you like the
juror number or just the name?

THE CLERK: Number would be great for me just so
I make sure I get the right one.

THE COURT: And we'll use the numbers that we
have on the sheet. The jurors have not actually been
assigned a juror number with like on the juror tag, like in
some other jurisdiction where they are only known by number,
but if you could identify the seating location, that will
assist our clerk a great deal, and I thank you.

MR; GREGORY: If I'm wrong on the number, the
name will predominate?

THE CLERK: Yes, thank you.

THE COURT: The name trumps.

MR. GREGORY: Thank you.

MS. BROWN: Mr. Gregory waives.

THE COURT: No, ma'am. If he waives, you'll get
the next one, and then the Court will take the balance of
them from taking them from the highest number working
backwards.

MS. BROWN: I'm not done. I'm not following what
you're saying.

THE COURT: Okay. Well, since you're not done

and you've given one, the next one that is going to be
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excused is going to be the last one on the list, that is
going to be Mr. Norberg, and the Court is going to name that
one. You'll get another one. You still have the opportunity
to waive or now not waive.

| MR. GREGORY: Yes, if I could seé the list.

THE COURT: Well, that was your turn since you
waived, so then it's Ms. Brown's turn. Then you'll get
another shot. If you waive that one, then I will waive one
which will be the last one on the list.

MR. GREGORY: Your Honor, I've never understood
or heard a process where the Court does the challenge.

THE COURT: We have to eliminate some names so
that there are only 14 left. I'm not going to seat 15
jurors.

MR. GREGORY: I understand, but I object to the
Court excusing somebody. The numbers would be whoever is
left in the box after the parties have exercised their
challenges. I don't believe the Court gets to select who the
jurors are.

THE COURT: It's not a matter of where they were
sitting originally, Mr. Gregory. The third seat in the box
has the same -- in this process the same value as the 16th
seat, and sé I'm working backwards. When you say whoever is

left, that's who would move to fill in any way because I'm -
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working with the very last person who was called up.

MR. GREGORY: Okay. 8o you did not -- you're not
exercising a challenge to excuse Mr. Norberg?

THE COURT: No, I'm knocking the very last person
off of the list which would be number 32. The reason it's
Mr. Norberg is unless he's already knocked off, I didn't see
whether he is or not.

MR. GREGORY: But according to the list, so I
waived my seventh. The'defense invoked their seventh and
waived or --

MS. BROWN: If he had chosen Mr. Norberg next.

MR. GREGORY: -- Ms. Matthews, then it should
pass back to me to make the decision but instead it's filled
in. The Court has filled in Mr. Norberg as being somebody
the Court --

THE COURT: I'm sorry. You know, I meant to
write that where there was one that was waived. What we need
to do is if you're going to waive, the people on the very end
of the list are going to be the ones who get knocked off.

MR. GREGORY: Yes, yes.

MS. BROWN: But if you're doing this now, he
might have chosen Norberg.

MR. GREGORY: Exactly.

THE COURT: Well, you can strike that and you can
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just write waive if you want.

MR. GREGCRY: Okay.

THE COURT: But I'm going to let you know that
the people at the very end, the highest number, 32, 31,
however many waivers you have, those people are not going to
sit.

MR. GREGORY: I understand now.

THE COURT: Okay. I think you're right. TIt's
going to work out essentially the same way.

MR. GREGORY: It will. I get it.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. GREGORY: ©Now, Your Honor, number nine, that
gets me to the alternate, correct?

/ THE COURT: That's correct, but I'm not going to
tell anybody who the alternates are until after -- at the
close of the case. We'll draw two names to be alternates,
and they won't deliberate. The statute for everybody's
enlightenment, you get two peremptories for alternates.
That's why I asked everybody if they were satisfied with this
and there were no objections.

We'll give a new seating chart when we seat them
up here so that you can fill that in and know who's up here.
MS. BROWN: Thank you.

THE COURT: I think some of the numbers are off.

CAPITOL REPORTERS (775)882~-5322

176

991



10

11

12

13

14

15

le

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

- —
O o
—d R

Your numbers are -- you might have charts that are numbered
differently than mine. Did they get the right number?

THE CLERK: Probably.

THE COURT: So the numbers are a little bit
different. I'm going to have the clerk reorganize these and
she'll call these folks back up, but you should be aware that
it appears that the jury will be composed of the following
individuals, Mr. Bavaro, Mortellaro, Yates, Farnham, Trent,
Goodwin, Martin, Stugart, Martin, Watson, Unsinn, Ezekiel,
Kyle and Tittle. That leaves with the waivers Walling,
Dublanc and Norberg off. Does everyone agree with that?

MS. BROWN: Got it.

MR. GREGORY: Yes.

THE COURT: And the parties stipulate that's who
the jury will be?

MR. GREGORY: Yes.

MS. BROWN: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay. I'm going to give —-- well, I'm
going to give this back to them because tﬁere's a spot for
them to sign and date. So I'm going to ask them ﬁo do that
and when that's done, give that fo the clerk and as she is
preparing it, we'll bring everybody in but once that is
signed, I'm going to -- I've got a question to ask before

everybody comes in.
n
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Ms. Brown, and, Mr. Gregory, do you have a Batson
challenge or any other type of challenge to the other parties
use of peremptories?

MS. BROWN: No, Your Honor.

MR. GREGORY: No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Thank you. Let's bring them in. Sit
them all back there, and you can work on that while they're
getting in.

(Whereupon, the prospective jurors were brought
into the courtroom.)

THE COURT: Good afternoon again. The parties
have exercised their peremptory challenges and at this point,
our clerk is going to call out some names. Those will be the
people who will hear this case. So when your name is called,
if it is called, I want you to come up and take the seat
closest to Mr. Sutton on the back row, and we'll fill-in
along the back row, and then we'll Stért in the front, and
we'll fill in along the front, up to the wall where Deputy
Lindsey is.

Are you ready, ma'am?

THE CLERK: Yes. Russell Mortellaro. Rhonda
Bavaro. Suzanne Martin.

THE COURT: As you get handed a juror tag, please

put it on.
Y
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THE CLERK: Marlene Goodwin. Elaine Trent,
Wallace Farnham. Steven Yates. Patrick Ezekiel. Donna
Unsinn. Lisa Watson. Billy Martin. Susan Stugart. Elaine
Kyle, and Thomas Tittle.

THE COURT: Now, to all of the people in the
courtroom, the‘members of the panel who were not chosen to
come forward, I want to thank you for being here, for being
attentive, for paying attention, for answering our questions,
for giving us your day and for acting as what you are which
i1s good citizens for being here.

The Court could not operate in our system of
justice without your willingness to do what you've done
today, and I greatly‘éppreciate it. We would not have had a
sufficient number of jurors had you not shown up. Justice

would have been delayed, perhaps denied, and it would not

'have been fair to either one of these parties had you not

!

done what you did today. Your service is appreciated and
it's recognized.

You are welcome to stay throughout the
proceedings, if you choose to do so, if you want to watch the
trial. Trials in the United States are open to the public.
This trial is open to the public and you're welcome to stay.
You won't be members of the jury. You'll be just citizens

who want to see how the justice system works but if you have
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something else that you want to do or need to do or must do,
you are excused. I appreciate your attendance today. Thank
you. |
The clerk will now swear the jury in. Can
everybody stand and raise your right hand. |
(Whereupon, the oath was given and the jurors
were duly sworn.)

THE COURT: Thank you.
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STATE OF NEVADA, )
SS.
CARSON CITY. )

I, KATHY JACKSON, Nevada Certified Court Reporter
Number 402, do hereby certify:

That I was present in the District Court in Minden, in
and for the State of Nevada, on January 27, 2015, for the
purpose of reporting in verbatim stenotype notes the
within-entitled Trial;

That the foregoing transcript, consisting of pages 1
through 181, is a full, true and correct transcription of

part of said Trial.

Dated at Carson City, Nevada, this 5th day

of March, 2015.

Ykﬂljj&ig%. S¥S AT
" KATHY JACKSDN, CGR
Nevada CCR #402
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CAPITOL REPORTERS

515 W. Fourth Street, Suite B
Carson City, Nevada 89703
175-882-5322

THE NINTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF DOUGLAS

STATE OF NEVADA, Case :No. 14-CR-0062
Plaintiff,
Vs. Dept. No. 1

TATIANA LEIBEL, -
Defendant.

AFFTRMATION
Pursuant to NRS 239B.030

The Undersigned does hereby affirm that the following
document DOES NOT contain the social security number of any
person: (List of document (s) attached below)

1) Trial -- 1/27/15

-or-
The undersigned does hereby affirm that the document
named below DOES contain the social security number of a
person as required by state or federal law or for the
administration of a public program or for an application for
a federal or state grant: (List of document(s) attached -~
containing social security number information below)

1)

2)

i} _ £
(Your signaturef )ALl “opPdems.  (Date) 3/5/15
T S E

CAPITOL REPORTERS (775)882-5322

182



10

11

12

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

(_ C

Bl
Case No. 14-CR-0062 RECE!VE LR B VR YO
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This document does not contain personal information of any pexlsDog uglas Cou nty D if: L f,ﬂ ;;Eg Li ‘\MS
District Court Clerk a0
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IN THE NINTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF DOUGLAS

STATE OF NEVADA
Plaintiff, ORDER FOR PAYMENT
Vs.

TATIANA LEIBEL

N T N

Defendant

It is hereby ordered that payment of $28,054.22 (twenty eight thousand fifty four dollars

and twenty two cents) be made to:

Spencer Investigations
1325 Airmotive Way, #209
Reno, NV 89502

for payment of investigative fees in the above matter.

Dated this i dayof /]// ar J\ , 2015.

/%«

nct Court Judg

Submitted by:

Kristine L. Brown

1190 High School Street, Suite A
Gardnerville, Nv. 89410
775-783-8642

Counsel for Defendant
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IN THE NINTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

Case No. 14-CR-0062

Department No. I

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF DOUGLAS
)
STATE OF NEVADA
Plaintiff, EVIDENCE IN MITIGATION
Vs.

TATIANA LEIBEL

N L e N

Defendant )

Tatiana-Leibel, through counsel, submits the following evidence in mitigation at
sentencing:

1. A letter from Lana Raymo.

2. A letter from Chaya-Anna Leibel.

3. Graduation photograph

¥
Dated this 17 day of April, 2015.

Krisfine L. Brown
Bar No. 3026
The Law Office of Kristine L. Brown
1190 High Sc¢hool Street, Suite A
Gardnerville, Nevada 89410
775-783-8642

Attorney for the Defendant
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
I certify that I am an employee of The Law Office of Kristine L. Brown, LLC and that
on this day I hand delivered a true and correct copy of the Evidence in Mitigation to:
The Douglas County District Attorney’s Office
1038 Buckeye Street
Minden, Nevada 89423

Dated this |7 *day of April, 2015. ﬂ




Dearest Judge Young,

| am writing to you with tears, your Honor to kindly request
Mercy. Please keep Tatiana Leibel, my mother's sentence at the
low-end of timing as | am confident and sure that she is innocent
of all the charges of which she was convicted.

She is a peaceful, loving, bright and educated mother of 2
children and a grandmother of 3. Tatiana is a caring Jewish
woman who is very Spiritual and keeps the Sabbath religiously.
She has a strong family-oriented background and Always does
the right thing. How she ever got into this situation is beyond me!
It is truly incomprehensible.

She took such good care of Harry and love him with all of
her heart! She was always there for him and happy to be by his
side. She moved to Lake Tahoe and uprooted her life to be in a
place that he always dreamed of. My mom never left his side
during sickness and health. Anyone who interacted with her would
say the same things.

My mother Tatiana is the kind of person who would offer to
help the elderly, who would teach a child something new and put
others before herself. She is a loved member of the Jewish
community. She is not a threat to anyone but rather an asset to
the Jewish community. She is the staple and the strength of our
family!

| Thank You for taking the time out to consider my thoughts
and your efforts in ensuring that justice is served righteously.
Please be kind as she is Completely Innocent.

Kindly and Sadly written
Lana Raymo and family
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Dear Your Honor Judge Young,

My name is Chaya-Anna Leibel and this is regarding my mother, Tatiana Leibel,
who has been wrongly accused for a crime she did not commit. I attended my mother’s
trial and although I believe you did a wonderful job with being fair to both sides in the
courtroom, I believe the jury was not. After both sides closed with their arguments and
the verdict was read, I witness something that I thought was very unfair and made me
skeptical as to whether or not the jury members viewed my mother’s case with an open
mind. Once the jury. members were allowed to leave after the verdict was read, one of the
jury members decided to stay and sat down right next to officer Garren to hear when
sentencing was going to happen. I recall that jury members had to swear under Oath that
they did not know any witnesses on the board when pledging to be a jury member, but
after seeing what I saw, I believe that one of them could have lied. This was just my
observation, but everyone in the courtroom saw it.

- Also, even though the jury members were told to keep an open mind during the
course of the trial, I believe that most of them did not. It was obvious that my father’s
autopsy was not done correctly and Dr.Omalu even proved that it was not. However, the
jury members did not seem to take any of the physical evidence shown to them into any
account. The jury members have sentenced an innocent woman to prison based upon
circumstantial evidence and not actual facts.

Due to these circumstances, I would ask for you to please review the case of my
mother, Tatiana Leibel: State of Nevada vs. Tatiana Leibel. If you happen to not review
my her case, I would ask for you to consider her sentencing to be at the lowest time
possible. She does not deserve to spend years in prison for a crime she did not commit.
My mother is a very loving, honest woman and from the start she has pled her innocence.
She has a bachelor’s degree from University of Nevada Reno, a mother of two daughters,
a grandmother of three children. She has not been able to mourn the loss of her husband
with her family because she has been kept in jail based on prejudice and unfair citizens.
She poses no threat to society. Please give my mother the justice she deserves.

Thank you for your time and all that you do,
Chaya-Anna Leibel
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Minden, Nevada 89423

Douglas County District Attoméy
(775) 782-9800 Fax (775) 440-4403
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IN THE NINTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF DOUGLAS

THE STATE OF NEVADA,
Plaintiff,
VS. VICTIM IMPACT STATEMENTS
AND PHOTOGRAPH OF VICTIM
TATIANA LEIBEL,
Defendant.

The State of Nevada, by and through Brian G. Filter, Deputy District Attorney, hereby

provides victim impact statements from the victim’s children, Cheron Bartee and Justin
Leibel, as well as a photograph of the victim for the Court’s consideration at the time of

sentencing in this matter.

DATED this 20% day of April, 2014.

MARK B. JACKSON
DISTRICT ATTORNEY

o S OES e

Brian G. Fllter
Deputy District Attorney




Douglas Courity District Attorney

. Post Office Box 218

Minden, Nevada 89423
(775) 782-9800 Fax (775) 440-4403
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Case No 14-CR-0062
DA 14-343G

IN THE NINTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF DOUGLAS

THE STATE OF NEVADA,

Plaintiff,
Vs. CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
TATIANA LEIBEL,

Defendant. )

" Pursuant to NRCP 5(b), I certify that I am an employee of the District Attorney for

Douglas County, Nevada, and that I deposited for delivery a true copy of VICTIM

IMPACT STATEMENTS AND PHOTOGRAPH OF VICTIM, addressed to:
Kristine Brown, Esq.
1190 High School, Suite A
Gardnerville, Nevada 89410

[ ] U.S. Mail

[] Reno/Carson Messenger
Hand Delivery

| 7z
DATED this /@ day of April, 2015.
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Victim Impact Statemeﬁnt
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Cheron Bartee
2015 W. Dogwood Ave.
Anaheim, CA 92801

April 6, 2015

Honorable Judge Young,

During the trial, Harry Leibel has just been a name along with horrible
photographs of his lifeless body, but to me, he was my dad. 1 think of
my dad daily and how much | miss him. Growing up | had many fond
memories of my dad as a loving and affectionate father. He created
wonderful childhood memories that | now appreciate on a different
level, having recently assumed the role of a mother. My dad's
compassionate side provided me with the openness and security to
express my hopes, dreams, and fears about life without judgement.
We had such a strong father/daughter bond, so much so, we created
our own little world, where we had our own private jokes that nobody
knew what we were talking about. My dad could brighten up a room
and he had the most infectious laugh.

To begin to attempt to articulate the impact of my dad’s death is
difficult, and in the manor of his death, is impossible. | want to take
this opportunity to thank you for allowing me to share what feelings |
am able to express with the court. In doing so, hopefully this will allow
for the healing process to begin and give me the closure that | need to
start moving forward.

When | think of the many moments with my dad, one in
particular really shows what my dad meant to me. it was the
day my brother was born. | was six years old and | was so
upset because there was now another person in my dad’s
life that he would have to share his love with. My brother
was just a baby and getting so much attention. | felt that |
would no longer be my dad's favorite. So my dad sat me
down to have a father/daughter talk. | told him, “He ruined
my life and you don’t love me anymore.” And my dad, with
his loving grin, picked me up, showered me with hugs and
kisses, and took me out for ice cream. For a little kid |
thought that was enough. But in my dad’s true fashion, he
went one step above. That day he rented a private plane
and flew me over our house and all around the city. In that
moment | realized how important | was to my dad and how important he was to me. There were so many
other moments like teaching me how to drive a stick shift, showing up for my graduations, and even
during one of the hardest times in my life, when | lost my twin boys, coming to the hospital to console me.
My dad was my safe place and he has been taken away.
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V|ct|m Im wact Statement

I know that as a law abiding citizen in thls great nation, | am to
believe that justice is being served. | comprehend it on that level,
but on the level of a daughter | am sad and angry that he will
never again be here. A guilty verdict, as happy as it made me,
won't rectify how her evil actions have altered my very being.
She has formed a horrific memory that should have never "

become part of me.

Her actions have greatly impacted my family and I. Not only has
she taken my father away from me, she has also taken away any
future moments that we could have had together. My daughters
will never get to know their grandfather, the opportunity to spend
holidays, hear stories about our family, or share
accomplishments with him. My dad could have given me advice on how to raise my daughters, just like
he raised me when | was young. But because of her actions, my dad will never have the blessing of
seeing me be a mom. She has destroyed a legacy with her actions.

| can't understand why she would shoot him, not only once, but twice. It's still hard to believe that my dad
was murdered. My dad trusted her and | can only imagine how he saw his whole lifé flash before his eyes
when he realized she had shot him. She is a cruel, selfish, and unremorseful woman, who not only
refuses to take responsibility for her actions, but refuses to admit she’s done anything wrong. For these
reasons, | beg the court to give her the stiffest sentence possible, so that she can remain in prison and
have nothing but time to think about what she’s done and a small cell to console her. What she did can
never be undone and so the death penalty would be too good for her. | will never forgive her and | hope
she rots in prison and when she finally dies, | hope she rots in hell.

Judge Young, | plea to the court to give her the harshest sentence possible; a life sentence. And for the
deadly weapon enhancement charge, | ask that she get the maximum of 20 years. | pray she never gets
out of prison, so she can never victimize another family and have them suffer the pain and anguish that
my family and | have suffered. She issued my dad a death sentence. She does not have the right to take
someone’s life, and she should be punished and held accountable for her actions.

I will always remember my dad and all of his charming attributes. Although he is not physically here, |
know that | can always talk to him in my dreams. 1 love him very much and will miss him every day.

Respectfully and with a heavy heart,

Chorirn DLoree

Cheron Bartee
Daughter of Beloved Father, Harry Leibel

Harry Leibel
Nov. 17, 1948 = Feb. 23, 2014
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Victim Impact Statement

Honorable Judge Young,

Harry Leibel will forever be in my heart because he was
more than just a father; he was my mentor, my life
coach, and my best friend. My dad was a man of
spirituality and life long learning who always shared his
thoughts with anyone who would listen. We had a
special bond since the day I was born that meant the
world to me.

One of my fondest times
with my dad was during
our annual trip to Lake
Tahoe. My sister and |
j would pile into his car before the sun came up and we would
- begin our trip to Lake Tahoe from Los Angeles. Every time we
did this [ could not sleep from the excitement of being
together and heading to the lake. The lake to me meant an
opportunity to connect with my dad, who I didn’t get a chance
to see often enough throughout the year. Watching the
_sunrise over the Mojave dessert would be so mesmerizing
and would always result in my father talking to me about life.
There was so much he shared with me about the way of the
world, things that would make my life easier, advice about
finding the good in people, and helping solve problems that
were upsetting me at the moment. My dad gave me life
lessons that now mean the world to me.

¢ Another memorable
time was when the
two of us went to
[srael to visit family
during the summer
of 1999. This was one of the best times I had with
him and is a memory I will cherish forever. We
spent six weeks there learning about our culture,
our family that lives there, and the over all history
of the area. | always wanted to do this again with
him, but this will not be possible.




The last time I saw him was January 13th of last year. I had spent a few days at his house
and we had a great time. He was so loving and willing to talk about the many aspects of his
life’s journey and we talked for hours over a game of billiards. He loved pool and talked
about how he was quite the pool shark decades ago. He could still hold his own. I will
always cherish that day because I never knew it would be the last time I would ever see
him alive.

The next time [ had expected to see my dad was at my graduation from Cal State Long
Beach in May. However, he was gone by then. He always talked about how proud he was of
me and that this next chapter of my life was going to be a great one. My dad had always had
an active roll in my life, but now all he can be are memories. All of these great moments my
dad shared; the talks with him, the visits to the lake, were violently ripped from my world a
year ago.

The actions of a selfish and horrible person have left me without a father. Her actions have
taken away everything. Because of her I have no father, which means he will no longer be
able to give me fatherly advise. He will never be able to meet my future wife. He will never
be able to attend my wedding. He will never meet my children and go to their birthday
parties. Finally, he will never be able to give me the advice that I was so often accustomed
to getting. There's nothing anyone can do to fill that void. Not a day has passed, since last
February, that I haven’t wanted to see him, hug him, or talk to him again. I pray to have
dreams with him where I can connect with him once more.

This woman came into my family’s life and ripped it
apart with actions that are unforgivable. It is because
she made the decision to end Harry Leibel’s life that
she should spend the rest of hers locked up. I plea
with the court that you deliver the sentence that will
provide me the only closure I'll ever have, which is the
maximum sentence the court is allowed to give her.

My dad being taken from me the way he was, has been
t the hardest thing I have had to ever deal with. [ am
still trying to cope with this on a daily basis and I miss
him tremendously. My Dad was truly a one of a kind
person that will be missed by many, especially me.

Respectfully, ’

?J%@%@égé&%

Son of Beloved Father, Harry Leibel
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